
703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING  

February 6, 2024 
6:30 p.m.  

This meeting will be held in the Town Hall Board Room, 703 WCR 37 and via Zoom. Residents are welcome to join us in 
the Board Room to view or participate in the meeting, during Public Comment or Public Hearings.  

Public access to this meeting can be found on the website no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

Michael Mahoney, Mayor 
Jamie Jeffery, Mayor Pro Tem Jacklyn White, Trustee 

May Wescott, Trustee Kat Bristow, Trustee 
Dawn Coen, Trustee Peggy Tapey, Trustee 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
a. Representative Gabe Evans

6. PUBLIC COMMENT
The Town Clerk will read into record any comments/questions that were received prior to the meeting.
Actions will not be taken at this time. Any Board of Trustee or Staff responses will be provisional. The Board of
Trustees may provide consensus direction to Staff, for follow-up, at conclusion of comments.

7. CONSENT AGENDA
Any item listed on the Consent Agenda can be removed upon request from any member of the Town Board. For the
benefit of our audience, the mayor will read the items remaining on the Consent Agenda prior to the Board’s vote.
a. Payment Approval Report ($438,212.73) p. 3-13
b. January 12, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes p. 14-15
c. January 16, 2024 Minutes p. 16-20
d. Resolution 2024-10 Approving The Form Of The State & Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement With Clayton

Holdings, LLC, St. Louis, Missouri And Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Thereof  p. 21-48
e. Resolution 2024-11 Approving An Engagement Agreement For Legal Services With Brownstein Hyatt Farber

Schreck, LLP           p. 49-57
f. Resolution 2024-12 Approving A Proposal From Galloway For Professional Services p. 58-70
g. Resolution 2024-13 Approving The Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 Final Plat And The Subdivision

Improvement Agreement Between The Town And QuikTrip Corporation    p. 71-106

1



8. ACTION ITEMS
a. Public hearing and Resolution 2024-14 Approving A Conditional Use Application For The Operation Of A Motor

Vehicle Fueling/Gasoline Station At 17731 County Road 2 On Lot 1, Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1
Near The Northeast Corner Of 168th Avenue And Bonanza Boulevard     p. 107-132

b. Resolution 2024-15 Selecting A Contractor From Amongst Bidders For Construction Of An Elevated Two Million
Gallon Water Tank And Authorizing The Town Administrator To Execute An Agreement For Such Construction
Contingent On Final Funding Approval        p. 133-219

c. Resolution 2024-16 Approving Three Agreements With Resource Central For 2024 For (A) Garden In A Box
Program, (B) Slow The Flow Irrigation Audit Program, And (C) Waterwise Yard Seminars Program p. 220-261

9. STAFF AND ATTORNEY UPDATES

10. MAYOR AND TRUSTEE COMMENTS

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Executive Session pursuant to CRS Section 24-6-402(4)(b) with Special counsel to receive legal advice regarding

the public library.

12. ADJOURN

The Board may convene a lawfully called executive session at any time during a regular or special meeting of the Board. 

2



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     1

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

120 WATER AUDIT INC.

120 WATER AUDIT INC. 4769 PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM SUBSCRIPTION 01/19/2024 3,845.00 3,845.00 01/30/2024

          Total 120 WATER AUDIT INC.: 3,845.00 3,845.00

24/7 NETWORKS LLC

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 15.52 15.52 01/30/2024

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 38.80 38.80 01/30/2024

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 7.76 7.76 01/30/2024

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 7.76 7.76 01/30/2024

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 7.76 7.76 01/30/2024

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 77.61 77.61 01/30/2024

24/7 NETWORKS LLC INV109860 2024 Annual Maintenance Phone Handsets 01/21/2024 77.61 77.61 01/30/2024

          Total 24/7 NETWORKS LLC: 232.82 232.82

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV407947 PD - ODNEAL 01/08/2024 945.86 945.86 01/30/2024

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV407949 Uniform - PD - SOUTHARD 01/08/2024 117.00 117.00 01/30/2024

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV408175 PD - ODNEAL 01/08/2024 82.74 82.74 01/30/2024

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV408478 Uniform - PD-orlando 01/17/2024 158.40 158.40 01/30/2024

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV408754 Uniform - PD-orlando 01/22/2024 169.20 169.20 01/30/2024

          Total ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS: 1,473.20 1,473.20

AGFINITY, INC

AGFINITY, INC W22278-22967 12/23 WWTP Propane 12/31/2023 2,018.19 2,018.19 01/30/2024

          Total AGFINITY, INC: 2,018.19 2,018.19

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 17XN-9HR1-YP PW Supplies 01/08/2024 339.27 339.27 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 17XN-9HR1-YP PW Supplies 01/08/2024 339.27 339.27 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 19LN-J694-R3P Supplies 01/26/2024 27.66 27.66 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 19LN-J694-R3P Supplies 01/26/2024 27.66 27.66 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 19LN-J694-R3P Supplies 01/26/2024 27.66 27.66 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1CW1-YCCM-N CREDIT 01/17/2024 592.99- 592.99- 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1FCY-3GRL-4H Wellness supplies 01/28/2024 32.71 32.71 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1FCY-3GRL-4H Wellness supplies 01/28/2024 10.74 10.74 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1FCY-3GRL-4H Wellness supplies 01/28/2024 5.37 5.37 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1GJ9-GMYM-J1 Supplies 01/20/2024 50.58 50.58 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1GJ9-GMYM-J1 Supplies 01/20/2024 50.58 50.58 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1GJ9-GMYM-J1 Supplies 01/20/2024 50.58 50.58 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1LN3-RX1P-D9 Supplies 01/20/2024 30.73 30.73 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1LN3-RX1P-D9 Supplies 01/20/2024 30.73 30.73 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1LN3-RX1P-D9 Supplies 01/20/2024 30.73 30.73 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1NLH=H4HF-9F PW Supplies 01/19/2024 236.79 236.79 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1NLH=H4HF-9F PW Supplies 01/19/2024 236.80 236.80 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1NQD-1MFT-PT PW Supplies 01/17/2024 62.49 62.49 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1NWQ-7NP6-M PW Supplies - pest control 01/11/2024 128.24 128.24 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1PJ4-N3N4-1W Supplies - PD 01/29/2024 38.80 38.80 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1RD1-QRC4-K Supplies - PD 01/25/2024 46.44 46.44 01/30/2024

3



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     2

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1T1N-3J6L-HW Supplies - tax envelopes 01/16/2024 4.66 4.66 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1T1N-3J6L-HW Supplies - tax envelopes 01/16/2024 4.66 4.66 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1T1N-3J6L-HW Supplies - tax envelopes 01/16/2024 4.67 4.67 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1WTH-H3DX-3 PW Supplies 01/08/2024 98.26 98.26 01/30/2024

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1WTH-H3DX-3 PW Supplies 01/08/2024 98.27 98.27 01/30/2024

          Total AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES: 1,421.36 1,421.36

AMERICAN CONSERVATION & BILLING SOLUTION

AMERICAN CONSERVATION &  16251 2/24-AquaHawk Customer Portal 01/01/2024 530.00 530.00 01/30/2024

          Total AMERICAN CONSERVATION & BILLING SOLUTION: 530.00 530.00

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 3.41 3.41 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 36.33 36.33 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 21.79 21.79 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 245.30 245.30 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 27.55 27.55 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 16.52 16.52 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 16.52 16.52 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 37.89 37.89 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 16.52 16.52 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 27.06 27.06 01/30/2024

AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS JAN 2024 1/24 - Accident Insurance 01/23/2024 5.51 5.51 01/30/2024

          Total AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS: 454.40 454.40

AQUA ENGINEERING

AQUA ENGINEERING 26980 12/23-WWMP Consultant 01/23/2024 17,880.00 17,880.00 01/30/2024

          Total AQUA ENGINEERING: 17,880.00 17,880.00

ARIES CHEMICAL INC

ARIES CHEMICAL INC 107579 WWTP CHEMICALS 01/08/2024 4,298.00 4,298.00 01/30/2024

          Total ARIES CHEMICAL INC: 4,298.00 4,298.00

AXON ENTERPRISE INC

AXON ENTERPRISE INC INUS5220429 PD Equipment - Taser cert 01/15/2024 6,899.72 6,899.72 01/30/2024

          Total AXON ENTERPRISE INC: 6,899.72 6,899.72

BISHOP-BROGDEN ASSOCIATES, INC

BISHOP-BROGDEN ASSOCIATE 53478 1/24 General Water Services 01/15/2024 2,201.25 2,201.25 01/30/2024

BISHOP-BROGDEN ASSOCIATE 53479 1/24 - Beebe Draw 01/15/2024 1,662.50 1,662.50 01/30/2024

BISHOP-BROGDEN ASSOCIATE 53480 1/24 Water Supply Master Plan 01/15/2024 1,524.50 1,524.50 01/30/2024

BISHOP-BROGDEN ASSOCIATE 53481 1/24 - Reimb - Silver Peaks East 01/15/2024 333.25 333.25 01/30/2024

          Total BISHOP-BROGDEN ASSOCIATES, INC: 5,721.50 5,721.50

BRIGHTON AUTO BODY INC

BRIGHTON AUTO BODY INC 26634 PD UNIT 2002 01/04/2024 453.88 453.88 01/30/2024

          Total BRIGHTON AUTO BODY INC: 453.88 453.88

4



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     3

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

BURLINGTON DITCH RESERVOIR & LAND CO

BURLINGTON DITCH RESERVO 0003547-IN 2024 Water Assess - 4 shares 01/09/2024 40.00 40.00 01/30/2024

          Total BURLINGTON DITCH RESERVOIR & LAND CO: 40.00 40.00

CENTURY LINK

CENTURY LINK 1343 295B-122 2/24-303-659-1343-WW Plant 01/22/2024 149.26 149.26 01/30/2024

CENTURY LINK 2474-11324 2/24-303-637-2474-Water Plant 01/13/2024 174.39 174.39 01/30/2024

          Total CENTURY LINK: 323.65 323.65

CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL COLORADO

CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL COLOR ML00001777 case # 23-lo00746 11/09/2023 800.00 800.00 01/30/2024

          Total CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL COLORADO: 800.00 800.00

CINTAS

CINTAS 4180198852 1/24-Town Hall Mats/Towels 01/15/2024 52.39 52.39 01/30/2024

CINTAS 4180911513 1/24-Town Hall Mats/Towels 01/22/2024 52.39 52.39 01/30/2024

CINTAS 4181630545 1/24-Town Hall Mats/Towels 01/29/2024 52.39 52.39 01/30/2024

          Total CINTAS: 157.17 157.17

CIVICPLUS

CIVICPLUS 290484 2024 Web Subscription - AUDIOEYE 01/17/2024 1,583.33 1,583.33 01/30/2024

CIVICPLUS 290484 2024 Web Subscription - AUDIOEYE 01/17/2024 1,583.33 1,583.33 01/30/2024

CIVICPLUS 290484 2024 Web Subscription - AUDIOEYE 01/17/2024 1,583.34 1,583.34 01/30/2024

          Total CIVICPLUS: 4,750.00 4,750.00

COBRAHELP

COBRAHELP 305423 1/24 Cobra Consultant 01/15/2024 35.00 35.00 01/30/2024

          Total COBRAHELP: 35.00 35.00

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240104138 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/12/2024 81.00 81.00 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240110083 WATER-DRINKING 01/16/2024 16.20 16.20 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240110096 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/19/2024 140.40 140.40 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240110111 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/22/2024 999.91 999.91 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240110112 WATER-DRINKING 01/19/2024 136.80 136.80 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240110116 WATER-DRINKING 01/17/2024 460.00 460.00 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240111009 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/19/2024 423.00 423.00 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240117045 WATER-DRINKING 01/18/2024 82.80 82.80 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240117087 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/18/2024 24.30 24.30 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240117114 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/24/2024 81.00 81.00 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240122047 WATER-DRINKING 01/23/2024 82.80 82.80 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240124040 WASTEWATER TESTING 01/29/2024 16.20 16.20 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240124050 WWTP - Lab Fees 01/30/2024 81.00 81.00 01/30/2024

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240124087 WATER-DRINKING 01/25/2024 62.10 62.10 01/30/2024

          Total COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB: 2,687.51 2,687.51

COLORADO COMMUNITY MEDIA

COLORADO COMMUNITY MEDI 104206 12/23-Legal Notices-Ord 2024-688/687 01/12/2024 56.40 56.40 01/30/2024

COLORADO COMMUNITY MEDI 104915 1/24-Legal Notices-Ord BSB2945/BSB2947 01/26/2024 57.72 57.72 01/30/2024

5



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     4

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total COLORADO COMMUNITY MEDIA: 114.12 114.12

COLORADO DOORWAYS INC

COLORADO DOORWAYS INC 992130 ACCESS CONTROL LABOR 01/12/2024 377.50 377.50 01/30/2024

COLORADO DOORWAYS INC 992130 ACCESS CONTROL LABOR 01/12/2024 377.50 377.50 01/30/2024

COLORADO DOORWAYS INC 992130 ACCESS CONTROL LABOR 01/12/2024 377.50 377.50 01/30/2024

COLORADO DOORWAYS INC 992130 ACCESS CONTROL LABOR 01/12/2024 377.50 377.50 01/30/2024

          Total COLORADO DOORWAYS INC: 1,510.00 1,510.00

Comcast

Comcast 0288526-11624 2/24-Internet 01/16/2024 106.31 106.31 01/30/2024

Comcast 0288526-11624 2/24-Internet 01/16/2024 106.30 106.30 01/30/2024

Comcast 0288526-11624 2/24-Internet 01/16/2024 106.30 106.30 01/30/2024

          Total Comcast: 318.91 318.91

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 - SP PA4 01/11/2024 910.00 910.00 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 - Starbucks 01/11/2024 65.00 65.00 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 - SP no3 01/11/2024 552.50 552.50 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 - MIRACLE-GRO 01/11/2024 260.00 260.00 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 01/11/2024 65.00 65.00 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 -SMALLER TASKS 01/11/2024 1,460.00 1,460.00 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 -MEETING 01/11/2024 292.50 292.50 01/30/2024

CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC P170264CO.00- 12/23 - 2023 Comp Plan 01/11/2024 130.00 130.00 01/30/2024

          Total CONSOR ENGINEERS LLC: 3,735.00 3,735.00

COREN PRINTING , INC

COREN PRINTING , INC 33612 Business Cards-GRECO/ODNEAL 12/22/2023 184.92 184.92 01/30/2024

          Total COREN PRINTING , INC: 184.92 184.92

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LLC

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LL INV709261 1/3-1/5-Sludge Hauling 01/11/2024 2,654.09 2,654.09 01/30/2024

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LL INV714353 1/8-1/11-Sludge Hauling 01/18/2024 3,280.19 3,280.19 01/30/2024

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LL INV720215 1/17-1/19-Sludge Hauling 01/25/2024 2,270.53 2,270.53 01/30/2024

          Total DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LLC: 8,204.81 8,204.81

DENISE RADEMACHER

DENISE RADEMACHER SAFEWAY 0129 Wellness Supplies 01/29/2024 5.74 .00

DENISE RADEMACHER SAFEWAY 0129 Wellness Supplies 01/29/2024 5.75 .00

DENISE RADEMACHER SAFEWAY 0129 Wellness Supplies 01/29/2024 5.75 .00

          Total DENISE RADEMACHER: 17.24 .00

DOUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

DOUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S  2024SOTAR 2024 SOTAR System User Fee 01/10/2024 1,500.00 1,500.00 01/30/2024

          Total DOUGLAS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE: 1,500.00 1,500.00

DRIVEN BRANDS, INC

DRIVEN BRANDS, INC 66663341 BALANCE REFUND 12/31/2023 2,943.41 2,943.41 01/30/2024

6



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     5

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total DRIVEN BRANDS, INC: 2,943.41 2,943.41

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC LUP-3481080-0 Equipment Rental-Skid Steer / Skid Loader 01/23/2024 2,958.80 .00

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC LUP-3501476-0 Equipment Rental-Track Excavator 01/25/2024 1,647.85 .00

EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC LUP-3501476-0 Equipment Rental-Excavator 01/25/2024 1,374.03 .00

          Total EQUIPMENTSHARE.COM INC: 5,980.68 .00

ERB ELEMENT

ERB ELEMENT 15 2/24-Marketing Services 01/23/2024 666.66 666.66 01/30/2024

ERB ELEMENT 15 2/24-Marketing Services 01/23/2024 666.67 666.67 01/30/2024

ERB ELEMENT 15 2/24-Marketing Services 01/23/2024 666.67 666.67 01/30/2024

          Total ERB ELEMENT: 2,000.00 2,000.00

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - PW 01/12/2024 74.20 74.20 01/30/2024

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - PW 01/12/2024 74.48 74.48 01/30/2024

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - PW 01/12/2024 19.95 19.95 01/30/2024

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - PW 01/12/2024 19.96 19.96 01/30/2024

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - Water 01/12/2024 79.97 79.97 01/30/2024

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - WW 01/12/2024 52.46 52.46 01/30/2024

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVIC 2465-01122024 Supplies - PW 01/12/2024 62.28 62.28 01/30/2024

          Total HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES: 383.30 383.30

IACP

IACP 0327114 2024 Dues 12/20/2023 190.00 190.00 01/30/2024

          Total IACP: 190.00 190.00

ICMA

ICMA 513669 2024 Dues 01/28/2024 397.64 397.64 01/30/2024

ICMA 513669 2024 Dues 01/28/2024 397.64 397.64 01/30/2024

ICMA 513669 2024 Dues 01/28/2024 397.64 397.64 01/30/2024

          Total ICMA: 1,192.92 1,192.92

JASMINE SCAGGIARI

JASMINE SCAGGIARI 2023-EDUCATI 2023- EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT 01/25/2024 805.16 805.16 01/30/2024

JASMINE SCAGGIARI 2023-EDUCATI 2023- EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT 01/25/2024 805.17 805.17 01/30/2024

JASMINE SCAGGIARI 2023-EDUCATI 2023- EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT 01/25/2024 805.17 805.17 01/30/2024

          Total JASMINE SCAGGIARI: 2,415.50 2,415.50

JOHN E. REID & ASSOCIATES, INC

JOHN E. REID & ASSOCIATES, I 9CE2C495-001 PD Interview/Interrogation Tech.SMITH/ALMIR 01/17/2024 1,260.00 1,260.00 01/30/2024

          Total JOHN E. REID & ASSOCIATES, INC: 1,260.00 1,260.00

JVA INC

JVA INC 13343 11/23 - Elevated Water Storage Tank Design 11/30/2023 43,000.00 43,000.00 01/30/2024

JVA INC 13579 12/23 - Elevated Water Storage Tank Design 12/31/2023 21,000.00 21,000.00 01/30/2024

7



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     6

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total JVA INC: 64,000.00 64,000.00

KAISER PERMANENTE

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 349.59 349.59 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 486.88 486.88 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 1,339.87 1,339.87 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 6,312.63 6,312.63 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 1,433.57 1,433.57 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 338.17 338.17 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 338.16 338.16 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 2,123.49 2,123.49 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 338.16 338.16 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 1,483.68 1,483.68 01/30/2024

KAISER PERMANENTE FEB-24 2/24 - Health Insurance 01/15/2024 112.72 112.72 01/30/2024

          Total KAISER PERMANENTE: 14,656.92 14,656.92

KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS S 291609340 1/24-Copier Lease-PD 01/18/2024 231.30 231.30 01/30/2024

          Total KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS: 231.30 231.30

KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE

KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FIN 51994619 2/24 Copier Lease 01/09/2024 43.96 43.96 01/30/2024

KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FIN 51994619 2/24 Copier Lease 01/09/2024 43.96 43.96 01/30/2024

KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FIN 51994619 2/24 Copier Lease 01/09/2024 43.97 43.97 01/30/2024

          Total KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE: 131.89 131.89

LINGO TELECOM

LINGO TELECOM 1197572423 12/23-Telephone Service 01/01/2024 73.63 73.63 01/30/2024

LINGO TELECOM 1197572423 12/23-Telephone Service 01/01/2024 73.63 73.63 01/30/2024

LINGO TELECOM 1197572423 12/23-Telephone Service 01/01/2024 73.63 73.63 01/30/2024

          Total LINGO TELECOM: 220.89 220.89

LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES INC

LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGI SCPA0067365 1/24-HVAC Monthly Fee 01/10/2024 77.00 77.00 01/30/2024

LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGI SCPA0067365 1/24-HVAC Monthly Fee 01/10/2024 77.00 77.00 01/30/2024

LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGI SCPA0067365 1/24-HVAC Monthly Fee 01/10/2024 77.00 77.00 01/30/2024

LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGI SCPA0067365 1/24-HVAC Monthly Fee 01/10/2024 77.00 77.00 01/30/2024

          Total LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES INC: 308.00 308.00

Longmont Area HR Roundtable

Longmont Area HR Roundtable 368 2024 HR Dues 01/15/2024 41.66 41.66 01/30/2024

Longmont Area HR Roundtable 368 2024 HR Dues 01/15/2024 41.67 41.67 01/30/2024

Longmont Area HR Roundtable 368 2024 HR Dues 01/15/2024 41.67 41.67 01/30/2024

          Total Longmont Area HR Roundtable: 125.00 125.00

LOWE'S

LOWE'S 6580536-1223 Town Hall R&M 01/02/2024 147.15 147.15 01/30/2024

          Total LOWE'S: 147.15 147.15

8



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     7

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING ENGINEERS

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00323 YTD 11/30/23 - WCR4 BRIDGE 12/15/2023 3,015.75 3,015.75 01/30/2024

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00324 YTD 12/31/23 - Greenway Trail 01/12/2024 10,082.50 10,082.50 01/30/2024

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00325 YTD 12/31/23 - WCR4 BRIDGE 01/21/2024 106,839.26 106,839.26 01/30/2024

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00326 11/23-General Eng Services 01/30/2024 4,015.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00327 11/23-Lochbuie Center Reimbursable 01/30/2024 1,082.50 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00328 11/23-SPE Reimbursable 01/30/2024 460.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00329 11/23-Blue Lake Reimbursable 01/30/2024 1,417.50 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00330 11/23-SP PA 4 Block 20 Reimbursable 01/30/2024 11,062.50 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00331 11/23-CR 2 Widening - Walton - Reimbursable 01/30/2024 4,500.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00332 11/23-Elevated Water Tank 01/30/2024 1,350.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00333 11/23-Quiktrip Reimbursable 01/30/2024 885.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00334 11/23-SP Filing #3 - Reimbursable 01/30/2024 3,241.25 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00335 11/23-BNSF Development 01/30/2024 940.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00336 11/23-Altimira 01/30/2024 235.00 .00

MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING  19.0580-00337 11/30-Starbucks Reimbursable 01/30/2024 1,050.00 .00

          Total MARTIN/MARTIN CONSULTING ENGINEERS: 150,176.26 119,937.51

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSOCIATION

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 2.10 2.10 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 7.70 7.70 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 15.40 15.40 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 116.90 116.90 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 14.00 14.00 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 21.00 21.00 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 21.00 21.00 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 23.10 23.10 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 21.00 21.00 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 16.80 16.80 01/30/2024

MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSO 1729870 1/24 - Medical Transport Insurance 01/01/2024 7.00 7.00 01/30/2024

          Total MEDICAL AIR SERVICES ASSOCIATION: 266.00 266.00

MELISSA SANCHEZ

MELISSA SANCHEZ 23LO00293-1 BOND MONEY 01/17/2024 500.00 500.00 01/23/2024

          Total MELISSA SANCHEZ: 500.00 500.00

MIGUEL IRAOLA

MIGUEL IRAOLA 01242024 1/24-Court Interpreter 01/24/2024 155.00 .00

          Total MIGUEL IRAOLA: 155.00 .00

MUTUAL OF OMAHA

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 5.72 5.72 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 9.92 9.92 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 78.53 78.53 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 44.72- 44.72- 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 12.58 12.58 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 59.13 59.13 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 59.13 59.13 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 69.57 69.57 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 55.05 55.05 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 47.13 47.13 01/30/2024

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 001644826038 2/24 - Dental/Vision/Life/Disability 01/18/2024 18.35 18.35 01/30/2024

9



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     8

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total MUTUAL OF OMAHA: 370.39 370.39

NAPA AUTO PARTS

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-471104 Batteries 01/03/2024 232.79 232.79 01/30/2024

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-471104 Batteries 01/03/2024 101.84 101.84 01/30/2024

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-472065 Parts 01/11/2024 217.88 217.88 01/30/2024

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-472464 Batteries 01/15/2024 194.96 194.96 01/30/2024

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-472464 Batteries 01/15/2024 194.96 194.96 01/30/2024

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-472465 Batteries 01/15/2024 242.54 242.54 01/30/2024

NAPA AUTO PARTS 3527-472683 Parts 01/17/2024 232.53 232.53 01/30/2024

          Total NAPA AUTO PARTS: 1,417.50 1,417.50

PINNACOL ASSURANCE

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 9.96 9.96 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 9.68 9.68 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 28.57 28.57 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 2,679.92 2,679.92 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 87.50 87.50 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 257.95 257.95 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 222.93 222.93 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 298.29 298.29 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 63.87 63.87 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 82.57 82.57 01/30/2024

PINNACOL ASSURANCE FEB 2024 2/24 - Work Comp 01/15/2024 54.76 54.76 01/30/2024

          Total PINNACOL ASSURANCE: 3,796.00 3,796.00

PVS DX, Inc.

PVS DX, Inc. 737000134-24 Chemicals-WWTP 01/12/2024 9,646.28 9,646.28 01/30/2024

PVS DX, Inc. 737000166-24 Chemicals-WTP 01/17/2024 4,279.04 4,279.04 01/30/2024

          Total PVS DX, Inc.: 13,925.32 13,925.32

RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULT 31796 12/23-Impact Fee Study 01/12/2024 1,180.00 1,180.00 01/30/2024

          Total RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.: 1,180.00 1,180.00

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 26945 12/23 Wastewater Services 01/09/2024 178.91 178.91 01/30/2024

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 26945 12/23 Water Services 01/09/2024 320.20 320.20 01/30/2024

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 27004 1/24 Wastewater Services 01/22/2024 13,290.78 13,290.78 01/30/2024

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 27004 1/24 Water Services 01/22/2024 13,754.34 13,754.34 01/30/2024

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 27004 1/24 Wastewater Supplies 01/22/2024 291.45 291.45 01/30/2024

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 27070 Water Inlet Value repairs 01/30/2024 816.68 816.68 01/30/2024

          Total RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 28,652.36 28,652.36

RELIABLE HOME TECHNOLOGY INC

RELIABLE HOME TECHNOLOG 65446 WATER PLANT SECURITY SYSTEM 11/29/2023 2,876.00 2,876.00 01/30/2024

RELIABLE HOME TECHNOLOG 65447 WWTP SECURITY SYSTEM 11/29/2023 6,169.00 6,169.00 01/30/2024

          Total RELIABLE HOME TECHNOLOGY INC: 9,045.00 9,045.00

10



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     9

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC

RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC 1226498A 12/23-Fuel-PD 12/31/2023 229.11 229.11 01/30/2024

          Total RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC: 229.11 229.11

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION  12785-IN PW - Paint 01/16/2024 98.78 98.78 01/30/2024

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION  12785-IN PW - Paint 01/16/2024 98.79 98.79 01/30/2024

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION  12884-IN PW - stop signs 01/24/2024 237.12 237.12 01/30/2024

          Total SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY: 434.69 434.69

SAM'S CLUB

SAM'S CLUB 10134478035 1/24 - Supplies 01/11/2024 6.49 6.49 01/30/2024

SAM'S CLUB 10134478035 1/24 - Supplies 01/11/2024 6.49 6.49 01/30/2024

SAM'S CLUB 10134478035 1/24 - Supplies 01/11/2024 6.49 6.49 01/30/2024

SAM'S CLUB 10134478035 1/24 - Supplies 01/11/2024 28.97 28.97 01/30/2024

SAM'S CLUB 10134478035 1/24 - Supplies 01/11/2024 6.50 6.50 01/30/2024

          Total SAM'S CLUB: 54.94 54.94

STERICYCLE INC

STERICYCLE INC 8005945032 1/24-Shredding Service 01/18/2024 7.50 7.50 01/30/2024

STERICYCLE INC 8005945032 1/24-Shredding Service 01/18/2024 7.50 7.50 01/30/2024

STERICYCLE INC 8005945032 1/24-Shredding Service 01/18/2024 7.50 7.50 01/30/2024

STERICYCLE INC 8005945032 1/24-Shredding Service 01/18/2024 7.50 7.50 01/30/2024

          Total STERICYCLE INC: 30.00 30.00

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPANY INC

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPA 888979-A TOWN HALL LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 01/11/2024 2,175.20 2,175.20 01/30/2024

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPA 888979-A TOWN HALL LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 01/11/2024 1,652.96 1,652.96 01/30/2024

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPA 888979-A TOWN HALL LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 01/11/2024 1,652.96 1,652.96 01/30/2024

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPA 888979-A TOWN HALL LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 01/11/2024 1,652.96 1,652.96 01/30/2024

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPA 888979-A TOWN HALL LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 01/11/2024 932.96 932.96 01/30/2024

STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPA 888979-A TOWN HALL LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 01/11/2024 932.96 932.96 01/30/2024

          Total STURGEON ELECTRIC COMPANY INC: 9,000.00 9,000.00

THE POLICE AND SHERIFFS PRESS

THE POLICE AND SHERIFFS PR 187779 ID Card - Almiron 01/12/2024 17.60 17.60 01/30/2024

          Total THE POLICE AND SHERIFFS PRESS: 17.60 17.60

TIMBERLAN

TIMBERLAN TLC23-0054 PD SETUPS 04/03/2023 2,200.00 2,200.00 01/30/2024

          Total TIMBERLAN: 2,200.00 2,200.00

TOWN OF CASTLE ROCK

TOWN OF CASTLE ROCK TOL 2023-04 4th Qtr Raw Water Service & Delivery 01/17/2024 248.52 248.52 01/30/2024

          Total TOWN OF CASTLE ROCK: 248.52 248.52

UNITED POWER

UNITED POWER 1499601-11224 12/23 RD 37 & LOCUST 01/12/2024 43.85 43.85 01/30/2024

UNITED POWER 1927550-12424 1/24 Streetlights 01/24/2024 39.30 39.30 01/30/2024

11



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     10

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

UNITED POWER 22560700-1242 1/24 Flow meter 01/24/2024 23.10 23.10 01/30/2024

          Total UNITED POWER: 106.25 106.25

UNITED WATER & SANITATION DIST

UNITED WATER & SANITATION  LOCHBUIE NO 10/1-10/31/23-Water Storage-United Power-#3  12/30/2023 3,454.05 3,454.05 01/30/2024

UNITED WATER & SANITATION  LOCHBUIE OC 9/1-9/30/23-Water Storage-United Power-#3 Bo 11/30/2023 4,335.90 4,335.90 01/30/2024

UNITED WATER & SANITATION  LOCHBUIE SE 8/1-8/31/23-Water Storage-United Power-#3 Bo 10/30/2023 10,812.53 10,812.53 01/30/2024

          Total UNITED WATER & SANITATION DIST: 18,602.48 18,602.48

USA BLUE BOOK

USA BLUE BOOK INV00240815 1/24 Water Lab Supplies 01/09/2024 283.45 283.45 01/30/2024

          Total USA BLUE BOOK: 283.45 283.45

WELD COUNTY

WELD COUNTY 104374 2024 Annual Wireless Maintenance Agreement 01/24/2024 64,761.27 64,761.27 01/30/2024

          Total WELD COUNTY: 64,761.27 64,761.27

WELD COUNTY CHIEFS OF POLICE ASSOCIATION

WELD COUNTY CHIEFS OF POL 0003A 2024 Membership Dues 01/01/2024 350.00 350.00 01/30/2024

          Total WELD COUNTY CHIEFS OF POLICE ASSOCIATION: 350.00 350.00

WHITESIDES # 2 INC.

WHITESIDES # 2 INC. 44165 Clothing Allowance-PW-Crescencio 01/11/2024 77.48 77.48 01/30/2024

WHITESIDES # 2 INC. 44165 Clothing Allowance-PW-Crescencio 01/11/2024 77.49 77.49 01/30/2024

          Total WHITESIDES # 2 INC.: 154.97 154.97

XCEL ENERGY

XCEL ENERGY 862748341 1/24 PW 01/29/2024 305.37 305.37 01/30/2024

XCEL ENERGY 862748341 1/24 PW 01/29/2024 305.36 305.36 01/30/2024

XCEL ENERGY 862755314 1/24 Water Plant 01/29/2024 659.72 659.72 01/30/2024

XCEL ENERGY 862845724 1/24 Town Hall 01/29/2024 110.55 110.55 01/30/2024

XCEL ENERGY 862845724 1/24 Town Hall 01/29/2024 110.55 110.55 01/30/2024

XCEL ENERGY 862845724 1/24 Town Hall 01/29/2024 110.55 110.55 01/30/2024

XCEL ENERGY 862845724 1/24 Town Hall 01/29/2024 110.56 110.56 01/30/2024

          Total XCEL ENERGY: 1,712.66 1,712.66

YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE

YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE 11082023 LOADER REPAIRS 11/08/2023 622.84 622.84 01/30/2024

YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE 110823-1 Crack Filler 11/08/2023 75.00 75.00 01/30/2024

YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE 110823-2 Dump truck 11/08/2023 75.00 75.00 01/30/2024

YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE 110823-3 Vac Truck 11/08/2023 75.00 75.00 01/30/2024

YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE 110823-4 Skid Steer 11/08/2023 293.43 293.43 01/30/2024

          Total YOUNGS MOBILE SERVICE: 1,141.27 1,141.27

          Grand Totals:  474,604.40 438,212.73

12



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     11

Report dates: 1/11/2024-1/31/2024 Jan 31, 2024  11:13AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

             Dated:       __________________________________________

             Mayor:       __________________________________________

    Town Trustees:  __________________________________________

                               __________________________________________

                               __________________________________________

                               __________________________________________

                               __________________________________________

                               __________________________________________

  Town Clerk:          __________________________________________

  Town Treasurer:   __________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

13



 

 
703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
AND NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING AND REFERRAL TO THE BOARD BY THE TOWN CLERK OF 

A PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 
January 12, 2024 

5:00 p.m.  
 

Minutes 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Mahoney called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Mayor Mahoney 
  Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery 

Trustee Coen 
Trustee Wescott 
Trustee White 
Trustee Bristow 
Trustee Tapey 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Bristow to approve the agenda. Motion carried 7-0.   
      
ACTION ITEMS 

a. Motion to Approve Policy No. 2024-01, Remote Meetings And Remote Participation During Town Board Of 
Trustees Meetings  

 
Maureen Juran, Town Attorney, stated that when this policy was first set, the Town set strict limits on how to hold remote 
meetings. Now, we have found that remote meetings can be beneficial. This updated policy loosens the restrictions on holding 
remote meetings, while honoring our obligations to hold meetings transparently, making sure that the public can view all 
meetings. The policy also sets parameters on how to keep confidentiality in executive session, and how trustees are able to 
participate remotely.   
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery seconded by Trustee Bristow to approve Policy No. 2024-01, Remote Meetings and 
Remote Participation During Town Board Of Trustees Meetings. Motion carried 7-0.     
    

b. Ordinance 2024-689 Amending Section 2-2-60 Of The Town Of Lochbuie Municipal Code Regarding Calling 
Special Meetings  
 

14



Maureen Juran reported that our current code provisions for calling special meetings are onerous and could delay our ability to 
call a special meeting in a timely fashion. This ordinance changes the municipal code to state that as long as we send an email to 
each trustee, that is adequate notice for calling the meeting. Staff will continue to communicate ahead of time regarding 
everyone’s availability for a meeting, but we will not have the legal obligation of having to wait and then risk not being able to 
hold the meeting.  
 
Motion made by Trustee Tapey seconded by Trustee Bristow to approve Ordinance 2024-689 Amending Section 2-2-60 Of The 
Town of Lochbuie Municipal Code Regarding Calling Special Meetings. Motion carried 7-0.   
       

c. Resolution 2024-05, Resolution Of Intent To Annex, Finding Substantial Compliance, And Setting Annexation 
Hearing South Weld Annexation No. 1  

 
Chris Kennedy, Community Development Director, shared that there are a series of resolutions to move forward with the 
annexation of about 227 acres of property with some right of way, generally located at the northeast corner of I-76 and County 
Road 4. The property owner has submitted petitions for annexation, as required by law. Before moving forward, state law 
requires the Town to confirm that the petitions are in substantial compliance with certain criteria. After review, staff has found 
everything to be in compliance with state law. The law also states that the board must schedule a public hearing to consider the 
annexation and staff is suggesting February 12, 2024, as a date for the hearing at town hall.  
 
Maureen Juran stated that the town clerk did receive those petitions for annexation and communicated them out to the board in 
advance of the 24-hour posting of this special meeting that is required.  
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery seconded by Trustee White to adopt Resolution No. 2024-05 A Resolution Of The Board 
Of Trustees Of The Town Of Lochbuie, Colorado, Accepting An Annexation Petition, Making Certain Findings Of Fact, Finding 
Substantial Compliance For Such Petition, And Setting A Public Hearing For Annexation Of Property Known As The South 
Weld Annexation No. 1. Motion carried 7-0.  
         

d. Resolution 2024-06, Resolution Of Intent To Annex, Finding Substantial Compliance, And Setting Annexation 
Hearing South Weld Annexation No. 2  

 
Motion made by Trustee Coen seconded by Trustee White to adopt Resolution No. 2024-06 A Resolution Of The Board Of 
Trustees Of The Town Of Lochbuie, Colorado, Accepting An Annexation Petition, Making Certain Findings Of Fact, Finding 
Substantial Compliance For Such Petition, And Setting A Public Hearing For Annexation Of Property Known As The South 
Weld Annexation No. 2. Motion carried 7-0.   
        

e. Resolution 2024-07, Resolution Of Intent To Annex, Finding Substantial Compliance, And Setting Annexation 
Hearing South Weld Annexation No. 3  

 
Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Bristow to adopt Resolution No. 2024-07 A Resolution Of The Board Of 
Trustees Of The Town Of Lochbuie, Colorado, Accepting An Annexation Petition, Making Certain Findings Of Fact, Finding 
Substantial Compliance For Such Petition, And Setting A Public Hearing For Annexation Of Property Known As The South 
Weld Annexation No. 3. Motion carried 7-0.       
 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Mahoney adjourned the meeting at 5:11 PM. 
 

The Board may convene a lawfully called executive session at any time during a regular or special meeting of the Board. 
  
 
   ________                        
Heather Bowen       Michael Mahoney 
Town Clerk        Mayor  

15



 
 

 
703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING  

January 16, 2024 
6:30 p.m.  

 
This meeting will be held in the Town Hall Board Room, 703 WCR 37 and via Zoom. Residents are welcome to join us in 

the Board Room to view or participate in the meeting, during Public Comment or Public Hearings.  
Public access to this meeting can be found on the website no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

 
Minutes 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Mahoney called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Mayor Mahoney 
  Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery 

Trustee Wescott 
Trustee Bristow 
Trustee Tapey 
Trustee White 
Trustee Coen 

  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Tapey to approve the agenda. Motion carried 7-0.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Any item listed on the Consent Agenda can be removed upon request from any member of the Town Board. For the 
benefit of our audience, the mayor will read the items remaining on the Consent Agenda prior to the Board’s vote. 
a. Payment Approval Report ($437,183.87)               
b. January 2, 2024 Minutes             
c. Agreement for Municipal Jail Services Between Weld County and The Town of Lochbuie, Lochbuie Police 

Department             

16



d. Resolution 2024-08 Approving An Intergovernmental Agreement By And Among The Town Of Lochbuie, The City 
Of Brighton, The City Of Dacono, The Town Of Erie, The Town of Frederick, The Town Of Firestone, The City Of 
Longmont, The Town Of Mead, The City Of Thornton, And Weld County For Coordination Of Transportation 
Planning In Southwest Weld County          

e. Resolution 2024-09 Approving An Engagement Agreement With Murray Dahl Beery And Renaud LLP 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery seconded by Trustee White to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 7-0.  
 
PRESENTATION 

a. Comprehensive Plan Update  
 
Christopher Kennedy, Community Development Director, stated that staff has been working with consultants from Cushing 
Terrell on updating Lochbuie’s Comprehensive Plan. The consultants conducted a community outreach survey, and Nora Bland 
is here to present the findings of that survey.  
 
Nora Bland, Cushing Terrell, presented a summary of their engagement efforts thus far, what is planned for the next month or 
so, and shared the results of the community survey.  
 
After discussion about the Comprehensive Plan Open House, it was decided to reschedule and not hold the open house on 
February 14th, 2024. Staff will work with Cushing Terrell to find a new date and time.       

         
ACTION ITEMS 

a. Ordinance 2024-690 (A) Amending Section 1-4-20 Of The Town Of Lochbuie Municipal Code To Increase The 
Penalty For Non-Criminal Violations Of The Municipal Code To A $1000 Fine Maximum From A $500 Fine 
Maximum, (B) Repealing And Readopting Chapter 10 Concerning General Offenses, (C) Moving Certain Sections 
Currently Within Chapter 10 To Other Chapters Of The Municipal Code, And (D) Revising Park Regulations 

 
Maureen Juran, Town Attorney, stated that this ordinance is a joint effort between her office, the Town Prosecutor’s office, and 
the police department. There have been recent changes in state law, and the Town’s processes are outdated based on the new 
legislation. There were several offenses listed in our code that we do not prosecute in our Municipal Court, and that we do not 
think would be in our best judgement to bring to Municipal Court. Those offenses will be sent to district or county court. This 
ordinance also raises the potential penalty for fireworks in Town and moves provisions about liquor licensees that are handled on 
an administrative level to another section of code.  
 
Chief McCoy stated that serious offenses will be sent to district or county court. This is already the practice; it will just be laid 
out more clearly in the code. Our code is very strict on fireworks, and the types of fireworks that are legal in the state are not 
legal in Lochbuie. The board could look at allowing the same fireworks that are legal in Colorado, if they wish.  
 
Mayor Mahoney replied that he would be open to a discussion about fireworks.  
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery seconded by Trustee White to approve Ordinance 2024-690 (A) Amending Section 1-4-
20 20 Of The Town Of Lochbuie Municipal Code To Increase The Penalty For Non-Criminal Violations Of The Municipal Code 
To A $1000 Fine Maximum From A $500 Fine Maximum, (B) Repealing And Readopting Chapter 10 Concerning General 
Offenses, (C) Moving Certain Sections Currently Within Chapter 10 To Other Chapters Of The Municipal Code, And (D) 
Revising Park Regulations. Motion carried 7-0.  
 

b. Public Hearing to Consider A Resolution Approving A Conditional Use Permit To Operate A Gas Station At 17731 
County Road 2  

The hearing will be continued to February 6, 2024. 
 
Mayor Mahoney opened the public hearing at 7:12 PM.  
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery seconded by Trustee Bristow to continue the public hearing for the consideration of a 
resolution approving a conditional use permit to operate a gas station at 17731 County Road 2 to February 6, 2024. Motion 
carried 7-0.   

17



 
Mayor Mahoney closed the public hearing at 7:13 PM.  
   
STAFF REPORTS 

A. Finance/Treasurer             
 
Denise Rademacher, Finance Director, shared that she is working on year end, which is one of the busiest times of the year. The 
1099’s are finished, and she is working on the w-2’s, which must be submitted electronically this year. The auditors were at 
town hall in December doing some pre audit work. They will be back in March and hope to have the audit ready to present by 
the end of May. The financial statements in the packet tonight are for both November and December. The December financials 
are not audited, so those may be changing. The loan application for financing for the elevated storage tank has been submitted, 
we are waiting to hear how much funding we will receive for this project. The 2024 budget is completed and has been sent to 
DOLA.  
                                                                                                              

B. Police           
 
Chief McCoy shared that all the police department positions are currently filled, and activity has been down a bit.  
                                                                                                                                  

C. Water/Wastewater        
 
Wayne Ramey, Ramey Environmental Compliance, reported that there are no major differences from last year at this time. The 
wastewater plant has seen a little increased flow, especially from Brighton. Dewatering is about the same as last year, and water 
production is a little more than last year, mostly due to construction water. There were a few complaints from Silver Peaks about 
lowered water pressure, which was related to construction water being used in the mornings.  
             

D. Public Works                       
 
Chris Larmon, Public Works Director, stated that they made it through the cold, though it is challenging to deal with storms like 
this as the cold weather really impacts the effectiveness of the deicing materials. The tandem that was purchased is in Colorado 
Spring and will hopefully arrive to us early this year. Public works has started demolishing the skate park, as recommended by 
CIRSA. They are also putting together a 2024 road maintenance plan that includes upgrading crosswalks and pavement 
markings for pedestrian crossings. Greenway Trail is under construction. The resurfacing of 168th Ave is set to be bid out by 
Adams County in February. He is working on amending the IGA Lochbuie has with Brighton for if and when there are traffic 
signals on County Road 2.  
 
Trustee White was happy to see the guardrail put up on County Road 2, and inquired if there would be one put up on the same 
road in front of the new park.  
 
Chris Larmon stated that the construction company will be installing boulders along the road to keep the park safe.  
  

E. Community Development                    
 
Christopher Kennedy, Community Development Director, shared that the developer for the Fruition development expects to 
submit their application soon. A company is interested in building a soil and mulch distribution company near the wastewater 
plant, and we are working with them. Starbucks has submitted their building permit, and it is under review. Construction could 
start in late spring or early summer. The Blue Lake developer is in the process of selling the remaining 194 lots to a builder. 
Home construction will continue this year in Silver Peaks. Lochbuie Station is nearing completion and will probably come to a 
close at some point this year. The notice of public hearing sign at the QuikTrip location was not put up in time by the developer, 
so we continued that public hearing to February 6, 2024.  
 
Trustee Tapey inquired about the Bromley developers who are interested in building a project in Silver Peaks. Will residents 
have an opportunity to share their thoughts on this project?  
 
Christopher Kennedy stated that the project is under review, they intend on having the application before the board in the next 
few months.  

18



Maureen Juran stated that this development project would be one of the times that the board acts as a judge. The project will 
come before the board in the public hearing and the board will act in a quasi-judicial capacity to determine whether the project 
moves forward. The board must make their decision only based on evidence that is presented during that public hearing, so the 
trustees must remain neutral on this topic until that hearing. 
 
Christopher Kennedy added that it will be a public hearing, so residents will be able to come and voice their opinions.  
 
Maureen Juran stated that the trustees can take what the public says during that hearing into account when making their decision. 
                                                                                                                                    

F. Town Clerk  
 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk, shared the Resource Central 2023 annual report. 
 
Trustee Coen inquired if a cost benefit analysis could be done to see if this program should be continued.  
 
Trustee White inquired if photos of the garden boxes could be added to the website.   
                

G. Human Resources 
 
Jhazmin Thomas, Human Resources Manager, shared that the Town currently has 30 employees and four vacancies. The board 
approved five positions for 2024, and one of those has been hired. The other four will be posted shortly. One of the problems we 
are facing is finding the space to hold the four employees. She shared statistics of employee turnover and retention from 2022. 
She found, from exit interviews, that the reasons employees, especially from the police department, were leaving was due to pay 
and lack of benefits. There were changes made in 2023, and turnover has gone down. She thanked the board for approving the 
police department step program for pay, and she is working on lowering turnover to 10%. Everything on the website and 
Facebook is going well, there are a healthy amount of website users.  
 
Trustee Coen thanked Jhazmin Thomas for the work she has done on turnover and retention.  
 
Trustee Wescott asked if the trash pickup days could be added to the calendar on the website.  
          

H. Town Administrator    
 
AJ Euckert, Town Administrator, shared that staff is working on the 2023 annual report. Now that the 2024 budget is approved, 
he is creating a workplan for priorities identified in the budget. There is a special meeting on Monday, February 12th. He will 
look at new options for the comprehensive plan open house. He will also plan a meeting for the board committee that is working 
on planning the 50th Anniversary to give an update on where we are, and finalizing how that day will look. He is looking at 
options for office space.  
 
MAYOR AND TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
Trustee Wescott thanked staff for their work. She suggested putting together some information for the comprehensive plan that 
could be given out at the schools during conferences.  
 
Trustee White commented on the election results and the roles and responsibilities of the trustees. 
 
Trustee Bristow made a motion to immediately allow retail and medical marijuana sales within the Town of Lochbuie, Colorado, 
and a secondary motion to immediately allow production, cultivation, manufacturing, testing, transporting, and off premise 
storage to be allowed in commercially zoned areas, and areas east of I-76 where land may be purchased and then annexed into 
the Town of Lochbuie. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding holding a work session to discuss this topic further.  
 
Mayor Mahoney and Trustees Coen, White, Bristow, and Tapey voted yes to holding a work session. Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery 
voted no. Trustee Wescott abstained from voting as it was unclear the exact reason for holding the work session.  

19



 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Trustee Coen seconded by Trustee Bristow to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Mahoney adjourned the meeting at 8:01 PM. 
 
 

The Board may convene a lawfully called executive session at any time during a regular or special meeting of the Board. 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   ________                        
Heather Bowen       Michael Mahoney 
Town Clerk        Mayor  

 
 

  
 

 

20



Agenda Item Summary 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:   Lease Purchase Agreement  
 
PRESENTED BY: Chris Larmon, Public Works Director 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Staff recommends approving Resolution No. 2024-10, Approving the Form of the 
Lease/Purchase Agreement with Clayton Holdings, LLC for the Municipal Lease/Purchase of a 
new John Deere 410 P Backhoe.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Public Works Department utilizes a variety of vehicles and equipment to provide essential 
services to our residents. These services include water and sewer service, parks, road and right-
of-way maintenance, and snow removal. 
 
Much of our equipment serves multiple purposes. A backhoe is no exception; it is genuinely the 
Swiss Army knife of a public works fleet, as it can be fitted with mutable bucket types and 
hydraulically powered implements like power hammers for breaking concrete and grapple claws 
for picking up debris.  This unit will be used for excavation work, cleaning drainage ways, road 
and utility maintenance projects, snow removal, and other tasks. 
 
This unit will replace our current backhoe, a 2000 Case backhoe. This unit is nearly inoperable. 
The hydraulic pump is worn out and needs to be replaced. Almost every hose and hydraulic 
cylinder needs to be rebuilt or replaced. Several hydraulic valves have internal bypasses, causing 
the machine to operate erratically. At 24 years old, this unit is past due for replacement.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The total cost for the new John Deere 410P Backhoe is $172,890, paid for via bi-annual 
payments of $14,716.80 ($29,433.60 annually), ending on February 9, 2031. The first payment 
is due on August 9, 2024.  
 
Funds are allocated in the 2024 budget for this lease/purchase in accounts 10-441-4476, 10-
442-4476, 50-410-4476, and 55-410-4476.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 
 
Staff recommends the following motion: 

21



 
1) “I move to approve Resolution No. 2024-10 Approving the Form of the Municipal 

Lease/Purchase Agreement with Clayton Holdings, LLC for the acquisition of a new 
John Deere 410P backhoe in an amount not to exceed $172,890.” 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Resolution No. 2024-10 - A Resolution of The Board of Trustees of the Town of Lochbuie, 
Colorado, Approving the Form of the Lease/Purchase Agreement with Clayton Holdings, LLC, St. 
Louis, Missouri, and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery Thereof  
 
 

22



1 
 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

COUNTIES OF ADAMS AND WELD 

COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 - 10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN 

OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO, APPROVING THE FORM OF THE 

STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH 

CLAYTON HOLDINGS, LLC, ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI AND 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY THEREOF  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Lochbuie (the "Town") is a duly organized statutory 

municipality and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees finds that it is necessary and desirable and in the 

best interest of the Town to enter into the State & Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement with 

Clayton Holdings, LLC, as lessor the ("Lessor"), for the property ("Equipment") described therein 

(the "Lease") attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town intends, in accordance with the requirements of and to the extent 

authorized by law, to fully budget and appropriate sufficient funds to make the "Rental Payments," 

as defined in the Lease, including Schedule C thereof, scheduled to come due during each fiscal 

year, and such funds shall not be expended for other purposes. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  The meeting at which this Resolution was considered was open to the public 

and held following posting of legal public notice. 

 

 Section 2.  The Lease, in substantially the same form as attached to this Resolution, and the 

terms and performance thereof, is hereby approved, and the Town Administrator is hereby 

authorized to execute and deliver the Lease, on behalf of the Town, with such changes therein as 

shall be approved by the Town Administrator and Town Attorney, with such approval to be 

conclusively evidenced by the Town Administrator's execution thereof. 

 

Section 3.    The officers, officials, agents and employees of the Town are hereby 

authorized and directed to take such further action and execute such other documents, certificates 

and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution, and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the Town with respect to the 

Lease. 

 

Section 4.  The Town hereby designates the Lease as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" 

as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code. The aggregate face amount of 

all tax-exempt obligations (including the Lease but excluding private activity bonds other than 

23



2 
 

qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) issued or to be issued by the Town and all subordinate entities thereof 

during the current calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000.  The Town 

and all subordinate entities thereof will not issue in excess of $10,000,000 of tax-exempt 

obligations (including the Lease but excluding private activity bonds other than qualified 

501(c)(3) bonds) during the current calendar year without first providing Lessor with an opinion 

of nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-exempt municipal obligations acceptable to 

Lessor, that the designation of the Lease as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” will not be 

adversely affected. 

 

Section 5.   Severability.  If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase 

adopted by this Resolution is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining parts, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases adopted by 

this Resolution.  The Board of Trustees hereby declares that it would have passed the Resolution, 

including each part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the 

fact that one or more parts, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases could 

subsequently be declared invalid. 

  

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  

  

ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF February, 2024. 

 

      TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

 

 

            

                                                                        Michael Mahoney, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:             

Heather Bowen, Town Clerk 

24



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Form of Lease/Purchase Agreement 

 

 

25



 
 

 

 
Sent via Email: Frank.Hill@CommerceBank.com 

February 6, 2024 

 

Denise Rademacher, Finance Director 

Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 

703 Weld County Road 37 

Lochbuie, Colorado 80603 

 

Re:  Financing for One (1) 2024 John Deere 410P Backhoe. 

 
 
Dear Ms. Rademacher: 

 
Please find the enclosed documentation for your review and completion.  An instruction sheet has been included as a guide 
to assist you with the process.  Once you have completed and returned the required documentation to Clayton Holdings, 
LLC the transaction can be funded.  The documentation has been filled out according to the terms and amount shown on 
the formal proposal.  If you have questions or comments please call. 
 
Clayton Holdings, LLC is listed as Lessor in this State and Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement.  For your convenience, 
we have listed the documentation that we require before closing: 
 

 The Lease WITH ALL SCHEDULES EXECUTED CORRECTLY 

 Evidence of Insurance in accordance with Section 17 of the Lease in a form satisfactory to Lessor 

 

 

   

 

 

If you have any questions regarding the above documentation please feel free to contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Nancy Mullen 

Municipal Lease Administrator 

Email:  nancy.mullen@commercebank.com 

Phone:  617-584-2868 

 

 

  

26

mailto:nancy.mullen@commercebank.com


  

 

 
Documentation Instructions 

 
Please complete using BLUE INK and return all original documents via FedEx or Certified Mail to: 

Commerce Bank c/o Beth Blumenthal 
8000 Forsyth Blvd., Suite 510, St. Louis, MO 63105 

Call  with any questions during completion 
 
State and Municipal Lease/ Purchase Agreement 

 An individual that is authorized by the Lessee should sign and date in the space where indicated. 
 The signed lease should be dated by Lessee with a date that is on or after meeting date of approved 

 ordinance/resolution. 
 Review and verify the EIN number. 

Schedule A – Description of the Equipment 
 Add VINs and/or SNs, if applicable. 
 Authorized individual should review location and description of equipment and sign and date the form where 

 indicated.  

Schedule B - Delivery and Acceptance Certificate 
         Authorized individual should review and/or complete Payment Directions and sign and date the form 
  where indicated. 
 
Schedule C – Amortization/Payment Schedule 

 Authorized individual should sign and date the form where indicated. 

Schedule D – Opinion of Counsel 
 The attached is a “Draft” form of the Opinion.  This should be provided to your counsel along with a copy of the 

lease.   
  Your Counsel should provide an original of this Opinion on their letterhead, signed and dated. 
  The Date of the Opinion should be on or after the date the lease is signed by the Lessee. 
 The subject line date reference should be the same date the lease was entered into as stated on page one of the 

Lease/Purchase Agreement.  

Schedule E-1 -  Resolution 
 The Resolution should be signed by the authorized signatory. 
 Secretary or Clerk of the Board should attest and sign where indicated. 

Schedule E-2 – Incumbency and Authorization Certificate 
 The Secretary or Clerk of the Board should complete the blank lines in the first paragraph and attest at the 

bottom of the form. 
 In Section A, review and confirm authorized signers.  This should include any persons who will be signing forms, 

including payment request forms for the Escrow account. 
 Authorized signers should sign in the signatory column in Section A. 
 In Section B, list all individuals authorized to confirm disbursement information.  Include name, title, phone 

number and alternative phone number. 
 Signer of this Certificate cannot be listed under Section A as authorized to execute the Agreements. 

Schedule F – Essential Use/Source of Funds Letter 
 Complete all blank lines in entirety. 
 Authorized individual should sign and date the form where indicated. 

Schedule G – Proof of Insurance 
 Complete all blank lines of the insurance agent information. 
 Authorized individual should sign and date the form where indicated.  

27



  

 

 Contact your insurance provider for a certificate of insurance in accordance with Section of the Lease and 
naming Clayton Holdings, LLC as both co-loss payee and additional insured under the property damage, and as 
additional insured under the general liability policy 

 Upon acceptance of the Equipment and upon each insurance renewal date, Lessee will deliver to Lessor a 
 certificate evidencing such insurance.  

Schedule H – Authorization for Preauthorized Payments (if utilizing this free service) 
 Complete all blanks on the form. 
 Include a voided check or deposit slip. 
 Authorized individual should sign and date the form where indicated.  

8038-G IRS Form and Questionnaire 
 Verify Lessee's Federal Identification number in Part 1, box 2 of the 8038G form. 
 Sign, date and type the name of the individual signing this document, unless already completed. 
 Verify information on Questionnaire, review instructions, and sign and date where indicated. 

 
 

28



  

1 

 

CLAYTON HOLDINGS, LLC 
 

STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

Lease Number: 5000308-007 
 

 
This State and Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement (the "Lease") is made and entered into on this, the Sixth day of February, 2024 by and between 
Clayton Holdings, LLC with offices at 8000 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 510, St. Louis, Missouri 63105 (together with its successors and assigns, herein 
called the "Lessor"), and Town of Lochbuie, Colorado with its principal address at 703 Weld County Road 37, Lochbuie, Colorado 80603 (together with 
its permitted successors and assigns, herein called the "Lessee"), wherein it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. LEASE OF EQUIPMENT:  Lessee hereby requests Lessor to acquire the equipment described in Schedule A attached hereto and made a part 

hereof.  Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, Lessor agrees to lease to Lessee and Lessee agrees to lease from Lessor the equipment 
described in Schedule A, with all replacements, repairs, additions and accessories incorporated therein or affixed thereto (herein collectively called 
the "Equipment"). 
 

2. DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE:  Lessee agrees to order the Equipment on behalf of Lessor from the supplier of such Equipment.  Lessor will not 
be liable for specific performance of this Lease or for damages if for any reason the supplier delays or fails to fill the order.  Lessee will cause the 
Equipment to be delivered at the location specified in Schedule A (the "Equipment Location").  Lessee is solely responsible for the selection of the 
Equipment and the vendor from which the Equipment is purchased.  Lessee will pay all transportation and other costs, if any, incurred in connection 
with the delivery and installation of the Equipment.  Any delay in such delivery will not affect the validity of this Lease. To the extent funds are 
deposited with a bank or trust company in an escrow fund for the acquisition of the Equipment, such funds shall be disbursed as provided in the 
agreement pursuant to which such fund is established (the “Escrow Agreement”).  Lessee will immediately accept the Equipment as soon as it has 
been delivered and is operational, or as soon as any manufacturer or vendor pre-acceptance test period has expired.  In the event the Equipment 
is not accepted by Lessee within thirty (30) days from the date of its delivery, Lessor, at Lessor's sole option, will have the right to terminate this 
Lease.  Lessee will evidence its acceptance of the Equipment by executing and delivering to Lessor a delivery and acceptance certificate in the form 
of Schedule B attached hereto and made a part hereof (the "Acceptance Certificate").  Lessee hereby authorizes the Lessor to add to this Lease 
and to any other description of the Equipment the serial number of each item of Equipment, when available. 
 

3. TERM:  This Lease will become effective upon the execution hereof by Lessee and Lessor. Lessee’s obligation to pay rent under this Lease will 
commence on the date that funds are advanced by Lessor to pay the vendor of the Equipment or are deposited with a bank or trust company in an 
escrow fund pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, if any (the "Start Date"), and will extend for an initial term through the end of Lessee's fiscal year 
containing the Start Date.  The term of this Lease is subject to renewal on a year-to-year basis for the number of annual fiscal periods necessary to 
comprise the lease term as set forth in Schedule C attached hereto and made a part hereof (the "Lease Term").  At the end of the initial term and 
any renewal term, Lessee will be deemed to have exercised its option to renew this Lease for the next annual renewal term, unless Lessee has 
exercised its right to terminate the Lease pursuant to Section 8 below. 

 
4. RENT:  Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the rental payments for the Equipment as set forth in Schedule C (the "Rental Payments").  A portion of each 

Rental Payment is paid as and represents the payment of interest as set forth in Schedule C.  The Rental Payments will be payable without notice 
or demand, at the office of Lessor (or such other place as Lessor may designate in writing, from time to time) and will commence on the Start Date.  
For clarity, Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to update Schedule C with the Start Date and actual due dates for Rental Payments based upon the 
frequency of payments stated on Schedule C.  Any notice, invoicing, purchase orders, quotations or other forms or procedures requested by Lessee 
in connection with payment will be fully explained and provided to Lessor sufficiently in advance of the payment due date for the completion thereof 
by Lessor prior to such payment date, but none of the foregoing will be a condition to Lessee's obligation to make any such payment. If Lessee fails 
to pay any Rental Payment or any other sums under this Lease within ten (10) days when the same becomes due, Lessee shall pay to Lessor (in 
addition to and not in lieu of other rights of Lessor) a late charge equal to the greater of five (5%) percent of such delinquent amount or Twenty-Five 
Dollars ($25.00), but in any event not more than the maximum amount permitted by law.  Such late charge shall be payable by Lessee upon demand 
by Lessor and shall be deemed rent hereunder. Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the late charge (i) does not constitute interest, (ii) is an 
estimate of the costs Lessor will incur as a result of the late payment and (iii) is reasonable in amount. Lessor and Lessee understand and intend 
that the obligation of Lessee to pay Rental Payments hereunder will constitute a current expense of Lessee and will not in any way be construed to 
be a debt of Lessee in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness 
by Lessee.  EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN SECTION 8 HEREOF, LESSEE’S OBLIGATION TO MAKE RENTAL PAYMENTS SHALL 
BE ABSOLUTE AND UNCONDITIONAL IN ALL EVENTS AND WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY SETOFF, DEFENSE, COUNTERCLAIM, 
ABATEMENT OR RECOUPMENT FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the interest portion of the Rental Payments on Schedule C will be adjusted, and Lessor will provide Lessee a revised 
Schedule C reflecting such adjustment in the event that it is determined that any of the interest portions of Rental Payments set forth in Schedule C 
may not be excluded from Lessor's gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Lessee agrees 
that the interest portion of the Rental Payments on Schedule C will be adjusted commencing with the first day of the next succeeding fiscal year of 
the Lessee, but only if this Lease is renewed for such fiscal year, and thereafter, so that Lessor will be in the same after-tax position that it would 
have been in had such payment been excluded from the gross income of Lessor under Section 103 of the Code.  

 
5. AUTHORITY AND AUTHORIZATION: Lessee represents, warrants and covenants that (a) it will do or cause to be done all things necessary to 

preserve and keep in full force and effect (i) its existence, and (ii) subject to Section 8 hereof, this Lease; (b) it has complied with all bidding and 
budgeting requirements where necessary and by due notification has presented this Lease to Lessee’s governing body for approval and adoption 
as a valid obligation on its part and that all requirements have been met and procedures have been followed to ensure the enforceability of this 

29



  

2 

Lease; (c) it has sufficient appropriations or other funds available to pay all amounts due hereunder for the current fiscal year period; (d) no event 
has occurred and no condition exists which, upon the execution of this Lease or with notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a default 
under any debt, revenue or purchase obligation which it has issued or to which it is a party (the "Obligation") nor has it been in default under any 
Obligation at any time during the past five (5) years, and (e) no lease, rental agreement or contract for purchase, to which Lessee has been a party, 
at any time during the past five (5) years, has been terminated by Lessee as a result of insufficient funds being appropriated in any fiscal period. 

 
6. REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES REGARDING TAX-EXEMPT STATUS:  Lessee warrants and covenants that (i) it is a 

state, or a political subdivision thereof, within the meaning of Section 103 of the Code, and the related regulations and rulings thereunder; (ii) subject 
to Section 8 hereof, Lessee intends that its obligation under this Lease will constitute an enforceable obligation issued by or on behalf of a state, or 
political subdivision thereof, such that the interest portions of Rental Payments as shown in Schedule C, will not be includable in the gross income 
of Lessor for the purposes of federal income taxation; (iii) this Lease represents a valid deferred payment obligation of Lessee for the amount herein 
set forth; (iv) Lessee has the legal capacity to enter into this Lease and is not in contravention of any state, county, district, city or town statute, rule, 
regulation or other governmental provision; (v) during the Lease Term, the Equipment will not be used in a trade or business of any other person or 
entity; (vi) Lessee will complete and file on a timely basis, Internal Revenue Service form 8038G or 8038GC, as appropriate, in the manner set forth 
in Section 149(e) of the Code; and (vii) Lessee will not take any action or permit the omission of any action reasonably within its control which action 
or omission will cause the interest portion of any Rental Payment hereunder to be includable in gross income for federal income taxation purposes. 
 
Lessee hereby designates the Lease as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code.  The aggregate face amount 
of all tax-exempt obligations (including the Lease, but excluding private activity bonds other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) issued or to be issued by 
Lessee and all subordinate entities thereof during the calendar year in which the Start Date occurs is not reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000.  
Lessee and all subordinate entities thereof will not issue in excess of $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (including the Lease, but excluding private 
activity bonds other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) during the calendar year in which the Start Date occurs, without first providing Lessor with an opinion 
of nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-exempt municipal obligations acceptable to Lessor, that the designation of the Lease as a “qualified 
tax-exempt obligation” will not be adversely affected. 

  
Lessee further represents as follows:  

 

(a) The estimated total costs of the Equipment will not be less than the total principal amount of the Rental Payments. 
 

(b) The Equipment has been ordered or is expected to be ordered within six months of the effective date of this Lease, and the Equipment is 
expected to be delivered and installed, and the Vendor fully paid, within eighteen months of the effective date of this Lease. 

 

(c) Lessee has not created or established, and does not expect to create or establish, any sinking fund or other similar fund (i) that is 
reasonably expected to be used to pay the Rental Payments, or (ii) that may be used solely to prevent a default in the payment of Rental 
Payments. 

 

(d) The Equipment has not been, and is not expected to be, sold or otherwise disposed of by Lessee, either in whole or in major part, prior to 
the final Rental Payment. 

 

(e) To the best of Lessee's knowledge, information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable. 
 
7. APPROPRIATIONS AND ESSENTIAL USE: Lessee reasonably believes that sufficient funds can be obtained to make all Rental Payments during 

the Lease Term.  The responsible financial officer of Lessee will do all things lawfully within his or her power to obtain funds from which the Rental 
Payments, including any Rental Payments required by Section 4 hereof, may be made, including making provisions for such payments, to the extent 
necessary, in each proposed annual budget submitted for approval in accordance with applicable procedures of Lessee.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the decision whether or not to budget or appropriate funds or to extend this Lease for any subsequent annual fiscal period is solely within 
the discretion of the then current governing body of Lessee.  Lessee currently intends to make the Rental Payments for the full Lease Term if funds 
are legally available therefor, and in that regard Lessee represents that (a) the use of the Equipment is essential to its proper, efficient, and economic 
functioning or to the services that it provides to its citizens; (b) Lessee has an immediate need for and expects to make immediate use of substantially 
all the Equipment, which need is not temporary or expected to diminish in the foreseeable future; and (c) the Equipment will be used by the Lessee 
only for the purpose of performing one or more of its governmental or proprietary functions consistent with the permissible scope of its authority. 

 
8. NONAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS: In the event insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted to pay Rental Payments required by Section 4 

hereof and any other amounts payable under this Lease, for any fiscal period in which the Rental Payments for the Equipment are due under this 
Lease, then, without penalty, liability or expense to Lessee, this Lease will thereafter terminate on the last day of the fiscal period for which 
appropriations were made, except as to (i) the portions of the Rental Payments herein agreed upon for which funds have been appropriated and 
budgeted or are otherwise available and (ii) Lessee's other obligations and liabilities under this Lease relating to, accruing or arising prior to such 
termination.  Lessee will, not less than sixty (60) days prior to the end of such applicable fiscal period, in writing, notify Lessor of such occurrence, 
but failure to give such notice will not prevent such termination.  In the event of such termination, Lessee agrees to immediately cease use of the 
Equipment and peaceably surrender possession of the Equipment to Lessor on the day of such termination, packed for shipment in accordance with 
manufacturer's specifications and eligible for manufacturer's maintenance, and freight prepaid and insured to any location in the continental United 
States designated by Lessor, all at Lessee's expense.  Lessor may exercise all available legal and equitable rights and remedies in retaking 
possession of the Equipment.  If Lessee fails to cease use and deliver possession of the Equipment to Lessor upon termination of this Lease under 
this section, the termination shall nevertheless be effective but Lessee shall be responsible for the payment of damages in an amount equal to (a) 
the portion of Rental Payments thereafter coming due that is attributable to the number of days after the termination during which Lessee fails to 
cease use and deliver possession of the Equipment and (b) any other loss suffered by Lessor as a result of Lessee’s failure to deliver possession 
of the Equipment. 

 
9. EXCLUSION OF WARRANTIES; LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY; DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES:  LESSEE HAS SELECTED 

BOTH THE EQUIPMENT AND THE VENDOR(S) FROM WHOM LESSOR IS TO PURCHASE THE EQUIPMENT IN RELIANCE HEREON. 
LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE EQUIPMENT IS OF A SIZE, DESIGN AND CAPACITY SELECTED BY LESSEE, THAT 
LESSOR IS NOT A MANUFACTURER, VENDOR, DISTRIBUTOR OR LICENSOR OF SUCH EQUIPMENT, AND THAT LESSOR LEASES THE 

30



  

3 

EQUIPMENT AS IS AND HAS NOT MADE, AND DOES NOT HEREBY MAKE, ANY REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE MERCHANTABILITY, CONDITION, QUALITY, DURABILITY, DESIGN, OPERATION, 
FITNESS FOR USE, OR SUITABILITY OF THE EQUIPMENT IN ANY RESPECT WHATSOEVER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR FOR THE 
PURPOSES AND USES OF LESSEE, OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT THERETO INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF TITLE OR AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OR ANY 
WARRANTIES ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE OR PRACTICE, ALL OF WHICH ARE SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMED BY 
LESSOR AND IN NO EVENT SHALL LESSOR BE OBLIGATED OR LIABLE FOR ACTUAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR OTHER 
DAMAGES OF OR TO LESSEE OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE EQUIPMENT, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE SALE, LEASE, USE, PERFORMANCE OR MAINTENANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING 
INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF REVENUE OR PROFIT, LOSS OF TIME OR BUSINESS, OR ANY SIMILAR LOSS, 
EVEN IF ANY SUCH PERSON IS ADVISED IN ADVANCE OF THE POSSIBILITY OR CERTAINTY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND EVEN IF LESSEE 
ASSERTS OR ESTABLISHES A FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY PROVIDED IN THIS LEASE. 

 
Lessee acknowledges that neither the original vendor nor licensor of the Equipment (including the salespersons of any of them) is an agent of 
Lessor, nor are they authorized to waive or alter any terms of this Lease.  Lessee hereby waives any claim (including any claim based on strict or 
absolute liability in tort) it might have against Lessor or any assignee of the Lessor for any loss, damage or expense caused by or with respect to 
the Equipment.  Lessor hereby assigns to Lessee during the Lease Term, to the extent permitted by law and so long as no Event of Default has 
occurred pursuant to Section 20 below, all manufacturer's warranties, if any, that it may have with respect to the Equipment, and Lessor authorizes 
Lessee to obtain the customary services furnished in connection with such warranties at Lessee's expense. Lessor authorizes Lessee, to the extent 
permitted by law, to enforce in its own name any warranty, representation or other claim enforceable against the manufacturer.  Lessor assumes no 
responsibility for shipment, delivery, installation or maintenances, and all claims of Lessee with respect thereto, whether for delay, damage or 
otherwise, will be made against the manufacturer.  Lessor, at its option, may provide in its purchase order that the manufacturer agrees that any of 
such claims may be made by Lessee directly against the manufacturer.  The obligation of Lessee to pay the Rental Payments as defined in Section 
4 will not be abated, impaired or reduced by reason of any claims of Lessee with respect to the Equipment, including but not limited to its condition, 
quality, workmanship, delivery, shipment, installation, defects or otherwise. 
 

10. TITLE, SECURITY INTEREST:  During the Lease Term, title to the Equipment is deemed to be in Lessee so long as no Event of Default pursuant 
to Section 20 below has occurred and/or this Lease has not been terminated pursuant to the provisions of Section 8above, subject to a first priority 
security interest in the Equipment which is retained by Lessor.  Upon the earlier of (i) termination of this Lease in accordance with Section 8  above 
or (ii) the occurrence of an Event of Default by Lessee pursuant to Section 20 below, title will immediately revert to Lessor free of any right, title or 
interest of Lessee unless Lessor elects otherwise. In order to secure all of Lessee's obligations hereunder, Lessee hereby (a) to the extent permitted 
by law, grants to Lessor a first and prior security interest in any and all rights, titles and interest of Lessee in this Lease, the Equipment and in all 
additions, attachments, accessions, accessories, replacements and improvements thereto, now or hereafter acquired, together will all rents, issues, 
income, profits and proceeds thereof, including insurance proceeds; (b) agrees that financing statements evidencing Lessor’s security interest may 
be filed; and (c) agrees to execute and deliver all certificates of title and other instruments necessary or appropriate to evidence and perfect such 
security interest.  As further security therefor, Lessee grants to Lessor a first priority security interest in the cash and negotiable instrument from time 
to time comprising the escrow fund, if any, established under the Escrow Agreement and all proceeds (cash and non-cash) thereof, and agrees with 
respect thereto that Lessor shall have all the rights and remedies of a secured party. 

 
11. PERSONAL PROPERTY:  Lessor and Lessee agree that the Equipment is, and will remain, personal property and will not be deemed to be affixed 

or attached to real property or any building thereon.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of providing notice to third parties, Lessee agrees 
that, upon Lessor’s request, it will provide the legal description of all real property where any of the Equipment is or will be installed, and Lessee 
agrees that financing statements evidencing Lessor’s security interest may be filed in the real property records.  If requested by Lessor, Lessee will, 
at Lessee's expense, furnish to Lessor landlord or mortgagee waiver with respect to the Equipment. 

 
12. USE; REPAIRS:  Lessee will use the Equipment in a careful manner for the use contemplated by the manufacturer of the Equipment and will comply 

with all laws, ordinances, insurance policies and regulations relating to, and will pay all costs, claims, damages, fees and charges arising out of, its 
possession, use or maintenance. Lessee, at its sole costs and expense, will maintain the Equipment according to the manufacturer's recommended 
guidelines or the equivalent and meet any and all recertification requirements and will furnish proof of such maintenance, if requested by Lessor and 
will furnish all needed servicing and parts, which parts will become part of the Equipment.  If the Equipment is such as is customarily covered by a 
maintenance agreement, Lessee will furnish Lessor with a maintenance agreement with a party satisfactory to Lessor. 

 
13. ALTERATIONS:  Lessee will not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Equipment without Lessor's prior written consent, and any 

permitted alteration or attachment which cannot be readily removed without damaging the Equipment's originally intended function or value will 
become part of the Equipment. 

 
14. LOCATION; INSPECTION:  The Equipment will not be removed from, or if the Equipment consists of rolling stock, its permanent base will not be 

changed from the Equipment Location without Lessor's prior written consent, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  Lessor will be entitled 
to enter upon the Equipment Location or elsewhere during reasonable business hours to inspect the Equipment or observe its use and operations. 

 
15. LIENS AND TAXES:  Lessee will keep the Equipment free and clear of all levies, liens and encumbrances except those created under this Lease. 

Lessee will pay, when due, all charges and taxes (federal, state and local) which may now or hereafter be imposed upon the ownership, leasing, 
rental, sale, purchase, possession or use of the Equipment, excluding however, all taxes on or measured by Lessor's income.  If Lessee fails to pay 
said charges and taxes when due, Lessor will have the right, but will not be obligated, to pay said charges and taxes.  If Lessor pays any charges 
or taxes for which Lessee is responsible or liable under this Lease, Lessee will, upon demand, reimburse Lessor therefor. 

 
16. RISK OF LOSS; DAMAGE; DESTRUCTION:  Lessee assumes all risk of loss of or damage to the Equipment from any cause whatsoever, and no 

such loss of or damage to the Equipment will relieve Lessee of the obligation to make the Rental Payments or to perform any other obligation under 
this Lease.  In the event of damage to any item of Equipment, Lessee will immediately place the same in good repair (the proceeds of any insurance 
recovery will be applied to the cost of such repair).  If Lessor determines that any item of Equipment is lost, stolen, destroyed or damaged beyond 
repair, Lessee, at the option of Lessor, will (a) replace the same with like equipment in good repair; or (b) on the next Rental Payment date pay to 
Lessor (i) all amounts owed by Lessee under this Lease, including the Rental Payment due on such date, and (ii) an amount not less than the 
balance of the Rental Payments then remaining unpaid hereunder.  In the event that Lessee is obligated to make such payment with respect to less 

31



  

4 

than all of the Equipment, Lessor will provide Lessee with the pro rata amount of the Rental Payment and the balance of the Rental Payments then 
remaining unpaid hereunder, as applicable, to be made by Lessee with respect to the Equipment which has suffered the event of loss. 

 
17. INSURANCE:  Lessee will, at its expense, maintain at all times during the Lease Term (a) fire and extended coverage, public liability and property 

damage insurance with respect to the Equipment in such amounts, covering such risks, and with such insurers as will be satisfactory to Lessor. In 
no event will the insurance limits be less than the greater of (i) an amount equal to the balance of the Rental Payments then remaining for the Lease 
Term or (ii) any minimum required by any co-insurance provisions of such insurance, (b) liability insurance that protects Lessor from liability in all 
events in form and amount satisfactory to Lessor, and (c) workers' compensation coverage as required by the laws of the state in which Lessee is 
located.  Each insurance policy required by clause (b) of the preceding sentence will name Lessee as an insured and Lessor or its assigns as an 
additional insured and loss payee, as appropriate, and each insurance policy required by the preceding sentence will contain a clause requiring the 
insurer to give Lessor at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any alteration in the terms of such policy or the cancellation thereof.  The 
proceeds of any such policies will be payable to Lessee and Lessor or its assigns, as their interest may appear.  Upon acceptance of the Equipment 
and upon each insurance renewal date, Lessee will deliver to Lessor a certificate evidencing such insurance.  In the event of any loss, damage, 
injury or accident involving the Equipment, Lessee will promptly provide Lessor with written notice hereof and make available to Lessor all information 
and documentation relating thereto.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, with Lessor's prior written consent, Lessee may self-insure against any and all 
risks for which insurance is required. 
 

18. ADVANCES:  In the event Lessee fails to maintain the insurance required by this Lease or fails to keep the Equipment in good repair and operating 
condition, Lessor may (but will be under no obligation to) purchase the required policies of insurance and pay the premiums on the same and make 
such repairs or replacements as are necessary and pay the cost thereof.  All amounts so advanced by Lessor will become additional rent payable 
by Lessee.  Lessee agrees to pay such amounts with interest thereon from the date paid at the rate of 1.5% per month or the maximum permitted 
by law, whichever is less.  Unless Lessee provides evidence of the insurance coverage required by this Lease, Lessor may purchase insurance at 
Lessee’s expense to protect Lessor’s interests hereunder.  This insurance may, but need not, protect Lessee’s interests.  The coverage that Lessor 
may purchase may not pay any claim that Lessee may make or any claim that may be made against Lessee in connection with the Equipment.  
Lessee may later cancel any insurance purchased by Lessor, but only after providing evidence that Lessee has obtained insurance as required by 
this Lease.  If Lessor purchases insurance for the Equipment, Lessee will be responsible for the costs of that insurance, including the insurance 
premium, interest and any other charges Lessor may impose in connection with the placement of the insurance, until the effective date of the 
cancellation or expiration of the insurance.  The costs of the insurance will be added as additional rent.  The costs of the insurance may be more 
than the cost of insurance Lessee may be able to obtain on its own.  

 
19. INDEMNIFICATION:  To the extent permitted by law, and solely from legally available funds, Lessee agrees to indemnify Lessor against, and hold 

Lessor harmless from, any and all claims, actions, proceedings, expenses, damages, liabilities or losses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees 
and court costs) arising in connection with the Equipment, including, but not limited to, its selection, purchase, delivery, possession, use, operation 
or return and the recovery of claims under insurance policies thereon. 

 
20. EVENTS OF DEFAULT:  The Term "Event of Default" as used in this Lease, means the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:  (a) 

Lessee fails to make any Rental Payment (or any other payment) as it becomes due in accordance with the terms of this Lease, and any such failure 
continues for ten (10) days after the date thereof; (b) Lessee fails to perform or observe any other covenant, condition or agreement to be performed 
or observed by it hereunder and such failure is not cured within ten (10) days after written notice thereof by Lessor; (c) the discovery by Lessor that 
any statement, representation or warranty made by Lessee in this Lease or in any document delivered by Lessee pursuant hereto or in connection 
herewith is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect; (d) Lessee becomes insolvent, is unable to pay its debts as they become due, 
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, applies or consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, conservator or liquidator of Lessee 
or of all or substantial part of its assets, a petition for relief is filed by Lessee under federal bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws, or a petition in a 
proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws, is filed against Lessee and is not dismissed within thirty (30) days thereafter; (e) Lessee 
suffers an adverse material change in its financial condition or operations from the date hereof and, as a result, Lessor deems itself insecure; or 
(f) Lessee is in default under any other agreement executed at any time with Lessor or its affiliates, or under any other agreement or instrument by 
which it is bound. 

 
21. REMEDIES:  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Lessor shall have the right, at its sole option, to exercise any one or more of the following 

remedies:  (a) by written notice to Lessee, declare an amount equal to all amounts then due under this Lease and all remaining Rental Payments 
which will become due during the then current fiscal year of Lessee to be immediately due and payable, whereupon the same will become 
immediately due and payable and such amounts shall thereafter bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month or the maximum rate permitted by 
applicable law, whichever is less; (b) by written notice to Lessee, request Lessee to (and Lessee agrees that it will), at Lessee's expense, promptly 
cease use and return the Equipment to Lessor in the manner set forth in Section 8  hereof, or Lessor, at its option and with or without terminating 
the Lease Term, may enter upon the premises where the Equipment is located and take immediate possession of and remove the same, without 
liability to Lessor or its agents for such entry or for damage to property or otherwise; (c) sell or lease the Equipment or sublease it for the account of 
Lessee, holding Lessee liable for (i) all Rental Payments and other payments due to the effective date of such selling, leasing or subleasing, and 
(ii) for the difference between the net purchase price, rental and other amounts paid by the purchaser, lessee or sublessee pursuant to such sale, 
lease or sublease and the remaining amounts payable by the Lessee through the end of the then current fiscal year of Lessee hereunder; and (d) 
exercise any other right, remedy or privilege which may be available to it under applicable law, including the right to (i) proceed by appropriate court 
action to enforce the terms of this Lease, (ii) recover damages for the breach of this Lease, and (iii) rescind this Lease as to any or all of the 
Equipment.  If Lessee fails to cease use and deliver possession of the Equipment upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Lessee shall be 
responsible for the payment of damages in an amount equal to (a) the portion of Rental Payments that is attributable to the number of days after the 
termination during which Lessee fails to cease use and deliver possession of the Equipment and (b) any other loss suffered by Lessor as a result of 
Lessee’s failure to cease use and deliver possession of the Equipment. 

 
In addition, Lessee will remain liable for all covenants and indemnities under this Lease and for all legal fees and other costs and expenses, including 
court costs, incurred by Lessor with respect to the enforcement of any of the remedies listed above or any other remedy available to Lessor. 
 

22. EARLY PURCHASE OPTION; PREPAYMENT:  Lessee may, upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to Lessor, and provided Lessee has fully paid 
and performed all other obligations hereunder and provided no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, pay to Lessor on any regularly 
scheduled Rental Payment date the applicable amount set forth on Schedule C attached hereto, whereupon title to the Equipment will become 

32



  

5 

unconditionally vested in Lessee, and Lessor will transfer any and all of its right, title and interest in the Equipment to Lessee as is, where is, without 
warranty, express or implied, except that Lessor will warrant to Lessee that the Equipment is free and clear of any liens created by Lessor. 
 
Upon delivery by Lessee of a final acceptance certificate, any remaining monies in any escrow fund established under the Escrow Agreement shall 
be paid to Lessor, for credit, first, to the next Rental Payment due, and, second, to the prepayment of the principal portion of future Rental Payments 
hereunder in the manner directed by Lessor, in its sole discretion, unless Lessor directs that payment of such amount be made in such other manner 
directed by Lessor that, in the opinion of nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-exempt municipal obligations satisfactory to Lessor, will not 
adversely affect the exclusion of the interest portions of Rental Payments from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  If any amount is 
applied against the outstanding principal components of Rental Payments, Schedule C attached hereto will be revised accordingly.  

 
23. DETERMINATION OF FAIR PURCHASE PRICE:  Lessee and Lessor hereby agree and determine that the Rental Payments payable during the 

Lease Term represent the fair value of the use of the Equipment and that the amount required to exercise Lessee’s option to purchase the Equipment 
pursuant to Section 22 represents the fair purchase price of the Equipment.  Lessee hereby determines that the Rental Payments do not exceed a 
reasonable amount so as to place Lessee under a practical economic compulsion to renew this Lease or to exercise its option to purchase the 
Equipment.  In making such determinations, Lessee and Lessor have given consideration to (a) the costs of the Equipment, (b) the uses and 
purposes for which the Equipment will be employed by Lessee, (c) the benefit to Lessee by reason of the acquisition and installation of the Equipment 
and the use of the Equipment pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Lease, and (d) Lessee’s option to purchase the Equipment.  Lessee 
hereby determines and declares that this Lease will result in equipment of comparable quality and meeting the same requirements and standards 
as would be necessary if the acquisition and installation of the Equipment were performed by Lessee other than pursuant to this Lease.  Lessee 
hereby determines and declares that the Lease Term does not exceed the useful life of the Equipment.  

 
24. ASSIGNMENT:  Except as expressly provided herein, Lessee will not (a) assign, transfer, pledge, hypothecate or grant any security interest in, or 

otherwise dispose of, this Lease or the Equipment or any interest in this Lease or the Equipment or (b) sublet or lend the Equipment or permit the 
Equipment to be used by anyone other than Lessee or Lessee's employees, unless Lessee obtains the prior written consent of Lessor and an opinion 
of nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-exempt municipal obligations satisfactory to Lessor that such action will not adversely affect the 
exclusion of the interest portions of the Rental Payments from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

 
Lessor, without the consent of Lessee, may assign all or any portion or portions of its right, title and interest in and to this Lease, the Equipment and 
any other documents executed with respect to this Lease, and/or grant or assign all or any portion or portions of its security interest in this Lease 
and the Equipment, in whole or in part to various assignees, their agents or trustees (each and any one hereinafter referred to as an "Assignee").  
Any such assignment to an Assignee may provide that the Lessor or the Assignee will act as a collection and paying agent for owners of certificates 
of participation in this Lease, or may provide that a third-party trustee or agent will act as collection and paying agent for any Assignee, provided that 
any such trustee or agent will maintain registration books as a register of all persons who are owners of certificates of participation or other interest 
in Rental Payments and Lessee receives written notification of the name and address of the trustee or agent and a copy of the pooling and 
fractionalization agency or trustee agreement, if any.  Any such Assignee will have all of the assigned rights of Lessor under this Lease.  Subject to 
the foregoing, this Lease will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the 
parties hereto.  Any assignment or reassignment of any of Lessor's right, title or interest in this Lease or the Equipment will be effective upon receipt 
by Lessee of a duplicate original of the counterpart document by which the assignment or reassignment is made, disclosing the name and address 
of each such Assignee and, where applicable, to whom further payments hereunder should be made.  During the Lease Term, Lessee covenants 
that it will keep a complete and accurate record of all assignments in form necessary to comply with Section 149(a) of the Code and the regulations, 
proposed or existing, from time to time promulgated thereunder.  Lessee agrees to acknowledge in writing any assignments if so required. 

 
Lessee agrees that, upon notice of assignment, if so instructed it will pay directly to the Assignee, or its trustee or agent without abatement, deduction 
or setoff all amounts which become due hereunder.  Lessee further agrees that it will not assert against any Assignee, or its trustee or agent, any 
defense, claim, counterclaim or setoff Lessee may have against Lessor. 

 
25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Each year during the term of this Lease, Lessee hereby agrees to deliver to Lessor a copy of: (i) annual audited 

financial statements within one hundred twenty (120) days of Lessee’s fiscal year-end; and (ii) within a reasonable period of time, any other financial 
information Lessor requests from time to time. 

 
26. NATURE OF AGREEMENT:  Lessor and Lessee agree that upon the due and punctual payment and performance of the installments of Rental 

Payments and other amounts and obligations under this Lease, title to the Equipment will vest permanently in Lessee as provided in this Lease, free 
and clear of any interest, lien or security of Lessor therein. 

 
27. AMENDMENTS:  This Lease may be amended or any of its terms modified in any manner by written agreement of Lessee and Lessor.  Any waiver 

of any provision of this Lease or of any right or remedy hereunder must be affirmatively and expressly made in writing and will not be implied from 
inaction, course of dealing or otherwise. 

 
28. NOTICES:  All notices to be given under this Lease must be made in writing and mailed by certified mail to the other party at its address set forth 

herein or at such address as the party may provide in writing from time to time.  Any such notice is effective upon receipt. 
 
29. SECTION HEADINGS:  All section headings contained herein are for the convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the 

scope of any provision of this Lease. 
 
30. GOVERNING LAW:  This Lease will be governed by the provisions hereof and by the laws of the State where Lessee is located. 
 
31. FURTHER ASSURANCES:  Lessee will deliver to Lessor (i) an opinion of counsel in substantially the form of Schedule D attached hereto or as 

Lessor may otherwise request; and (ii) if applicable, a certificate of a duly authorized official as to designation as a qualified tax-exempt obligation.  
Moreover, Lessee will execute or provide, as requested by Lessor, any documents and information that are reasonably necessary with respect to 
the transaction contemplated by this Lease.   

 

33



  

6 

32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Lease, together with the Schedules attached hereto and made a part hereof and other attachments hereto and other 
documents or instruments executed by Lessee and Lessor in connection herewith, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect 
to the lease of the Equipment, and this Lease will not be modified, amended, altered or changed except with the written consent of Lessee or Lessor. 

 
33. SEVERABILITY:  Any provision of this Lease found to be prohibited by law will be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without invalidating 

the remainder of this Lease. 
 
34. WAIVER:   The waiver by Lessor of any breach by Lessee of any term, covenant or condition, hereof will not operate as a waiver of any subsequent 

breach hereof.  
 
35. ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS.  The parties agree that the transaction described herein may be conducted and related documents may be stored 

by electronic means.  Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be 
authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court 
of law.  .   

 
36. ROLE OF LESSOR:  Lessor has not acted and will not act as a fiduciary for Lessee or as Lessee’s agent or municipal advisor.  Lessor has not and 

will not provide financial, legal, tax, accounting or other advice to Lessee or to any financial advisor or placement agent engaged by Lessee with 
respect to this Lease.  Lessee, its financial advisor, placement agent or municipal advisor, if any, shall each seek and obtain its own financial, legal, 
tax, accounting and other advice with respect to this Lease from its own advisors (including as it relates to structure, timing, terms and similar 
matters). 

 
ORAL AGREEMENTS OR COMMITMENTS TO LOAN MONEY, EXTEND CREDIT OR TO FORBEAR FROM ENFORCING REPAYMENT OF A DEBT 
INCLUDING PROMISES TO EXTEND OR RENEW SUCH DEBT, ARE NOT ENFORCEABLE. TO PROTECT YOU (LESSEE(S) AND US (LESSOR) 
FROM MISUNDERSTANDING OR DISAPPOINTMENT, ANY AGREEMENTS WE REACH COVERING SUCH MATTERS ARE CONTAINED IN THIS 
WRITING, WHICH IS THE COMPLETE AND EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN US EXCEPT AS WE MAY LATER AGREE 
IN WRITING TO MODIFY IT. 
 
BY SIGNING BELOW, YOU AND WE AGREE THAT THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN US. 
 
 

Lessor: Clayton Holdings, LLC 
 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 
 

Authorized Signature:  
 
\cs1\  
 
Printed Name: \cn1\  
 
Title: \ct1\  
 
Date: \d1\  
 

Authorized Signature:  
 
\s1\  
 
Printed Name: AJ Euckert  
 
Title: Town Administrator  
 
Date: \d1\   
 
EIN: 84-0743323  
 

  

34



  

7 

 

SCHEDULE A TO 
STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Lease No. 5000308-007 
 

 
Location of Equipment 

Street: 703 CR 37  
City: Lochbuie 
State: CO 
Zip Code: 80603 
Description of Equipment Equipment Cost 

One (1) 2024 John Deere 410P Backhoe S/N 1T0410PAPRFX07457 
 

$172,890.00 

 
Total  $172,890.00 

 
 
 
 

Lessee hereby certifies that the description of the property set forth above constitutes a complete and accurate 

description of all Equipment as subject to in the Lease. 

 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado  
 
Authorized Signature: \s1\  
 
Printed Name: AJ Euckert  
 
Title: Town Administrator  
 
Date: \d1\  

 
  

35



  

8 

 

SCHEDULE B TO 
STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Lease No. 5000308-007 
DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

TO: Clayton Holdings, LLC 

 

Reference is made to the State and Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement between the undersigned Town of Lochbuie, 

Colorado ("Lessee"), and Clayton Holdings, LLC ("Lessor"), dated the Sixth day of February, 2024 ("Lease") and to the 

Equipment, as such term is defined therein. In connection therewith, we hereby certify as follows: 

 

Acceptance Certifications: 

 

1. All of the Equipment has been delivered to and received by the undersigned; all installation or other work necessary 

prior to the use thereof has been completed; said Equipment has been examined and/or tested and is in good 

operating order and condition and is in all respects satisfactory to the undersigned and as represented, and said 

Equipment has been accepted by the undersigned and complies with all terms of the Lease. Consequently, you are 

hereby authorized to pay for the Equipment in accordance with the terms of any purchase orders for the same. 

 

2. In the future, in the event the Equipment fails to perform as expected or represented we will continue to honor the 

Lease in all respects and continue to make our rental and other payments thereunder in the normal course of business 

and we will look solely to the vendor, distributor or manufacturer for recourse. 

 

3. We acknowledge that Lessor is neither the vendor nor manufacturer or distributor of the Equipment and has no 

control, knowledge or familiarity with the condition, capacity, functioning or other characteristics of the Equipment. 

 

4. No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an Event of Default 

(as defined in the Lease) exists at the date hereof. 

 

5. We are currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by Section 17 of the Lease. 

 

6. The serial number for each item of Equipment which is set forth on Schedule A to the Lease is correct. 

 

Payment Direction: 
 
 

Lessor is directed to disburse the following amounts to pay the costs of the Equipment and related costs pursuant to the 

Lease and the below instructions.  Lessee agrees that the “Start Date” for Rental Payments under the Lease will be the 

date on which Lessor makes such disbursement, and Lessor is authorized to complete that date on the Payment Schedule 

attached as Schedule C to the Lease. 

Payee Name and Address 
& Description of Cost Paid (if not to Vendor) 

Amount to be Paid Payment Delivery Instructions (if not provided on attached invoice) 

 

4 Rivers Equipment, LLC 
3763 Monarch Street 
Frederick, CO  80516 
 

$172,890.00 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
ABA #121000248 
Account No. 4301264115 

Total Disbursement  $172,890.00 

 

36



  

9 

 

 

This certificate will not be considered to alter, construe, or amend the terms of the Lease. 
 
 
 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado  
 
Authorized Signature: \s1\  
 
Printed Name: AJ Euckert   
 
Title: Town Administrator  
 
Date: \d1\  

 
  

37



  

10 

 

SCHEDULE C 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 
Lessor: Clayton Holdings, LLC 
Lease Number: 5000308-007 
Capital Cost of Equipment (Principal Portion of Rental Payments): $172,890.00 
Start Date: February 9, 2024 
 
Subject to Section 8 of the Lease, Rental Payments are due on the dates and in the amounts shown below: 
 

 
 
In the event Lessee desires to prepay this Lease, it may do so in whole, but not in part, at a purchase price equal to (a) 
the then current outstanding principal balance shown above; plus (b) a prepayment premium calculated as a percentage 
of the then current outstanding principal balance, in the following amount:  3%,with respect to any prepayment during the 
first full year of the Lease Term; 2%, with respect to any prepayment during the second full year of the Lease Term; and 
1%, with respect to any prepayment during the third full year of the Lease Term and thereafter; plus (c) unpaid interest 
accrued on the outstanding principal balance to the prepayment date; and plus (d) all other amounts then payable under 
this Lease.   There is no prepayment penalty if Lessee is using funds other than proceeds of a grant or an actual or 
anticipated refinancing. 
 
 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 
 
Authorized Signature: \s1\  
 
Printed Name: AJ Euckert  
 
Title: Town Administrator  
 
Date: \d1\  
 

  

Outstanding

Rental Payment Payment Amount Credited Amount Credited Principal

Date Amount to Interest to Capital Cost Balance

8/9/2024 $14,716.80 $4,201.23 $10,515.57 $162,374.43

2/9/2025 $14,716.80 $3,945.70 $10,771.10 $151,603.33

8/9/2025 $14,716.80 $3,683.96 $11,032.84 $140,570.49

2/9/2026 $14,716.80 $3,415.86 $11,300.94 $129,269.55

8/9/2026 $14,716.80 $3,141.25 $11,575.55 $117,694.00

2/9/2027 $14,716.80 $2,859.96 $11,856.84 $105,837.16

8/9/2027 $14,716.80 $2,571.84 $12,144.96 $93,692.20

2/9/2028 $14,716.80 $2,276.72 $12,440.08 $81,252.12

8/9/2028 $14,716.80 $1,974.43 $12,742.37 $68,509.75

2/9/2029 $14,716.80 $1,664.79 $13,052.01 $55,457.74

8/9/2029 $14,716.80 $1,347.62 $13,369.18 $42,088.56

2/9/2030 $14,716.80 $1,022.75 $13,694.05 $28,394.51

8/9/2030 $14,716.80 $689.99 $14,026.81 $14,367.70

2/9/2031 $14,716.80 $349.10 $14,367.70 $0.00

TOTALS: $206,035.20 $33,145.20 $172,890.00

38



  

11 

 

SCHEDULE D TO 

STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

OPINION OF COUNSEL 

(To be on Letterhead of Lessee's Counsel) 
 

 

 
SEE ATTACHED 

 
 
 

39



  

12 

SCHEDULE E-1 TO 
STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Lease No. 5000308-007 
  

 

 

SEE ATTACHED 

 

 

  

40



  

13 

SCHEDULE E-2 TO 
STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Lease No. 5000308-007 
 

 
INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORIZATION CERTIFICATE  

 

The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting \t2\_________________ of Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 
(“Lessee”) certifies as follows: 

 

A. Authorized Signers.  The following listed persons are duly elected or appointed and acting officials of 
Lessee (the “Officials”) in the capacity set forth opposite their respective names below, and the signature of each such 
Official appearing below is the true and genuine signature of that Official.  By order of Lessee’s governing body, the Officials 
identified below have been duly authorized, on behalf of Lessee, to negotiate, execute and deliver the Equipment 
Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of February 6, 2024, by and between Lessee and Clayton Holdings, LLC (“Lessor”) 
and all documents related thereto and delivered in connection therewith (collectively, the “Agreements”). 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

B. Call-Back Verification.  Lessor may, but is not required, to call back any one of the below-named 
employees or officials of Lessee prior to approving the disbursement of any funds from the Acquisition Fund established 
under the Escrow Agreement to verify the request for disbursement, including but not limited to amount, payee, address, 
ABA and account numbers of the payee or Lessee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: \d1\  By: \s2\    

 

   Name: \n2\   

 

   Title: \t2\   

 

(The signer of this Certificate cannot be listed under Paragraph A above as authorized to execute the Agreements.) 
  

Name of Official Title Signature 

AJ Euckert 

 
Town Administrator 
 

\s1\ 

Michael Mahoney 

 

Mayor  

 

 

  

Name Title Phone Number 

AJ Euckert 

 

Town Administrator 
 

\tx2\ 

Denise Rademacher Finance Director 303-990-5775 

 

  

 

 

41



  

14 

 

SCHEDULE F 
STATE & MUNICIPAL LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Lease No. 5000308-007 
 

ESSENTIAL USE/SOURCE OF FUNDS LETTER 
 

February 6, 2024 
 

Clayton Holdings, LLC 

8000 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 510 
St. Louis, Missouri 63105 
 
 
 Re:  State and Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement No. 5000308-007, dated the Sixth day of February, 2024 

(the "Lease"), between Clayton Holdings, LLC ("Lessor") and Town of Lochbuie, Colorado ("Lessee") 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

This confirms and affirms that the Equipment described in the Lease is essential to the function of the undersigned or to 

the service we provide to our citizens. 

 

Further, we have an immediate need for, and expect to make immediate use of, substantially all such Equipment, which 

need is not temporary or expected to diminish in the foreseeable future.  Such Equipment will be used by us only for the 

purpose of performing one or more of our governmental or proprietary functions consistent with the permissible scope of 

our authority.  Specifically, such Equipment was selected by us to be used as follows:  

\tx3\ 
  
 
The estimated useful life of such Equipment based upon manufacturer's representations and our projected needs is not 
less than the maximum Lease Term. 
 
Our source of funds for payments of the Rental Payments due under the Lease for the current fiscal year is  

\tx4\  
 

We currently expect and anticipate adequate funds to be available for all future payments of rent due after the current 

fiscal year for the following reasons: 

 

\tx5\  
 
 

Very truly yours,  

 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado  
 

Authorized Signature: \s1\  

 
Printed Name: AJ Euckert  
 
Title: Town Administrator  
 

Date: \d1\  

 

  

42



  

15 

 
SCHEDULE G 

PROOF OF INSURANCE 
 
 
 

Insurance Agent Name: \tx6\  
 
Agency Name: \tx7\  
 
Address: \tx8\  
 
Phone Number: \tx9\  
 
E-Mail: \tx10\  
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Please add CLAYTON HOLDINGS, LLC as both co-loss payee and additional insured under the property insurance 
covering the Equipment listed on attached Schedule A, and as additional insured under the general liability insurance 
policy. The minimum liability coverage is $1,000,000.00. Please mail or fax an insurance certificate to: 

 
Clayton Holdings, LLC 

P.O. Box 11309 
St. Louis, MO 63105 
Fax # 314-746-3744 

 
Upon acceptance of the Equipment and upon each insurance renewal date, Lessee will deliver to Lessor a certificate 
evidencing such insurance. 
 
Please note that the Bank requires 30 day written notice of cancellation of the policy covering leased equipment. 

 
 
 

Lessee: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado  
 
Authorized Signature: \s1\  
 
Printed Name: AJ Euckert  
 
Title: Town Administrator  
 
Date: \d1\  
 

  

43



  

16 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE H 
 

ACH Payment Authorization Form 
 

Lease No. / Loan No: 5000308-007     
  

Lessee / Borrower: Town of Lochbuie, Colorado    
 

I authorize Commerce Bank (“Commerce”) to initiate debit entries and to initiate, if necessary, credit 

entries and adjustments for any debit entries in error on behalf of CBI Equipment Finance, Clayton 

Holdings or Commerce Bank as lender or lessor in the amount shown, and from the checking or savings 

account with the depository institution (“Bank”) named below, on the payment due date.  

 

Bank Name: \tx11\  
 

Address:  \tx12\   
 

ABA Routing No.: \tx13\    
 

Account No.: \tx14\   (X) Checking           (  ) Savings 
 

This is a  (X) New    or  (  ) Updated authorization form. 

Semi-Annual Debit Amount(s): In Accordance with Schedule C 

Begin Auto Debit with Invoice Date Due: In Accordance with Schedule C 
 

The final or balloon payment, if different from the Semi-Annual payment, will not be auto debited.  
 

I understand that this authorization will remain in full force and effect until I notify COMMERCE 

BANK at the address or phone number below that I wish to revoke this authorization. I understand that 

COMMERCE BANK requires at least 5 days prior notice in order to process any such cancellation. 

 

X \os1\ X \d1\  

 Borrower / Lessee Signature     Date 
 

Note that there is NO charge for this service.  

Also, your “Bank” need not be Commerce Bank to benefit from this feature.  Any bank account can be auto 

debited.  To commence service please return this form with your document package or send this signed form 

and a voided check (unless COMMERCE BANK is already currently debiting this same account for 

another lease schedule) to:  

 

COMMERCE BANK 

P.O. Box 11309 

Clayton, MO 63105 or 

LeasingACH@Commercebank.com 
 

To discontinue or amend service, please email the request to the address above or call COMMERCE BANK at 

314.746.3726.  

44



 

8000 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 510 

Saint Louis, Missouri 63105-1797 
                 

 

February 9, 2024 

 

Denise Rademacher 

Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 

703 Weld County Road 37 

Lochbuie, Colorado 80603 

 

Dear Ms. Rademacher: 

 

Enclosed is a draft IRS form 8038G related to the lease financing described above.  The 

enclosed form is required to be filed by you, as the lessee, with the IRS in connection 

with the lease financing.  As a courtesy, we have prepared and forwarded the enclosed 

draft to you for your review, execution and filing.  The information included in the form is 

based on information you provided in connection with the application for the lease 

financing and the execution and delivery of the lease documents (including the 8038 

Questionnaire). 

Once executed, an original of the executed form is required to be filed with the Internal 

Revenue Service at the following address no later than May 15, 2024.  

If sent by US postal service to: 

Department of the Treasury 

Internal Revenue Service Center 

Ogden, Utah  84201 

If sent by overnight delivery service to: 

Department of the Treasury 

Ogden Internal Revenue Submission 

Center 

1973 Rulon White Boulevard 

Ogden, Utah  84201 

We recommend that you obtain proof of mailing as you would with any tax return filed 

with the IRS, in the event that the form is lost in transmission or misfiled by the IRS and 

that such proof be filed with other documents related to the lease financing. 

If you have any questions regarding this form of the requirement to file it, please feel free 

to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

 

Nancy Mullen 

Municipal Lease Administrator 

Email:  nancy.mullen@commercebank.com 

Phone:  617-584-2868 

 

45

mailto:nancy.mullen@commercebank.com


Form 8038-G
(Rev. October 2021)

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service

Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds
 Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e) 

 See separate instructions. 
Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC. 

 Go to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the latest information. 

OMB No. 1545-0047

Part I Reporting Authority Check box if Amended Return 
1    Issuer’s name 2    Issuer’s employer identification number (EIN)

3a  Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions) 3b  Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

4    Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 5    Report number (For IRS Use Only)

3 
6    City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7    Date of issue

8    Name of issue 9    CUSIP number

10a  Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information 10b  Telephone number of officer or other 
employee shown on 10a

Part II Type of Issue (Enter the issue price.) See the instructions and attach schedule.
11 Education . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 
12 Health and hospital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 
13 Transportation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
14 Public safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 
15 Environment (including sewage bonds) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
16 Housing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 
17 Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
18 Other. Describe 18 
19 a If bonds are TANs or RANs, check only box 19a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

b If bonds are BANs, check only box 19b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box . . . . . . . . .  
Part III Description of Bonds. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.

21 

(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price
(c) Stated redemption 

price at maturity
(d) Weighted 

average maturity
(e) Yield

$ $ years % 
Part IV Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22 Proceeds used for accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
23 Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21, column (b)) . . . . . . . . . . . 23 
24 Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount)  24 
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . 26 
27 Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete Part V . . . 27 
28 Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete Part V . . . . 28 
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 
30 Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract line 29 from line 23 and enter amount here) . . . 30 
Part V Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds to be refunded . . .  years
32 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the taxable bonds to be refunded . . . .  years
33 Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY)  . .  
34 Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued  (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 63773S Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

46



Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021) Page 2 
Part VI Miscellaneous
35 Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) . . . . 35 

 36 a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract  
(GIC). See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36a

b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC  (MM/DD/YYYY)
c Enter the name of the GIC provider 

37 Pooled financings:  Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans
to other governmental units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 

38 a If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax-exempt issue, check box and enter the following information: 
b Enter the date of the master pool bond  (MM/DD/YYYY)
c Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond 
d Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool bond 

39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) (small issuer exception), check box . . . .  
40 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
41 a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here and enter the following information:

b Name of hedge provider 
c Type of hedge 
d Term of hedge 

42 If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified bonds of this issue are remediated 

according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box . . . . . . . .  
44 If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box . . . . .  
45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here and enter the amount

of reimbursement . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
b Enter the date the official intent was adopted  (MM/DD/YYYY)

Signature 
and  
Consent

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge  
and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I further declare that I consent to the IRS’s disclosure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to 
process this return, to the person that I have authorized above.

Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date Type or print name and title

Paid 
Preparer 
Use Only

Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check         if 
self-employed

PTIN

Firm’s name     

Firm’s address 

Firm’s EIN 

Phone no.

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

47



Lease No.  5000308-007 
8038-G QUESTIONNAIRE 

Name of Lessee:  Town of Lochbuie, Colorado 
Address of Lessee:  703 Weld County Road 37, Lochbuie, Colorado  80603 
Contact Person:  Denise Rademacher, Finance Director 
Telephone Number: 303-990-5775
Email Address:  finance@lochbuie.org 
Lessee's FEIN:  84-0743323

GENERAL 

In October 2021, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) updated Form 8038-G (the form used by Lessees to 
report the issuance of a tax-exempt obligation).  The revised Form 8038-G asks specific questions about written 
procedures to:  (1) monitor private use of assets financed with proceeds of a tax-exempt obligation and, as 
necessary, to take remedial actions to correct any violations of federal tax restrictions on the use of financed 
assets; and (2) monitor the yield on the investment of gross proceeds of tax-exempt obligations and, as 
necessary, make payments of arbitrage rebate earned to the United States.  In addition, the revised Form 
8038-G asks Lessees to report whether any proceeds will be used to reimburse the Lessee for an expenditure 
paid prior to issuance.  This questionnaire is designed to obtain the information necessary to complete Form 
8038-G for the Lease.  Lessee will be required to review and approve the information entered prior to signing 
the 8038-G form. 

At this time, the consequences of not having adopted written procedures to monitor private use of financed 
assets and yield on the investment of gross proceeds of tax-exempt obligations are unknown.  If you have 
further questions, please consult your regular bond or legal counsel.  

Part 1 – Written Tax Compliance Procedures 

Note: If either of these questions is not answered, we will assume the Lessee has not adopted the described 
procedures.  

1. Has the Lessee established written procedures to monitor compliance with federal tax restrictions for the term of
the lease?  The written procedures should identify a particular individual within Lessee’s organization to monitor
compliance with the federal tax requirements related to use of the financed assets and describe actions to be taken
in the event failure to comply with federal tax restrictions is contemplated or discovered.  Yes \cb1\ No \cb2\

2. Has the Lessee established written procedures to monitor the yield on the investment of proceeds of the Lease
on deposit in an escrow account or similar fund prior to being spent and to ensure that any positive arbitrage rebate
earned is paid to the United States?  Yes \cb3\  No \cb4\

Part 2 – Reimbursement of Prior Expenditures 

1. As of the funding date, were any of the proceeds of the Lease used to reimburse Lessee for expenditures paid
to acquire the financed assets prior to the funding date of the Lease?  Yes \cb3\  No \cb4\

If yes, please attach a spreadsheet listing the expenditure(s) together with the date paid, vendor paid 
and purpose of the expenditure or other proof of the expenditure(s) containing this information (i.e. invoices, 
receipts, cancelled checks). 

Items 2 and 3 need to be completed ONLY if the answer to item 1 above is YES. 

2. Please attach a copy of Lessee’s resolution of intent to finance the financed assets, which includes date of
adoption.

3. What is the amount of proceeds of the Lease reimbursed to Lessee?  $

BY: \s1\ 

NAME:  AJ Euckert 

TITLE: Town Administrator 

DATE: \d1\ 

48



Agenda Item Summary 

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2024 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 2024-11, approving an Engagement Agreement with Brownstein 

Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
PRESENTED BY:  A.J. Euckert, Town Manager  

SUMMARY 

This Engagement Agreement from Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP is for legal services related to 
public/private partnerships. 

BACKGROUND 

Carolynne White, with Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP, is widely regarded as a preeminent 
attorney with specialized knowledge related to public/private partnerships. Her help in facilitating 
development within and adjacent to the Town is critical to carrying out the economic development 
goals of the Town Board. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The Town has funds allocated to legal services in the 2024 adopted budget. Additionally, these legal 
and other professional services may be eligible for reimbursement should the Town set up an Urban 
Renewal Authority or other improvement districts. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 

Staff recommends the following motion, if not approved with the entire Consent Agenda… 

“I move to approve Resolution 2024-11, an Engagement Agreement with Brownstein Hyatt Farber 
Schreck, LLP.” 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 2024-11 
BHFS Engagement Agreement 

49



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS 

STATE OF COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING AN ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL 

SERVICES WITH BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK, LLP 

WHEREAS, the Town requires legal services from Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, 
LLP, which has the required specialized knowledge, skill, reputation, and experience to satisfy 
the specialized needs of the Town; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town desires to enter into an Engagement Agreement in the form 
attached hereto with Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP for legal services related to 
public/private partnerships as set forth therein. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town 
of Lochbuie, Colorado: 

Section 1. The Town Board of Trustees (a) incorporates the above recitations as 
findings of the Board, and (b) authorizes the Town Administrator, in consultation with the 
Town Attorney, to execute on behalf of the Town the Engagement Agreement in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

Section 2. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its approval by the 
Board of Trustees. 

ADOPTED THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

ATTEST: Michael Mahoney, Mayor 

By: 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk  

50



EXHIBIT A 
BHFS Engagement Agreement  

51



January 24, 2024 

VIA E-MAIL ONLY –  
ajeuckert@lochbuie.org 

A.J. Euckert, Town Manager 
Town of Lochbuie 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO  80603 

RE: Engagement Agreement for Legal Services – Special Counsel for Public Private 
Partnerships - Town of Lochbuie 

Dear AJ: 

Thank you for selecting Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP (the “Firm”) to serve as legal counsel to 
the Town of Lochbuie (“the Town” or “you”) in connection with public private partnerships to facilitate 
development within and adjacent to the Town.  We are very pleased and privileged to work with you, 
and we appreciate the opportunity to represent you.  The purpose of this engagement letter (the 
“Agreement”) and the attached Standard Terms and Conditions which are incorporated into this letter 
by this reference (the “Terms”) is to outline the nature and scope of the engagement and our 
respective responsibilities and expectations. 

The Client:  The Firm will represent the Town but not its principals, corporate parents or other owners, 
subsidiaries, or other affiliates. 

Scope of Engagement:  This Agreement and the Terms apply to the engagement described above as 
well as future engagements with respect to which you ask and the Firm agrees to represent you, unless 
we execute a separate agreement for one or more separate engagements.  Services rendered to you 
prior to your signing this Agreement are subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the Terms. 

Staffing, Fees, Costs and Billing Arrangements:  In the course of our representation, it is anticipated 
that I will supervise and coordinate most of the work on this matter, with the assistance of any 
attorneys, land use planners, paralegals, law clerks, legal assistants, and other staff working with me.  

52

mailto:ajeuckert@lochbuie.org


My hourly rate is $790.00.  I can be reached directly at 303.223.1197 and via email at 
cwhite@bhfs.com.  To best serve your interests, we may assign other attorneys affiliated with the Firm 
to represent you if, in our judgment, that becomes necessary or desirable.  We have currently assigned 
Angela Hygh to assist with this matter.  Angela’s hourly rate is $455.00.  She can be reached directly at 
303.223.1143 or by email at ahygh@bhfs.com.  We also may assign attorneys who are independent 
contractors to the Firm and whose hourly billing rate will be passed on to you with a factor for the 
firm’s overhead and profit. 

Our fees are based primarily on the actual amount of time spent by our attorneys and other 
professionals performing services for you, including attending, conducting or making, as applicable, 
telephone calls, conferences, court appearances, research and investigations, traveling, and preparing 
letters, pleadings, briefs, agreements, and other documents.  We will bill for our services at our 
applicable hourly billing rates in effect at the time we render the services, which are available upon 
request.  In the course of providing services to you, it may be necessary for us to incur certain costs.  
You agree to reimburse us in accordance with the Terms for all reasonable costs that we actually incur 
and for the Firm’s administrative fee.  For more information on billing, including third party and other 
costs for which you will be billed, rate changes and other factors affecting fees and other charges, 
please refer to the Terms. 

Billing Period and Payments:  We will bill you on a monthly basis or such other periodic basis as we may 
determine.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, you agree to make payment of all outstanding fees 
and costs within 30 days of your receipt of a billing statement.  We reserve the right to charge interest 
on overdue amounts at the rate of 1.5% per month, or the maximum interest rate permitted by law, 
whichever is less, from the date due until paid.  You agree to pay such interest on the outstanding 
balance in addition to the balance of fees and expenses due. 

Conflicts of Interest:  We have conducted a search in our conflicts database of your name and the 
names of your owners, principals and affiliates and all adverse parties and their owners, principals and 
affiliates that you provided to us, as applicable.  Based on the information provided, we have 
discovered no conflicts.  To help us continue to assess conflicts, however, we will depend on you to 
keep us advised of changes in the Town’s owners, principals, affiliates and potential adverse parties 
that might affect our analysis of actual or potential conflict of interests. 

Complete Agreement:  This Agreement and the Terms contain all the terms and provisions of and 
related to our engagement.  This Agreement and the Terms may only be amended in a writing signed 
by a representative of the Firm and you. 

53

mailto:cwhite@bhfs.com
mailto:ahygh@bhfs.com


If you agree with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the Terms, please countersign this 
letter where indicated below and return it to us at your earliest opportunity.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me or a member of our team. 

Sincerely, 

BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK, LLP 

By: 
Carolynne C. White 

Acceptance of Agreement and Standard Terms and Conditions: 

The undersigned entity represents and warrants that it has the power and authority and that the 
individual signing on its behalf below has been authorized to enter into and sign this Agreement.  The 
undersigned does hereby engage Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement and the attached Standard Terms and Conditions, effective as of the date of this 
Agreement. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 

By:  
Name: AJ Euckert 
Its: Town Manager 

54



Duties of the Parties: Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
(the “Firm”) agrees to represent you in accordance with the 
accompanying Engagement Agreement for Legal Services 
(the “Agreement”) and these Standard Terms and 
Conditions (the “Terms”). You agree to fully cooperate with 
us, be open and truthful, provide us with complete 
information pertaining to the representation, keep us 
informed of developments, promptly respond to our 
inquiries and communications, and pay our bills in a timely 
manner. 

Fees: We record time in 6-minute increments unless other 
arrangements are made, and our billing statements will be 
based on time recorded in those increments. You agree to 
pay our fees based on time expended on your behalf, 
computed on an hourly basis at our then applicable rates for 
this engagement for the applicable attorneys and staff 
assigned to the matter. Generally speaking, these hourly 
rates currently are, with limited exceptions, as follows: 

Shareholders: From  $470   to  $1,575 per hour 
Counsel: From  $435   to  $1,285 per hour 
Associates:  From  $380   to  $   670 per hour 
Lit Support Analysts: From  $210   to  $   430 per hour 
Land Use Planners: From  $255   to  $   560 per hour 
Paralegals:  From  $170   to  $   485 per hour 
Law Clerks:  From  $260   to  $   455 per hour 
Legal Assistants: From  $135   to  $   345 per hour 

We change our rates, as well as our other standard charges, 
from time to time (typically on January 1 of a calendar year), 
to reflect competitive or market conditions, inflation, 
changes in attorney seniority or status, changes to our rates 
generally, changes in the nature or scope of the services 
performed and other factors. Unless otherwise agreed to in 
writing, you agree that any new rates or charges apply 
prospectively to all matters then being handled by the Firm 
for you. You agree to pay all fees billed at the then-current 
rates. Individual rate changes will be reflected in the first 
billing statement that includes the new rates and will be 
evident from the information you receive with each bill. 

Outside Contract Attorneys and Legal Assistants: You agree 
that we may utilize contract attorneys and legal assistants 
who are supervised by our attorneys but not employed by 
the Firm, and who may reside inside or outside of the United 
States.  Contract attorneys typically will be billed at the rates 
of the attorneys at the firm who provide a comparable, 
applicable level of service, if not otherwise agreed to in 
writing. 

In-House Costs and External Expenses: In addition to fees 
incurred for legal work, your statement will include other 
charges and costs, some of which are summarized below, 
that you agree to pay. 

Charges for long distance telephone calls, in-office copying, 
ordinary postage, and deliveries made by in-house staff are 
covered by an administrative fee, currently calculated at 
2.5% of fees incurred. This administrative fee is charged in 
lieu of itemizing those costs. 

Other costs which you agree to pay include, but are not 
limited to: computer-assisted legal research; third party 
vendor fees (including document copying, transcript 
production, depositions, e-discovery file processing, and 
trial preparation materials); messenger and other delivery 
fees; the cost of licensing and installing special computer 
applications used to manage your case; secretarial overtime 
(when required by the urgency of your matter); 
extraordinary administrative, technical or accounting 
support; professional mediator, arbitrator, and/or special 
master fees; other vendor costs; and reasonable expenses 
for travel, meals and hotel accommodations. 

For matters that involve e-Discovery, it may be necessary for 
the Firm to undertake the tasks of collecting, processing, 
filtering, hosting, reviewing and/or producing electronic 
data. A listing of e-Discovery services along with the specific 
rate at which each service will be billed, which accounts for 
both the Firm’s direct cost and overhead and related 
expenses, is available upon request. Charges for services 
such as hosting may continue to be billed for as long as we 
continue to maintain e-Discovery data in an active or 
inactive server environment. 

We may select experts, consultants and investigators who in 
our judgment are necessary to aid in the preparation of your 
matter. We will inform you of the persons selected and their 
charges. You authorize us to incur all reasonable costs and 
to hire such experts, consultants and investigators, and you 
agree to pay these expenses. 

At our discretion, all costs may be included on your 
statement or billed directly to you. We may also require that 
you advance to us the estimated amount for such items prior 
to our incurring them on your behalf. You agree to pay such 
costs, and we assume no obligation to advance any costs on 
your behalf or to pay vendors, experts, consultants or other 
third parties we engage on your behalf. 

Estimates Not Binding: It is often impractical to determine in 
advance the amount of time and effort that will be needed 
to complete all the necessary work on a matter or the total 

55



amount of fees, charges, and costs that may be incurred. 
Additionally, if any estimates or budgets are provided, they 
may need to be adjusted upward or downward in response 
to changing circumstances. Accordingly, unless otherwise 
expressly agreed in writing, our estimates and budgets are 
not intended to be binding, are subject to unforeseen or 
unanticipated circumstances, and do not limit or “cap” our 
fees and other charges or costs. 

No Guarantees: Comments or expressions of opinion about 
the potential outcome of your matter or any phase thereof 
are expressions of opinion only. We cannot guarantee the 
outcome or make any promises in that regard.  Unless 
otherwise specifically agreed in writing, our fees are not 
contingent upon the outcome or completion of a matter. 

Billing Disputes: You agree to inform us of any dispute you 
may have with respect to a billing statement within ten (10) 
days of the statement date. Even if you dispute a portion of 
a billing statement, you agree to pay the undisputed portion 
within 30 days of your receipt of the statement. You will be 
responsible for any costs of collection incurred by the Firm, 
including reasonable attorneys’ and paralegals’ fees and 
costs. 

Retainer Deposits: You agree to pay advance fee deposits in 
accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and the 
Terms. In addition, for matters involving litigation, 
arbitration, or adjudication of disputes in other tribunals, we 
reserve the right to request from you an additional deposit 
before trial or hearing in an amount reflective of the 
anticipated fees and costs of that proceeding. You agree to 
timely provide such a deposit.  If you do not provide this 
deposit, we shall have the right to withdraw from this 
representation, consistent with our obligations under 
applicable law and the rules of professional conduct, and 
you agree not to oppose our withdrawal. 

Responses to Auditors’ Inquiries: We are frequently asked to 
provide information to third-party auditing firms regarding 
legal matters of our clients.  We respond to those inquiries 
with the same level of care that we use to handle our clients’ 
other legal work, and we will charge for these services at the 
hourly rates applicable to your engagement. When an 
auditing firm requests information on your behalf, that 
request will be deemed to be your consent for us to disclose 
the requested information to that auditing firm and to bill 
for those services. 

Permission to List the Company as a Client: Occasionally, we 
may provide lists of representative clients or matters to legal 
or other publications and may use our clients’ names or a 
description of their matters in marketing materials.  Unless 

you instruct otherwise, you agree that such use is 
acceptable. 

Communications and Special Requirements: During the 
course of our engagement, we may exchange emails and 
electronic versions of documents with you using 
commercially available software. Such communications are 
occasionally victimized by the creation and dissemination of 
viruses and other destructive electronic programs and 
hackers who compromise the privacy of electronic 
communications. Our virus scanning software may also 
occasionally reject a communication that you send to us, or 
we may send you a message that is rejected by your system. 
Although infrequent, these occurrences are to be expected 
as part of the ordinary course of business. Accordingly, we 
cannot guarantee that our communications and documents 
will always be virus-free or immune from invasions of 
expected privacy. If for these or other reasons you would 
prefer or require that we not use electronic communications 
or that we follow special instructions or encrypt emails or 
other communications, you should promptly advise in 
writing those working on your matters of such preferences 
or requirements. 

Public Policy Services and Business Conflicts: The Firm 
provides a wide array of public policy services to many 
clients around the world. These services include legislative 
and administrative representation on matters that may 
affect your interests, directly or indirectly. As a condition of 
our undertaking to represent you, you hereby waive any 
objection to any conflict of interest that might be deemed to 
be created by our representation of other clients in 
legislative or administrative policy matters that are 
unrelated to the specific representation we have been asked 
to undertake on your behalf. Your waiver permits us to 
represent another client in advocating a change in law or 
policy areas even if the policy we advocate would or might 
have a direct or indirect adverse impact upon your interests. 

Ownership of Records and Files: You understand and agree 
that your client file consists of any correspondence, legal 
memoranda, pleadings, agreements, or other documents 
that the Firm retains in its electronic document 
management system, which is duplicated in hard copy. It is 
our policy to destroy all client files (including all documents 
and materials therein) no less than eight years following 
completion of each matter. This file destruction procedure 
is automatic, and you will not receive further notice prior to 
the destruction of these files.  Accordingly, we advise you to 
maintain your own files relating to the matters which we are 
handling. Alternatively, you may request, prior to our 
scheduled destruction date, that we deliver all or certain 

56



portions of these client files to you rather than destroying 
them. 

Termination: You may terminate our services at any time. If 
you choose to do so, you agree to give us prompt notice of 
the termination. Upon such termination, you will remain 
obligated to pay for all services rendered and costs paid or 
incurred on your behalf before the termination or which are 
reasonably necessary thereafter. If we are attorneys of 
record in any proceeding, you agree to promptly execute 
and return to us appropriate documents effecting our 
substitution or withdrawal. We will promptly return to you 
any remaining balance of your retainer as well as a copy of 
your client file, as described above. 

Except to the extent limited by applicable law or rules of 
professional conduct, we may also withdraw from this 
representation at any time. We may withdraw, by way of 
example, if: 

• You fail to fulfill an obligation to the Firm or to
honor the terms of the Agreement or these Terms,
such as by failing to pay our statements or to post
deposits in a timely manner;

• You make it unreasonably difficult to represent
you;

• Our continued representation of you will result in
an unreasonable financial burden on the Firm; or

• Facts or circumstances arise that, in our view,
render our continuing representation unlawful or
unethical.

If we elect to withdraw, you agree to take all steps 
reasonably necessary to free us of any obligation to perform 
further services. Notwithstanding such withdrawal, you will 
remain obligated to pay us for all services provided and to 
reimburse us for all costs paid or incurred on your behalf 
before the termination or which are reasonably necessary 
thereafter. 

Our representation of you will be considered terminated at 
the earliest of your termination of our representation, our 
withdrawal from our representation of you, or the 
substantial completion of our work for you (as may be 
evidenced by a final bill, by a substantial period of inactivity, 
or otherwise). 

Disputes:  All disputes arising out of or relating to the 
Agreement and these Terms shall be resolved in a binding 
arbitration administered by JAMS pursuant to its 
Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures. The 
arbitration will take place in, and be administered in 

accordance with the laws of, the state in which the legal 
services provided by the Firm were primarily performed. The 
arbitrator shall award the substantially prevailing party its 
reasonable attorney fees and costs, and judgment on the 
award may be entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Interpretation and Effective Date: The Agreement and these 
Terms supersede all other prior and contemporaneous 
written and oral agreements and understanding between 
us, including any outside counsel guidelines or service level 
agreements, or the like, that you adopt, unless such outside 
counsel guidelines or service level agreements have been 
provided to us prior to the date of the Agreement or unless 
the Agreement and these Terms have been made expressly 
subject thereto. You acknowledge that no promises have 
been made to you by us other than those in the Agreement 
and these Terms. In the event that these Terms conflict with 
the Agreement, the Agreement will govern. If any provision 
of these Terms or the Agreement is found unenforceable, 
the remaining provisions will remain in effect. If the 
Agreement does not take effect for any reason, you will still 
be required to pay us the reasonable value of any services 
we performed for you and all costs actually and reasonably 
incurred on your behalf. 

27133760.1 

57



Agenda Item Summary 

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2024 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 2024-12, approving a professional services proposal from 

Galloway for right-of-way mapping 
PRESENTED BY:  A.J. Euckert, Town Manager  

SUMMARY 

This proposal from Galloway encompasses rights-of-way surveying and mapping consisting primarily 
of streets and roads. 

BACKGROUND 

Having accurate mapping of Town rights-of-way is critical to our maintenance and planning efforts. 
Galloway has the expertise and has worked in the area, giving them familiarity with the project. Being 
mindful of the costs, we had them break the project into two phases. Phase one would begin in the 
near future, and phase two can take place as timing dictates. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

While not budgeted, the Town has funds to accommodate the project. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 

Staff recommends the following motion, if not approved with the entire Consent Agenda… 

“I move to approve Resolution 2024-12, a professional services proposal from Galloway.” 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 2024-12 
Galloway proposal 

58



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS 

STATE OF COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING A PROPOSAL FROM GALLOWAY FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Town received two proposals for mapping rights-of-way; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town desires to enter into an Agreement in the form attached hereto 
with Galloway to perform the professional services listed in the proposal. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town 
of Lochbuie, Colorado: 

Section 1. The Town Board of Trustees (a) incorporates the above recitations as 
findings of the Board, and (b) authorizes the Town Administrator, in consultation with the 
Town Attorney, to execute on behalf of the Town a professional services agreement in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, or the Town’s standard professional services agreement which 
would incorporate all or parts of the Galloway proposal. Minor revisions to the Galloway 
proposal may be made to protect the Town, but the project costs listed in the proposal shall not 
be exceeded. 

Section 2. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its approval by the 
Board of Trustees. 

ADOPTED THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

ATTEST: Michael Mahoney, Mayor 

By: 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk  

59



EXHIBIT A 
Galloway Proposal 

60



 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 1 of 10 

5265 Ronald Reagan Blvd., Suite 210 
Johnstown, CO 80534 
970.800.3300 • GallowayUS.com 

February 1, 2024 

Town of Lochbuie 
AJ Euckert 
703 Weld County Road 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
RE:  Multiple Rights of Way mapping near, Lochbuie, CO. Professional Services Proposal 

Dear Mr. Euckert: 

Galloway is pleased to provide our Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) to the Town of Lochbuie. 
The requested scope of services and associated fees are outlined in the attached Professional Services 
Agreement and is intended to cover Galloway’s survey services for this project. 

Galloway is a full-service engineering, architecture and planning company that has provided comprehensive 
land development services since 1982 and is licensed in 46 states. With offices in Colorado, Utah, Kansas, 
Georgia and California, we provide all major services under one roof and have the capabilities necessary to 
successfully manage a project from planning through construction completion. Galloway’s services include due 
diligence; land development consulting; site planning; surveying; civil, mechanical, electrical and structural 
engineering; architecture; landscape architecture; site lighting analysis; commissioning; and construction 
contract administration.  Our diverse client base includes local, regional and national developers, builders and 
retailers. We pride ourselves on providing quality, cost-effective, and reliable services and building enduring 
client relationships.  

If the general terms of this proposal are acceptable, Galloway is prepared to execute this Agreement, or upon 
review and mutual agreement of the contractual conditions, the Client’s Agreement. In either case, the 
attached Scope of Services, and any mutually agreeable revisions thereto, would be incorporated into said 
Agreement. 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit our professional services proposal to you.  Galloway strives to provide 
a superior level of service that reflects our dedication to timely and cost-effective projects, exceptional 
communication and the highest-quality deliverables.  We are committed to your project’s success and look 
forward to working with you.  If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (970) 800-3300.  
Thank you for considering Galloway! 

Sincerely, 
GALLOWAY & COMPANY, INC. 

________________________________ 
Frank A. Kohl, Principal, PLS, Senior Survey Project Manager 
Frankkohl@GallowayUS.com 

61



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 2 of 10 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) is made as of February 1, 2024, 
between the Town of Lochbuie (hereinafter referred to as “Client”), and Galloway & Company, Inc., a Colorado 
Corporation, and its Subsidiaries (collectively hereinafter referred to as “Galloway”), and jointly referred to as the 
“Parties.”  The agreement is binding upon the Parties, their successors and assigns.  The Client understands the 
terms and conditions set forth and willingly enters into this Agreement.   

The terms of this Agreement shall cover all services performed by Galloway for the Client prior to the execution of 
this Agreement, if any.  Services not specifically identified in the Scope of Services presented herein are excluded 
from this Agreement.  Deviations from the Scope of Services, whether Client-driven or through the agency review 
and approval processes, will be justification for amendment to this Agreement. 

The Schedule of Rates and Contractual Conditions attached are incorporated by this reference. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PRIMARY RIGHT OF WAY SURVEY (9+ MILES) 

SECONDARY RIGHT OF WAY SURVEY (9+ MILES) 

Right of Way Research and Determination 
Galloway will work with the Town of Lochbuie staff to determine the Right of Way width for the designated roads. 
This effort will include review of Annexation and Plat maps, records of the Weld County Accessor’s office, Title 
reports provided by a title company and other available Town documents.  

Control Survey 
Galloway will extend our Modified Colorado State Plane control that we’ve used for the extensive development work 
we are doing in the area. 

Right of Way Field Survey 
Based on the findings of our research, Galloway will conduct a field survey. approximately 57 Aliquot Corners will be 
located and used as a base to plot record information for the rights of way. Additional right of way monuments will 
be located if apparent in the field.  NOTE: This is not a boundary survey. Found monuments will be used to 
reference and control record right of way information which will be graphically depicted on right of way exhibits. 

Title Company Coordination 
Galloway will coordinate with the title company for O&E Reports, acquiring deeds that impact the rights of way. Fees 
associated with the title company will be handled as a pass-through expense and invoiced to the client. 

Mapping 
Using the right of way exhibits created from the found aliquot corners and other evidence, Galloway will prepare a 
series of maps, indicating right of way widths for the designated roads. 

Legal Descriptions and Exhibits 
Galloway will prepare a legal description and exhibit from the record parcel information, for the right of way of each 
of the approximate 224 abutting parcels. 

Meetings and Coordination 
Galloway will attend meetings as requested by the Town to coordinate project details. These meetings will be 
attended on a time and expenses basis. 

62



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 3 of 10 

ASSUMPTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS 

• Individual parcel boundaries will not be determined during this survey. Parcel legal descriptions and exhibits
will be based on record information and found aliquot line monuments.

• In this proposal it’s assumed that adequate monumentation necessary to determine the right of way will be
found to reasonably depict the right of ways. If adequate monumentation is not found, we will contact the
Client prior to proceeding with the survey.

• The fee for this proposal includes addressing one (1) set of Client comments regarding revisions,
clarification or edits. It is assumed Galloway will receive all comments from all involved parties at the same
time to be addressed at one (1) time. If additional comments are received or as otherwise noted or
requested revisions extend beyond the aforementioned items or scope, additional fees shall apply, and the
request will be addressed on a Time and Materials (T&M) basis.

• Client will provide or obtain all necessary permissions for access to all portions of the abutting property or
adjoining properties necessary to complete the field effort of the survey.

• This scope is limited to the items listed above. Additional scope items requested by the Client may include
additional fees.

• The rights of way to be surveyed for this effort are limited to the roads listed above.

• Commencement of work will not begin until this agreement is signed and received by both parties.

SPECIFIC EXCLUSIONS 

• This is not a boundary survey, no monuments will be set.

• Extending the survey to include the Aliquot break down of adjoining sections

• All items related to the vertical aspects of the site.

• Any additional scope items not specifically listed above

• Zoning research or designations

• Determination of rights of use of any features/easements/trails/roads or any others

• Any copies of survey notes/sketches/point list or other survey related items, unless agreed upon via written
correspondence

• Revisions deemed beyond the limits or intent of this scope

• Any forms/letters/spreadsheets or drawings not listed above

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Provide Town support as needed for the successful completion of the project.

• Provide necessary permissions and if needed, access to the site and abutting properties.

DELIVERABLES 

• Galloway will provide the client with a PDF of the final right of way survey, signed and sealed by a
Professional Land Surveyor licensed in the State of Colorado.

• Galloway will prepare Mapping per County requirements for all included right of ways.

• Galloway will prepare legal descriptions and exhibits of the rights of way for each abutting parcel.

SCHEDULE 

Galloway Survey can commence work immediately upon receiving the signed agreement and a written Notice to 
Proceed and will anticipate delivery of a draft survey for your review within 8 weeks of the Notice to Proceed. This 
timeline is driven by the title company, which will require 3-4 weeks to get the needed documents. 

It is understood that the timing for this survey is important. Galloway will make all reasonable efforts to complete the 
survey in the time frame noted, however outside factors may have influence on the schedule such as but not limited 
to weather, access permissions or other unforeseen circumstances. If a circumstance or situation occurs that may 

63



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 4 of 10 

impact the delivery schedule, Galloway will notify the client to either resolve the situation or determine a new 
delivery schedule. 

COMPENSATION 

The Scope of Services provided herein will be provided on a time and materials (T&M) basis pursuant to the 
Schedule of Rates in effect at the time services are rendered and expenses incurred.  The estimated fee of 
$51,515.00 for the primary road documents and $42,425.00 for the secondary road documents as shown in 
the table below. These fees are based upon our understanding of the project scope at this time and should not be 
construed as a not-to-exceed amount unless otherwise noted. A copy of Galloway’s current Schedule of Rates is 
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 

Scope FEE Summary 

PRIMARY ROADS 

1 Control $1,825 

2 Parcel, Monument and Parcel Research $6,975 

3 Field Survey $14,400 

4 Create Right of Way Drawing $6,000 

5 Prepare 33 Right of Way Maps $8,625 

6 Prepare 128 Legal Descriptions and Exhibits $13,050 

7 Title Company Parcel Reports $640 

8 PRIMARY ROADS SUB-TOTAL $51,515.00 

SECONDARY ROADS 

9 Parcel, Monument and Parcel Research $8,175 

10 Field Survey $11,350 

11 Create Right of Way Drawing $5,450 

12 Prepare 15 Right of Way Maps $4,700 

13 Prepare 120 Legal Descriptions and Exhibits $12,250 

14 Title Company Parcel Reports $500 

15 SECONDARY ROADS SUB-TOTAL $42,425 

Total Lump Sum $93,940 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES (FEES TO BE NEGOTIATED UNDER SEPARATE CONTRACT) 

GIS Data Base 
Galloway will prepare GIS Shape Files containing agreed to Metadata and insert these files into the Town of 
Lochbuie GIS Data Base. 

64



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 5 of 10 

Aerial Imagery 

Galloway will provide aerial imagery which could include: 

• Orthorectified photos of each right of way or corridor.

• Yearly or quarterly photos that would show changes to active development areas.

• Contours that could support conceptual design efforts.

Galloway invoices on a fixed fee and/or time and material (T&M) basis. Fixed fee scope items are invoiced on a 
percent-complete basis, while T&M items are invoiced pursuant to the Schedule of Rates in effect at the time 
services are rendered and expenses incurred. A copy of the current Schedule of Rates is attached herein.  Changes 
to the Scope of Services and compensation shall be identified in a Service Authorization addendum and commence 
only upon the Client’s execution of the Service Authorization. T&M fees presented herein are estimates and should 
not be construed as not-to-exceed amounts. Reimbursable expenses shall be invoiced at 1.10 times the direct out-
of-pocket expense. These reimbursable expenses include, but are not limited to, permit fees, review and recording 
fees, reasonable travel costs, communication costs, equipment and facility rentals, subconsultant fees, reproduction 
costs, and courier and shipping fees. Invoicing is performed monthly with payment due net 30 days from the date of 
invoice. Amounts unpaid 30 days after the invoice date shall include a service charge of 1.5% per month. Collection 
charges, including attorney’s fees and court costs are payable by Client in the event of late payment. Final payment 
is required prior to the release of any signed and stamped drawings, reports, or other Instruments of Service, as 
defined herein under Contractual Conditions.  

It should be noted that the fee estimate is based upon Galloway’s understanding of the project scope at the time that 
the estimate is provided. The fee estimate is also based upon a standard performance schedule for services. 
Compressed schedules will increase the fee estimate. Unforeseen conditions or necessary revisions may require 
Galloway to submit a Scope of Services addendum and obtain approval from Client prior to proceeding with the 
modified scope. Galloway’s Schedule of Rates is subject to change. 

Galloway is hereby authorized by Client to proceed with the above referenced Scope of Services as set forth in this 
Agreement between Galloway and Client. 

ACCEPTED BY 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Town of Lochbuie 

Signature: Signature: 

Print Name: 
Print 
Name: 

Date: Date: 

Title: Title: 

65



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 6 of 10 

CONTRACTUAL CONDITIONS 

The following conditions are necessary for completion of the Scope of Services provided herein, or in subsequent Service 
Authorizations, in a timely and orderly manner and within the rates set forth in the applicable Schedule of Rates as defined by this 
Agreement under Compensation.  For the purpose of this Agreement, designs, drawings, reports, calculations, specifications, electronic 
data and similar services and deliverables in either electronic or hard copy form are the “Instruments of Service.”    

A. Standard of Care: Services provided by Galloway under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of skill and care ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances in this
geographic area.

B. Subcontractors:  Galloway shall not subcontract any part of its services under this Agreement without first providing notice to
Client. Client consents to any subcontractor or subconsultant listed in the Scope of Services.  Galloway shall obligate any subcontractor
to agree to compliance with all applicable provisions of this Agreement. Nothing contained in any subcontract shall create a contractual
relationship between Client and any such subcontractor.

C. Reuse of Documents:
1. Client acknowledges Galloway’s Instruments of Service, prepared by Galloway and its subconsultants are for use solely on the

Project. Galloway and its subconsultants, as authors and owners of their respective Instruments of Service, retain all common
law, statutory and other reserved rights, including copyrights. Distribution of Instruments of Service for regulatory or other
Project purposes is not a publication in derogation of the reserved rights.

2. Upon execution of this Agreement, and so long as Client is not in default of its obligations to Galloway, Galloway grants Client
a nonexclusive license (the “License”) to reproduce all finished Instruments of Service solely for use on the Project, subject to
the following: (a) if Client is in default of this Agreement, including instances where Galloway terminates the Agreement for
nonpayment, the License is terminated without the necessity of further action on the part of the Parties; (b) if Client terminates
this Agreement for Galloway’s default (or for Client’s convenience and Client is not in default of its obligations to Galloway), the
License is terminated without the necessity of further action on the part of the parties and is replaced by a nonexclusive
license permitting Client, subject to the other provisions of this Agreement, to authorize properly credentialed design
professionals to reproduce and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections or additions to the Instruments of
Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintaining the Project. Galloway shall be awarded damages for Client’s
use of the Instruments of Service if it is later determined by an authority with competent jurisdiction that Galloway was not in
default. Galloway retains the right to use, sell and/or modify any databases developed and/or modified in performing its
services.

3. The Licenses granted are not assignable without Galloway’s prior written consent, and no License or right is granted or implied
under this Agreement, except as provided above. Use of Instruments of Service after termination of the Agreement or upon
suspension or completion of the Project are at Client’s risk and without liability to Galloway, and Client agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold Galloway harmless from any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses, including attorney fees
and expert and consulting fees, arising out of or resulting from such use.

D. Excluded Services: Services not expressly identified in writing in a Service Authorization applicable to this agreement are excluded
from the scope of Galloway’s services.  Client expressly agrees that Galloway has no responsibility to perform such services including
but not limited to utility locates that may be required pursuant to C.R.S. 9-1.5-101 et seq. and/or utility quality level A locates as defined
by the Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data as published by the American Society of
Civil Engineers, such as ASCE 38 and/or any predecessor or subsequent statutes or standard guidelines.  All utility locate costs that
are required pursuant to C.R.S. 9-1.5-101 and/or utility quality level A as defined by the Standard Guideline for the Collection and
Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data as published by the American Society of Civil Engineers, which are not expressly included
in Galloway’s Scope of Services, shall only be completed at the request of Client.  Client agrees that any such utility locates will be an
added cost to the compensation defined in this Agreement and at Client’s sole expense.

E. Additional Services: Client and Galloway agree that there may be circumstances beyond their control, which are unforeseen and
that may arise during the project.  These changes may require changes to the Scope of Services and Compensation.  The additional
services shall be invoiced per the terms of this Agreement.

F. Construction Contract Administration:   If Client retains Galloway to provide construction contract administration of specific
portions of construction work, Galloway will report its professional opinions and observations to Client. Galloway will make periodic
observations of construction at intervals agreed to herein to become generally familiar with the construction work, to keep Client
informed about the observable work, and to attempt to determine whether the work is in general conformance with the contract
documents. This is not a warranty from Galloway that the work is without defect. These periodic observations shall not be construed as
exhaustive or continuous inspections. Galloway shall not be responsible for contractor’s means, methods, techniques, sequences,
procedures, or safety programs since these are exclusively the responsibility of the contractor and because Galloway is neither
qualified nor licensed to be a contractor. Nothing herein shall relieve the contractor of responsibility for the quality of its work or impose
liability upon Galloway for the quality or timeliness of that work.

66



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 7 of 10 

G. Insurance:  Galloway shall maintain during the term of this Agreement insurance as set forth in Exhibit D, Schedule of Insurance.

H. Limitations:
1. Galloway agrees to indemnify and save Client harmless from any loss, cost, or expense, including reasonable attorney fees,

claimed by third parties for property damage or bodily injury, including death, caused by the negligence of Galloway in
connection with Galloway’s professional services. Client agrees to indemnify and save Galloway harmless from any loss, cost,
or expense, including attorney fees, claimed by third parties for property damage or bodily injury, including death, caused by
the negligence of Client in connection with the Project. If the negligence of both Galloway and Client is the cause of such
damage or injury, the loss, cost, or expense shall be shared between Galloway and Client in proportion to their relative
degrees of negligence and the right of indemnity shall apply for such proportion.

2. It is intended that the performance of Galloway’s services shall not subject the personnel of either party, including employees,
officers, directors, members, managers, and shareholders (collectively, “Personnel”), to any personal legal exposure for any
risk associated with the Project. Each party agrees that any claim, demand or suit shall be made only against a party and not
against any of its Personnel.

3. Client and Galloway agree that notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary (including any other
provision with the same or similar limiting language), to the fullest extent permitted by law: (a) the total liability in the
aggregate, of Galloway and its Personnel and independent professional associates, and any of them, to Client and anyone
claiming by, through, or under Client, for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages whatsoever (including,
without limitation, indemnity obligations, contract damages, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees) arising out of or in any
way related to Galloway’s services, the Project, or this Agreement, from any cause or causes whatsoever and regardless of
the legal theory asserted (including, without limitation, negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, misrepresentation, breach
of contract or warranty of Galloway or its Personnel or independent professional associates, or any of them), shall not exceed
the total compensation received by Galloway under this Agreement, and if separate tasks are issued by Service
Authorizations, then the total compensation received by Galloway for a specific service on a specific project at a specific
location, or the coverage limit provided in Exhibit D, whichever is less; (b) Client and Galloway waive claims against each
other: (i) for incidental, special, indirect, punitive or consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Agreement, and
Galloway shall not be liable for any cost or expense that provides betterment, upgrade or enhancement of the Project; and (ii)
and against the subcontractors, subconsultants and employees of the other for damages to the extent that the damages
sustained by either Galloway or Client are covered by property insurance.  The mutual waiver of consequential damages
under subsection (b) above shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss
of reputation or any other consequential damages that either party may have incurred from any cause of action including
negligence, strict liability, breach of contract and breach of strict or implied warranty.  Both the Client and Galloway shall
require similar waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all contracts and
subcontracts with others involved in this Project.

4. If, due to Galloway’s negligence, a required item or component of the Project is omitted from Galloway’s Instruments of
Service, Galloway shall not be responsible for paying the cost required to add such item or component to the extent that such
item or component would have been required and included in the original Instruments of Service. In no event shall Galloway
be responsible for any cost or expense that provides betterment or upgrades or enhances the value of the Project.

5. The provisions of this Section H shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement and shall apply to all services
provided to Client by Galloway, whether within or not within the Scope of Services of this Agreement, except as the parties
may otherwise provide in a signed writing making specific reference to this section H.

I. Unauthorized Changes: In the event that Client, Client’s contractors or subcontractors, or anyone for whom Client is legally liable
makes or permits to be made any changes to any reports, plans, specifications or other construction documents prepared by Galloway
without obtaining Galloway’s prior written consent, Client shall assume full responsibility for the results of such changes. Therefore,
Client agrees to waive any claim against Galloway and to release Galloway from any liability arising directly or indirectly from such
changes.

Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Galloway from any damages liabilities or 
costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of defense, arising from such changes.  In addition, Client agrees to include in any 
contracts for construction appropriate language that prohibits the contractor or any subcontractors of any tier from making any changes 
or modifications to Galloway’s construction documents without the prior written approval of Galloway and that further requires the 
Contractor to indemnify both Galloway and Client from any liability or cost arising from such changes made without such proper 
authorization. 

J. Changes to Scope of Services, Suspension:
1. Additional Service Authorizations must be executed prior to commencing any and all additional services.  Additional service

requests from Client must include a comment period, commencement date, expected completion date, and any special
conditions.  If changes or additions cause an increase or decrease in the services provided under this Agreement, Galloway
and Client shall memorialize such changes or additions to the services provided by completing a Service Authorization form.

2. Client may, upon written notice to Galloway, suspend further performance of Galloway’s services. In such case, Galloway will
promptly suspend its performance upon receiving said notice. During such period of suspension, Galloway shall care for and

67



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 8 of 10 

protect its services in progress for a period not to exceed 90 days, consecutively or in the aggregate.  Client shall pay for any 
additional costs and fees incurred by Galloway as a result of the suspension of services. If Client chooses to withdraw a 
suspension as to all or part of suspended services, it must do so with written notice to Galloway, specifying the effective date 
of such withdrawal.  If Galloway elects to proceed, Galloway may resume performance of the services for which the 
suspension was withdrawn within a reasonable amount of time of such notice of withdrawal. 

3. Appropriate adjustments shall be made to Galloway’s compensation and to any scheduling or deliverable dates justified by the
suspension or withdrawal of suspension, and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly.

K. Client Responsibilities:
1. Client shall cooperate with Galloway, in good faith, as necessary to allow Galloway to perform the services defined in this

Agreement.
2. Client shall provide Galloway with information and criteria of Client’s requirements for the Project.
3. Client shall provide access to the project site as necessary for Galloway’s performance of the Scope of Services.
4. Client shall examine and respond promptly to Galloway’s submissions to Client.
5. Client shall consult with Galloway on a regular basis concerning the timeliness, cost and adequacy of services as the services

progress, and promptly furnish to Galloway written notice of any noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement.

L. Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven (7) days written notice.  In the event of termination, all
fees due Galloway will be paid for services performed to the termination notice date plus reasonable termination expenses. Galloway
reserves the right to retain project related documents (electronic files and hard copies) upon contract termination until all payments for
services performed to date of termination are received by Galloway.

M. Governing Law:  All questions as to the interpretation or enforceability of this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the State of Colorado.  In the event of any litigation involving this Agreement or the performance by the parties thereto, such
actions shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Colorado.

All legal causes of action between the parties of this Agreement shall accrue and any applicable statutes of repose or limitation shall 
begin to run not later than the date of Substantial Completion.  In no event shall any statute of repose or limitation begin to run any later 
than the date Galloway’s services are completed or terminated. 

N. Miscellaneous:
1. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Scope of

Services, and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements relating thereto, written or oral. Unless
otherwise provided for herein, no amendments, changes, alterations or modifications of this Agreement shall be effective
unless in writing and executed by Galloway and Client.

2. Severability and Waiver.  If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid or inoperative, then so far as is reasonable and
possible, the remainder of this Agreement shall be deemed valid and operative, and effect shall be given to the intent
manifested by the portion held invalid or inoperative. The failure by either party to enforce against the other party any term or
provision of this Agreement shall be deemed not to be a waiver of such party’s right to enforce against the other party the
same or any other such term or provision.

3. Assignment.  Client shall not assign this Agreement or any part hereof without the prior written consent of Galloway, nor shall
Client assign any moneys due or to become due to it hereunder without the written consent of Galloway. Any such assignment
or subcontract shall be null and void.

4. Force Majeure.  Except for the payment of money for services already completed, each party shall not be liable to the other for
failure to perform its obligations hereunder if and to the extent that such failure to perform is caused by or results from causes
beyond its control, including without limitation, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, civil disturbances, fires, acts
of God, acts of a public enemy, compliance with any regulations, orders or requirements of any governmental body or agency,
or inability to obtain transportation or necessary materials in the open market.

5. Notices.  All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be served on the Parties at the following
address:

68



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

Galloway & Company, Inc.  Page 9 of 10 

Town of Lochbuie      Galloway & Company, Inc. 
For Technical Issues:  For Technical Issues: 
Attention:   Attention: Reade Roselles 

Email:   Email: Reade Roselles@GallowayUS.com 

Address:   Address: 5265 Ronald Reagan Blvd.,  
Suite 210 
Johnstown, CO 80534 

    

    
   
For Contractual Issues:  For Contractual Issues: 
Attention:   Attention: Frank Kohl 

Email:   Email: FrankKohl@GallowayUS.com 

Address:   Address: 5265 Ronald Reagan Blvd.,  
Suite 210 
Johnstown, CO 80534 

    

    
 

Any such notices shall be either: (i) sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice shall be deemed 
delivered three business days after deposit, postage prepaid in the U.S. Mail; (ii) sent by overnight delivery using a nationally 
recognized overnight courier, in which case it shall be deemed delivered one business day after deposit with such courier; (iii) 
sent by personal delivery or (iv) sent by email with read/receipt required and shall be deemed delivered upon receipt to the 
sending party of the acknowledged read/receipt. The above addresses may be changed by written notice to the other Party; 
provided, however, that no notice of a change of address shall be effective until actual receipt of such notice. Copies of notices 
are for informational purposes only, and a failure to give or receive copies of any notice shall not be deemed a failure to give 
notice. 

6. Mediation.  If any dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, and the dispute cannot be settled 
through direct discussions by the representatives of the Parties, the Parties agree then to submit the matter to mediation under 
the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association before having recourse to a judicial forum.  
No written or oral representation made during the course of any settlement negotiations or mediation shall be deemed a party 
admission. Costs of mediation shall be shared equally by both parties.   

7. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Agreement and all rights of action relating to 
such enforcement shall be strictly reserved to Galloway and Client.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries.  

8. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and by electronic signature which when taken together shall 
constitute one document.  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

69



Town of Lochbuie 

Right of Way Surveys 
February 1, 2024 

Galloway & Company, Inc. Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT B 

2024 SCHEDULE OF RATES 

CATEGORY  HOURLY RATE 

Management $160 - $200 
President 
Principal 
Sr. Project Manager  
Team Manager 

Surveying 
Survey Project Manager  $140 - $175 
Project Surveyor  $115 - $145 
Survey Party Chief – Office   $125 
Senior Survey Party Chief – Office (PLS) $155 
Instrument Operator – Office  $90 
1-Person Field Crew $140† 
2-Person Field Crew $210† 
1-Person PLS Crew $170† 
2-Person PLS Crew $235† 
1-Person Construction Staking Crew $150†* 
2-Person Construction Staking Crew $225†* 
2-Person PLS Construction Staking Crew $250†* 
1-Person, 1 UTV $185† 
2-Person, 2 Rover $240† 
2-Person, 1 ROVER, BOAT, GPS-SONAR $270† 
2-Person, 2 Rover & UTV $290† 
1-Person Utility Locating Services $125† 
1-Person High Definition Scanning $210† 
2-Person High Definition Scanning $325† 
3-Person Field Crew – Instrument Operator $0 
3-Person Field Crew – Party Chief, Survey $260† 
3-Person Field Crew – Party Chief, Construction $275†* 
Drone Services Project Manager $160 
Drone Services Project Pilot Non-Flying $150 
Drone Services Flight Team (Flying) $400 
Drone Services Flight Team (Travel) $205 
Drone Services Data Processing $145 

CADD 
Survey Technician (Survey-Based CADD Calculations) $95 - $130 
CADD Technician     $90 - $140 
CADD Designer  $120 - $145 

† This rate includes mileage for projects located within 30 miles of Galloway’s local office. 
* Galloway crew rates for construction staking are inclusive of materials and equipment used for the project.

70



Agenda Item Summary (AIS) 

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2024 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 2024-13: Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 Final Plat 

and Subdivision Improvement Agreement QuikTrip Development  
PRESENTED BY: Sonya Thornton, Planner I 

Chris Kennedy, Community Development Director 
SUMMARY 

This is a request for the Board of Trustees to consider a final plat for the Highplains Filing No. 1 
property (located at northeast corner of CR2/Bonanza).  The final plat is the last step in re-
subdividing (re-platting) the property to create developable lots to facilitate a multi-store 
commercial center.  Approval of a preliminary plat that conforms with the requirements of the 
Town Code is the first step in the subdivision process.  The Board approved the preliminary plat 
on February 21, 2023.  Town code requires approval of the final plat without a public hearing if 
the final plat conforms with the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has found that the lot 
configuration, street layout, utility plan, and drainage system presented in the final plat conform 
with the approved preliminary plat and, therefore, recommends approval of the request.   

71



BACKGROUND – SUBDIVISIONS 

Article III of the Lochbuie Land Use Regulations regulates the subdivision of land.  Sec. 19-3-205 
classifies subdivisions as either “minor” or “major.”  A subdivision is a “major” subdivision when 
it would create four (4) or more new parcels of land (lots, tracts) and/or when public 
infrastructure is required to support the development. “Re-subdivisions” that propose to 
reconfigure existing lots can also be subject to the major subdivision process.  

Quiktrip is proposing to re-subdivide the property into more than four new parcels of land, 
therefore, it has been processed as a major subdivision.   

Major subdivisions require a two-step process beginning with review of a preliminary subdivision 
plat map, which provides a master plan for the proposed subdivision.  Preliminary plats must 
demonstrate a fully functioning development, which includes a logical lot layout and utilities, 
transportation facilities, drainage systems and landscape plans that provide adequate services in 
compliance with relevant code provisions.  

The second step in the subdivision process is the final plat, which completes the subdivision with 
detailed engineering plans, a standard subdivision improvement agreement (SIA) which secures 
collateral for the installation of public infrastructure, and recordation of the plat to create legal 
lots for development.   

DISCUSSION 

The applicant (Quik Trip convenience store company) is proposing a multi-lot commercial center 
on the 22.26-acre Highplains Filing No. 1 property (generally located at northeast corner of 
CR2/Bonanza).  The initial process for developing the commercial center includes the re-
subdivision (A.K.A. re-platting) of the property into five new commercial lots and two new tracts 
for future development (includes preliminary, final plat, subdivision improvement agreement), 
as described previously. 

On February 21, 2023, the Board of Trustees held a public hearing and approved a preliminary 
subdivision plat request for the same property (Outlots G through N of the Highplains subdivision, 
Filing No. 1).  The approved preliminary plat outlines a master plan for a commercial center 
comprised of five (5) new commercial lots, two (2) new tracts, and additional right-of-way to 
accommodate required road widening.  The preliminary plat includes preliminary infrastructure 

72



plans for utilities (water, sewer, gas, electric, etc.), transportation and drainage facilities and 
landscaping.     

Final Plat Review 

After the approval of the preliminary plat, the applicant submitted an application for a final plat 
to complete the re-subdivision process.  The purpose of the final plat is to finish the subdivision 
through the completion of associated engineering plans and execution of a subdivision 
improvement agreement (SIA), which estimates the costs of installing required infrastructure and 
provides collateral to the Town to ensure that the infrastructure is installed appropriately. 

Section 19-3-230 of the Town’s land development code establishes the following criteria for 
approval of a final plat: 

“The only basis for rejection of the final plat shall be nonconformance to current Code 
requirements affecting the subject property, or nonconformance with the approved 
preliminary plat.” 

The preliminary plat was originally found to meet all relevant code requirements when the Board 
approved it on February 21, 2023.  Staff has found the final plat to be in strict conformance with 
the preliminary plat, as approved.  Therefore, after a thorough review of the proposal, staff has 
found that the attached final plat satisfies the criteria required for approval.   

Approval Process 

Staff has processed the final plat application in accordance with Sections 19-1-215 and 19-3-230 
of the Lochbuie Land Use Regulations, which outlines the steps to submitting a final plat 
application, including sharing the application materials with relevant utilities, fire and rescue 
agencies and other special districts for review.  Comments from such agencies were addressed 
in revised plan sets.   

In accordance with Sections 19-1-215 and 19-2-230 of the Lochbuie Land Use Regulations, 
because the final plat is in conformance with the approved preliminary plat (which required a 
public hearing and public notice), neither public notice nor a public hearing is required prior to 
approval.   

73



LEGAL ISSUES 

As discussed previously, a standard Subdivision Improvement Agreement (SIA) is required with 
the approval of the final plat under Section 19-7-170 of the Lochbuie Land Use Regulations.  The 
SIA is a legal contract that requires the developer to provide collateral to the Town to ensure that 
the infrastructure required to serve the project is installed appropriately.  Collateral amounts are 
based on estimates for the costs of installing the infrastructure.  The estimates are certified by 
the Town’s engineers and included as an exhibit in the SIA.   

FINANCIAL IMPACTS 

The commercial center will benefit the Town through increases in sales, use and property tax 
revenues, and increased permit fee revenue as the center is developed. 

A common method for sharing the cost of installing a traffic signal at a given intersection is to 
split that cost four ways between the developers of each corner of that intersection.  Because 
Quiktrip will only occupy one (northeast) corner of the CR 37 and Bonanza intersection, that 
single development will not be responsible for the total (estimated) cost of $684,200 to construct 
the required traffic signal.  The northwest corner of the intersection was developed (High Plains) 
long ago and no funds were collected from that developer for a future signal.  However, the Town 
has collected funds from the Lochbuie Center/Station project for the south half (SE/SW corners) 
of the intersection to be applied to the cost of a signal at that location.  As a result, the Town has 
an outstanding obligation to contribute to the cost of the traffic signal and has allocated $500,000 
(73% of total cost) in the approved 2024 budget for reimbursements to the developer after the 
signal is installed, inspected and accepted by the Town.   

STAFF CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

After evaluation of this proposal staff has arrived at the following conclusions: 
1. The proposal was reviewed in accordance with the requirements of the Town’s Land

Use Regulations and found to comply with the review criteria in Section 19-3-230.
2. The proposal will benefit the Town by providing additional services to the community,

increasing tax revenues and serving as a catalyst for the development of additional
commercial property.

Based on the information presented and the conclusions outlined above, staff recommends 
that the Board of Trustees approve the request by adopting Resolution No. 2024-13.  

74



Suggested Motion (if needed): 
“I move that the Board of Trustees adopt Resolution No. 2024-13 approving High Plains Filing 
No. 1, Amendment No. 1 Final Plat and the Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the 
Town and QuikTrip Corporation.”   

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Highplains Filing No. 1 Amendment No. 1 Final Plat (Exhibit 1 to Resolution No. 2024-13)
2. Subdivision Improvement Agreement QuikTrip Development (Exhibit 2 to Resolution No.

2024-13)

75



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF ADAMS AND WELD 

COLORADO  

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF 
LOCHBUIE APPROVING THE HIGHPLAINS FILING NO. 1, 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 FINAL PLAT AND THE SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN AND QUIKTRIP 
CORPORATION 

WHEREAS, the QuikTrip Corporation (“QuikTrip” or “Applicant”) owns real property 
generally located northeast of the corner of Bonanza Boulevard and East 168th Avenue and 
described as Outlots G through N, Highplains Filing No. 1, County of Weld, State of Colorado 
which is in the southeast quarter of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M. 
(the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, QuikTrip submitted the Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 
Preliminary Plat of the Property to the Town which was approved by the Board of Trustees through 
Resolution 2023-10 following a public hearing (the “Preliminary Plat”); and 

WHEREAS, QuikTrip submitted a final plat for Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 
1 (“Final Plat”), attached hereto as Exhibit 1, that conforms to the approved Preliminary Plat and 
the current provisions of the Lochbuie Municipal Code as required by Section 19-3-230 of the 
Lochbuie Land Use Regulations (the “Regulations”); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 19-1-225 of the Regulations, the approval of the 
Final Plat does not require a public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the record for the Final Plat includes, but is not limited to, the Regulations, 
the Lochbuie Municipal Code, the Town of Lochbuie Comprehensive Plan, and all other applicable 
ordinances, resolutions and regulations, together with the Town’s policies for processing 
preliminary plat applications, the staff files and reports, consultant reports and comments, any and 
all submittals by QuikTrip and members of the public; and  

WHEREAS, Section 19-7-210 of the Regulations require a subdivision improvement 
agreement between the applicant and the Town for cost and construction of public improvements 
needed to support the development; and 

WHEREAS, for certain development to occur within the lots and tracts shown on the Final 
Plat, the Town requires QuikTrip construct certain onsite and offsite public improvements as 
further described in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement QuikTrip Development attached 
hereto as Exhibit 2; and 

76



WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees desires to approve the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement QuikTrip Development in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of 
Lochbuie, Colorado as follows:  

Section 1.   The Town Board of Trustees adopts the recitals set forth in this Resolution 
as findings of the Board and hereby approves the Final Plat subject to the following conditions:  

A. The Applicant shall resolve and correct any technical issues as directed
by Town staff prior to recordation of the Final Plat mylar; and

B. The Applicant shall pay any and all remaining fees and costs incurred
by the Town and its consultants in review and processing of the
application in full prior to recordation of the Final Plat mylar.

Section 2. The Community Development Director is authorized to make any changes 
to the mylar form of the approved Final Plat to correct errors and to make such other changes that 
are expressly authorized or required pursuant to this Resolution.  

Section 3.   The Town Board of Trustees approves the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement QuikTrip Development (“SIA”) in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 2 
with minor revisions thereto approved by the Town Attorney and the Town Administrator, 
authorizes the Mayor to execute the same on behalf of the Town and directs the Community 
Development Director to cause such SIA to be recorded by the Clerk and Recorder for Weld 
County.  

Section 4.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

INTRODUCED, READ AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of February, 2024. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 

Michael Mahoney, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Heather Bowen, Town Clerk 

77



EXHIBIT 1 

HIGHPLAINS FILING NO. 1, AMENDMENT 1 FINAL PLAT 

78



EXHIBIT 2 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT QUIKTRIP DEVELOPMENT 

79



80



81



82



83



N89°57'27"E

172.01'

N89°57'27"E

279.83'

N89°57'27"E

110.53'

N
0
°0

2
'3

3
"W

2
7
1
.8

2
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
7
1
.8

3
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

5
1
9
.2

7
'

N89°57'27"E

572.37'

L=39.27', R=25.00'

CB = N44°57'27"E

CD = 35.36'

L=54.98', R=35.00'

CB = S45°02'33"E

CD = 49.50'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
3
6
.8

3
'

E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W.

VARIES)

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

3
5
.0

0
'

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

1
6
0
.6

8
'

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5
' R

.O
.W

.)

G3SE (P-113)

STORE NO.: 4208

5,312 S.F.

BLDG. HT.= 20'-0"
W

VAN

1
5

K
 U

N
L

E
A

D
E

D
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

SUBMERGED

PUMP

1
5

K
 U

N
L

E
A

D
E

D
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

1
5

K
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 X
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

1
5

K
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

1
6

K
 D

IE
S

E
L

 (
1

0
.5

'Ø
)

30 15 0 30 60

N

C100

SITE PLAN

SITE LEGEND

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

12
/0

5/
20

22

2N
D 

QT
 C

D 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

3/
17

/2
3

1
3R

D 
QT

 C
D 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
8/

29
/2

3
2

4T
H 

QT
 C

D 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

12
/1

3/
23

3

84



SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT  
QUIKTRIP DEVELOPMENT 

 
This Subdivision Improvements Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the ___ day 
of____________________, 2024 by and between the TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, Colorado a 
municipal corporation of Weld and Adams Counties, State of Colorado (“Town”) and QUIKTRIP 
CORPORATION, an Oklahoma corporation (“Owner”), as owner and developer of the property 
located within the Town of Lochbuie, Colorado described in this Agreement.  Town and Owner are 
referred to singularly as a “Party” and jointly as the “Parties.” This Agreement shall be effective 
upon the date it is recorded. 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Owner owns all the real property as described in attached Exhibit A (the “Property”). 

 
B. The Town approved the final plat of Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 (the “Plat”) 

that created Lots 1 through 5 (“Lots”) and Tracts A and B (“Tracts”) and other common areas 
or dedicated lands within or adjacent to the Property. (Hereinafter, the Lots and Tracts and other 
development and common areas, to include public right of way within and adjacent thereto, are 
referred to together as the “Development Area”.)  
 

C. The Town approved or is in the process of approving the QuikTrip Store #4208 Site Plan, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit B (the “Site Plan”). The 
Site Plan identifies the development of Lots 1 through 3 and the Tracts along with other certain 
improvements necessary to serve the development.  

 
D. The Town approved or is in the process of approving certain documents that govern the 

construction of the public infrastructure required to serve the Development Area, both on-site 
and off-site, including without limitation, drainage reports and plans, geotechnical reports, 
traffic studies, utility plans, landscape plans, water and sanitary sewer plans, lighting plans and 
roadway plans (“Construction Documents”).  
 

E. As a condition of the approval of the Plat and the Site Plan, the Town requires the construction 
by Owner of certain public improvements and facilities, both onsite and offsite of the 
Development Area, including those improvements shown on the Site Plan and Plat and any 
Construction Documents approved by the Town for the Development Area as set forth in this 
Agreement in the Schedule of Improvements in Exhibit C (the “Improvements”). The term 
Improvements includes Owner’s obligation to install a warranted traffic signal for the 
intersection of Bonanza Boulevard and East 168th Avenue (the “Traffic Signal”) with 
contribution from the Town following expiration of the warranty. This Agreement shall govern 
the terms of all Improvements including the Traffic Signal which shall be built by Owner or its 
assigns within the Development Area.  

 
F. For each Lot within the Development Area, the individual user of such Lot will dedicate water 

resources in amounts sufficient to serve the use thereon as part of the approval process for 
development of the Lot through a separately executed Water Resource Credit Agreement (the 

85



“WRC Agreement”). The Owner will dedicate water resources in amounts sufficient to serve 
the uses shown in the Site Plan prior to approval of a construction permit for the development 
of Lots 1 through 3 through a separately executed WRC Agreement. 

G. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the obligations of the Owner to construct and
warrant the quality of the Improvements which are required as a condition of approval of the
Plat and Site Plan by the Town.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the covenants, 
promises and agreements of all the parties hereto, to be kept and performed by each of them, IT IS 
AGREED: 

1. CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS.

1.1 Construction of Improvements. Owner shall design, purchase, and install all
elements of the Improvements at Owners’ sole expense.  The Improvements shall be designed and 
built in conformance with the latest edition of the Town of Lochbuie standards or specifications 
for public improvements, unless otherwise provided in the Plat, Site Plan, or any Construction 
Documents or other plans approved by the Town. All Improvements shall be designed and 
approved by a registered professional engineer retained by the Owner. Prior to the commencement 
of construction of the Improvements, the Owner must obtain all required permits and other 
approvals from the Town including approval of Construction Documents.   

1.2 Schedule of Improvements. Exhibit C shows in detail or describe the public and 
other required subdivision or development improvements, including wet and dry utilities, 
landscaping, revegetation and other subdivision or development improvements that the Owner shall 
be responsible for constructing, and the costs therefor.  No work shall be commenced by the Owner 
until such time as the Improvements Guarantee (as defined in Section 1.6) has been provided 
pursuant to this Agreement.  The Schedule of Improvements (Exhibit C) shall at a minimum include 
the following types of improvements as well as the construction costs necessary to provide the 
Improvements for the development shown in the approved Construction Documents. 

(a) Water Distribution System. Water distribution facilities including water
mains, lateral service lines to the lot lines, valves, fire hydrants, and all other appurtenant 
facilities necessary to provide treated municipal water service. 

(b) Wastewater Collection System. Wastewater collection system to fully
service the subdivision, including collection lines, service lines to the lot lines, manholes, 
and all other appurtenant facilities necessary to provide municipal wastewater service. 

(c) Streets. Street improvements necessary to fully service the subdivision,
including grading, road-base and sub-base, asphalt, curbs and gutters, handicap ramps, 
drainage facilities, traffic control facilities, and all other appurtenant facilities necessary to 
provide street access for public and private roads.  

(d) Traffic Signal. All equipment, cabinets, electrical connections, polls, lights,

86



signals and related equipment for the Traffic Signal.  

(e) Storm drainage facilities and appurtenances.  Improvement Guarantee for
these types of improvements may be provided to a third party with advance Town approval. 

(f) Street lighting.

(g) Soil stabilization and revegetation measures.

(h) Visual screening facilities.

(i) Irrigation system.

(j) Landscaping.

(k) Any other subdivision or development improvements required by the Board
of Trustees as a condition of approval of the Plat. 

Installation of dry utilities, including telephone, cable television, electrical service, and 
natural gas service are required but not a part of Exhibit C for purposes of determining the 
Improvements Guarantee amount. 

1.3 Timing. 

(a) The Owner must dedicate sufficient water by WRC Agreement before any
Town-required permit will be issued for any development (including grading) work within 
the Development Area. Building permits for the Lots to be developed within the 
Development Area shall be issued so long as the Improvements needed to serve the vertical 
development have been installed and any adjacent roads shown in the approved 
Construction Documents that are required to access the Lots have been installed and 
substantially completed. Temporary certificates of occupancy for the structures on the Lots 
in the Development Area shall be conditioned on the substantial completion of the 
Improvements. 

(b) Except where a shorter time-period is prescribed, all Improvements shall be
installed, constructed, or performed, as applicable, by Owner within two (2) years from the 
date of this issuance of a development permit. It is within the Town’s sole discretion to grant 
an extension of time for the completion of Improvements. Extensions of time up to an 
additional one (1) year period for completion of Improvements may be granted by the Town 
subject to the Owner’s submission of updated construction cost estimates for completion of 
the remaining Improvements and additional or replacement Improvements Guarantee (as 
defined below). The Town Administrator is authorized to approve extensions of time 
identified in this paragraph.  

1.4 Maintenance, Workmanship and Acceptance/Ownership of Improvements.   

(a) Subject to (b) and (c) of this paragraph 1.4, all Improvements shall be kept

87



and maintained by Owner in good order and condition until the Town issues a letter of Final 
Acceptance pursuant to this Agreement. Owner shall, at its cost, repair or replace any 
damage or destruction of those Improvements to be accepted by the Town prior to such 
Final Acceptance, except to the extent that such damage or destruction is caused by agents 
or employees of the Town. Unless otherwise specified, all materials for Improvements shall 
be new and both workmanship and materials shall be of good quality. 

(b) The Town will accept ownership or dedication only of the water and
sanitary sewer main lines and fire hydrants and of no other Improvements within the 
portions of the Development Area not dedicated as public right of way. 

(c) The proposed wall with hand-rail along Weld County Road 37 as shown in
the Construction Documents shall be included on Exhibit C but shall be kept and maintained 
by Owner or its assign in perpetuity pursuant to the terms of an agreement to be entered into 
between the Town and the Owner prior to Final Acceptance.   

1.5 Construction Cost Estimate.  Exhibit C contains, for each Improvement, an 
engineer’s estimate of all costs and expenses associated with the construction and completion of 
each and all Improvements to be constructed by Owner to include a cost contingency of an 
additional fifteen percent (15%) of the total estimated construction costs in accordance with this 
Agreement (“Improvements Costs”).  The sole purpose of said Improvements Costs estimate is to 
determine the amount of security to secure Owner’s Improvements Guarantee obligations as set 
forth in Section 1.6 and must be revised when requested by the Town Administrator to reflect actual 
costs.   

1.6 Security for Improvements. 

(a) Prior to the commencement of construction of the Improvements, the
Owner shall furnish to the Town, at the Owner's expense, a good and sufficient 
guarantee for construction of the Improvements in the form of cash, performance bond, 
or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a federally or state-chartered bank with 
offices in Colorado in a form reasonably acceptable to the Town for an amount equal 
to the Improvements Costs plus an additional 15% to cover Town administrative costs 
to install and maintain the Improvements in the event that Owner fails to meet its 
obligations under this Agreement (“Improvements Guarantee”). 

(b) Where the Developer and the Town have agreed to a phasing of the Public
Improvements, the required Improvements Guarantee for a phase shall be delivered to and 
accepted by the Town prior to the commencement of construction of the Public 
Improvements for that particular phase. 

(c) The Improvements Guarantee shall be maintained, in the amount required
by this Agreement, and subject to partial releases as contemplated herein, through Final 
Acceptance of the Improvements by the Town.  The amount of any original Improvements 
Guarantee provided to the Town shall be reduced in scope and/or amount upon Construction 
Acceptance as defined in Section 2.7. Prior to commencement of the Warranty Period, 

88



seventy-five percent (75%) of the Improvements Guarantee will be returned to the Owner 
for all Improvements for which Construction Acceptance has occurred. Upon Final 
Acceptance of the Improvements, the remaining the Improvements Guarantee shall be 
released as to the Improvements which have been the subject of such Final Acceptance. 

(d) At least ninety (90) calendar days prior to the expiration date of the
Improvements Guarantee, the Owner shall extend or modify the Improvements Guarantee 
to provide the Town with an Improvements Guarantee with a term and amount sufficient to 
cover the time and cost for completing any remaining obligations, including warranty 
obligations, of the Owner under this Agreement. The Owner's failure to provide such an 
amended form of Improvements Guarantee prior to said ninety (90) day period shall 
constitute a failure to perform in accordance with this Agreement and shall give the Town 
the right to proceed immediately to liquidate the existing Improvements Guarantee. 

(e) In the event that any Improvements Guarantee expires or the entity issuing
the Improvements Guarantee becomes disqualified to provide the same, or (if prior to 
Construction Acceptance) the Improvements Guarantee becomes insufficient to cover one 
hundred and fifteen percent (115%) of the estimated cost of the Improvements that remain 
to be completed, or if after Construction Acceptance, to cover 15% of the Improvements 
Costs for which Construction Acceptance has occurred, the Owner shall provide the Town 
with a substitution qualifying Improvements Guarantee, or an additional amount of the 
Improvements Guarantee, as appropriate. Prior to Final Acceptance of all Improvements, if 
the Owner fails to comply with this directive, the Owner will be in default of this 
Agreement and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 4 herein and shall also be 
subject to suspension of the development activities by the Town, including but not 
limited to the Town’s refusal to issue building permits and certificates of occupancy. 

2. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES.

2.1 Engineering Services. The Owner shall procure at its sole expense all engineering
services necessary and appropriate in conjunction with the development of the Property and the 
Improvements, which shall fully conform to the Town's applicable ordinances, standards and 
specifications.  Professional services shall be performed by engineers, surveyors, architects or 
other professionals duly licensed by the State of Colorado as may be appropriate. 

2.2 Development Review Costs.   Owner shall be responsible for reasonable Town 
incurred third party consultant development application review costs and shall enter into a 
separate agreement with the Town to deposit funds with the Town to pay such costs.  A failure to 
pay any invoice thereunder within thirty days of receipt may result in the issuance of an order by 
the Town to stop all work in the Development Area.  

2.3 Licensing of Contractors and/or Subcontractors. The Owner shall ensure that all 
contractors and/or subcontractors employed by the Owner to make the applicable Improvements 
shall be licensed by the Town before any work on the Improvements is commenced. The Owner 
shall at all times promptly make payments of all amounts due to the persons or entities supplying 
labor, materials or services in connection with the Improvements. 

89



2.4 Testing. The Owner shall employ at its sole expense an independent, professional 
and qualified testing company to perform all testing of materials or construction that may 
reasonably be required by the Town to ensure compliance with Town standards and 
specifications. The Owner shall furnish the Town with certified copies of test results and agrees 
to release and authorize full access to the Town and its designated representatives to all work-
up materials, procedures and documents used in preparing the test results. 

2.5 Inspection.  At all times during construction of the Improvements, and until Final 
Acceptance thereof by the Town, the Town shall have the right but not the duty to inspect materials 
and workmanship to ascertain conformance with the approved plans and Town standards and 
specifications. Town incurred reasonable costs for inspection will be the responsibility of Owner.  
Owner shall be required to deposit the amount of $20,000.00 with the Town to be held by separate 
accounting for purposes of reimbursing the Town its third-party costs for inspection of the 
construction of the Improvements and any third-party costs incurred by the Town in relation to 
inspection and acceptance of the Improvements to ensure compliance with this Agreement.  The 
Town shall provide to Owner a monthly accounting of all such costs incurred in connection with 
such inspections and, if necessary, Owner shall be required to replenish the deposit whenever the 
amount on deposit goes below $10,000.  Prior to commencement of the Warranty Period, any 
remaining unused funds on deposit will be returned to Owner. Depletion of the deposit account 
shall not relieve Owner of its obligation to reimburse the Town for these costs.  A failure to pay 
any invoice for such costs within thirty days of receipt may result in the issuance of an order by 
the Town to stop all work in the Development Area. The Owner shall reasonably cooperate and 
assist the Town to gain appropriate access to the areas designated for inspection. It shall also be 
the duty of the Owner to notify the Town upon discovery of any non-conformance with the said 
plans, standards and specifications. Inspection and acceptance of work by the Town shall not 
relieve the Owner of any responsibility under this Agreement. 

2.6 Street Access.  The Owner's work shall conform to the requirements for erosion 
control as are accepted as standards in the construction industry as well as those standards set forth 
in the ordinances and regulations of the Town. The Owner shall be responsible, at its own expense, 
for keeping on-site streets used as construction routes, and rights-of-way clear of mud, rocks and 
debris at all times during said construction.   The Owner shall, within 24 hours of verbal 
notification by the Town of non-compliance with this Section, commence clean-up operations 
and shall diligently pursue completion of said operations to the satisfaction of the Town. If 
the Owner fails to respond within 24 hours, or the Town is unable to contact the Owner after 
reasonable effort, or the Owner fails to diligently pursue clean-up operations to the 
satisfaction of the Town, the Town may take corrective action to clear the affected streets and 
rights-of-way and invoice the Owner for the same.  A failure to pay any invoice therefor within 
forty days of receipt may result in the issuance of an order by the Town to stop all work in the 
Development Area. 

2.7 Construction Acceptance. 

(a) No later than ten (10) days after the Owner believes that any
Improvement(s) are substantially completed in accordance with the Town approved 

90



Construction Documents, Owner shall request inspection by the Town.  
 
(b) The Town agrees to commence said inspections and to diligently 

prosecute such inspection to completion.  If Owner does not request this inspection 
within ten (10) days of completion of the Improvement(s), the Town may conduct the 
inspection without approval of the Owner.  If Improvements have reached a point of 
substantial completion in accordance with the Construction Documents, have been 
inspected and approved by the Town as being substantially completed in accordance 
with the Construction Documents, and all punch-list items shall have been completed, 
such Improvements shall be deemed to have "Construction Acceptance” which shall be 
subject to Final Acceptance (as defined below). Construction Acceptance shall be 
evidenced by the Town's issuance of a Construction Acceptance Letter in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit D. If Improvements constructed by Owner are not 
constructed in substantial accordance with the Construction Documents, the Town shall 
provide written notice to Owner of the repairs, replacements, construction or other work 
required to receive Construction Acceptance. The Town agrees to provide a Letter of 
Construction Acceptance or Rejection within ten (10) business days following 
completion of the Town inspection. If the Town rejects certain Improvements, it shall 
provide a written punch-list of all corrective work that it requires as part of such 
rejection letter. In either event, the Owner is required to complete the corrective work 
within forty-five (45) days of the Town's deficiency notice, subject to force majeure 
events.  

 
(c) If the Town has refused to issue Construction Acceptance as to any 

Improvements, after Owner completes repairs, replacements, construction or other 
work required by the rejection letter, Owner shall request of the Town a re-inspection 
of such work, from time to time, to determine if Construction Acceptance can be 
granted, and the Town shall provide written notice to Owner of the acceptability or 
unacceptability of such work prior to proceeding to complete any such work at Owner's 
expense. If Owner does not complete the repairs, replacements, construction, or other 
work required within forty-five (45) days of said notice, the Owner shall be in default 
of this Agreement and the Town may exercise the right to secure performance as 
provided in Section 4 of this Agreement. The Town reserves the right to schedule re-
inspections, depending upon scope of deficiencies. No Certificate of Occupancy shall 
be issued by the Town for property located within that portion of the Property prior to 
Construction Acceptance of the Improvements. 
 
 (d) The Town will not accept the Improvements on Tracts A and B for Town 
ownership and maintenance. Owner or its assign will be responsible for all maintenance 
of those Improvements in perpetuity. 

 
2.8 Warranty.   

 
(a) For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Warranty Period” means a 

period of twenty-four (24) months from the date of Construction Acceptance and applies 
to the Improvements that will be dedicated to the Town for ownership and maintenance.  

91



(b) During the Warranty Period, the Owner shall be responsible for making
any repairs or replacements to the Improvements required due to (a) defective materials, 
workmanship, or design, or (b) such damage that may be done to the Improvements during 
the Warranty Period, except such damage that is directly attributable to Town equipment 
or personnel. If, subject to force majeure events, within thirty (30) days after Owner's 
receipt of written notice from the Town requesting such warranty repairs or replacements, 
the Owner has not completed such repairs, the Town may exercise its rights to secure 
performance as provided in Section 4 of this Agreement. If the Warranty Period ends in 
the time period from November to March, the period shall automatically be extended 
through the end of April. Upon Final Acceptance, as defined below, the Town will accept 
and maintain those Improvements dedicated to the Town.  

(c) If the Town has a legitimate public health or safety concern with an
Improvement, the period for repair may be shortened to a reasonable time to remedy such 
concern.  

(d) At least thirty (30) days before the Warranty Period has elapsed from the
issuance of Construction Acceptance or as soon thereafter as weather permits, Owner shall 
request an inspection of Improvements installed by Owner for ownership and maintenance 
by the Town. The Town shall inspect the Improvements and shall notify the Owner in 
writing of all deficiencies and necessary repairs Owner must make. After Owner has 
corrected all deficiencies and made all necessary repairs identified in said written notice, 
along with conveyance of all “as-built” drawings and other requirements, the Town will 
issue to Owner a letter of final acceptance. The date of the letter of final acceptance 
constitute final acceptance of the Improvements by the Town (“Final Acceptance”). If 
Owner does not correct all deficiencies and make repairs identified in said inspection that 
are Owner's obligation, within thirty (30) days after receipt of said notice, subject to force 
majeure events, such failure shall be a default by Owner under this Agreement, and the 
Town may exercise its rights to secure performance as is provided in Section 4 of this 
Agreement. If at the time of Final Acceptance any mechanic's liens have been filed with 
respect to the Improvements, and such liens have not been released of record or bonded 
off, the Town may retain all or a portion of the Improvements Guarantee up to the amount 
of such liens. 

(e) Nothing herein shall be construed or deemed as requiring the Town to
finally accept and release from warranty any Improvements that are defective or damaged 
except for those Improvements that are defective or damaged due to Town equipment or 
personnel. 

(f) Required As-Built Construction Documents.  When Owner has
substantially completed the Improvements as provided herein, Owner shall provide, at its 
cost, one (1) paper copy in full size, one (1) paper copy in 11”x17” size, one .pdf file, and 
one CAD file of all necessary engineering designs, surveys, field surveys and “as-built” 
drawings showing the Improvements in their as-built locations at the time of Owner’s 
request for Construction Acceptance of the Improvements.  As-built drawings shall be 

92



prepared under the direction of a Colorado registered professional engineer, certifying that 
the constructed Improvements are in substantial conformance with the Construction 
Documents or that any material deviations have received prior written approval from the 
Town. The engineer’s certification may be based in part on surveys by a Colorado 
registered land surveyor and a certified letter from the project’s geotechnical inspector. 
The legal description of all utility service lines shall be prepared by a registered land 
surveyor at the Owner’s sole expense. 

 
2.9 Final Acceptance.  

 
(a) At least thirty (30) days before the Warranty Period has elapsed, or as 

soon thereafter as weather permits, the Owner shall provide notice to the Town Engineer 
or Town Administrator that the Improvements are ready for final inspection, ownership, 
and maintenance by the Town. The Town shall inspect the Improvements and shall notify 
the Owner in writing of all deficiencies and necessary repairs Owner must make. If Owner 
does not correct all deficiencies and make repairs identified in said inspection that are 
Owner's obligation, within thirty (30) days after receipt of said notice, subject to force 
majeure events, such failure shall be a default by Owner under this Agreement, and the 
Town may exercise its rights to secure performance as is provided in Section 4 of this 
Agreement.  

 
(b) After Owner has corrected all deficiencies and made all necessary repairs 

identified in said written notice, submitted all lien waivers, conveyed to the Town all 
Improvements, and provided the required documents to the Town, including written and 
electronic final as-builts, the Town will issue to Owner a letter of final acceptance of the 
Improvements by the Town for its ownership and maintenance (“Final Acceptance”). If 
at the time of Final Acceptance any mechanic's liens have been filed with respect to the 
Improvements, and such liens have not been released of record or bonded off, the Town 
may retain all or a portion of the Improvements Guarantee up to the amount of such liens. 
 

(c) Nothing herein shall be construed or deemed as requiring the Town to 
finally accept and release from warranty any Improvements that are defective or damaged 
except for those Improvements that are defective or damaged due to Town equipment or 
personnel.  

 
2.10 Dedication of Right-of-Way and Easements. The completed Improvements, with 

the exception of those Improvements on Tracts A and B and the other Retained Improvements or 
those dedicated to other entities, shall become the sole property of the Town, free and clear of all 
liens, encumbrances, and restrictions upon Final Acceptance by the Town.  Prior to and as a 
condition of Final Acceptance, Owner shall furnish to the Town unconditional lien waivers that 
all claims and payments to be made in connection with construction of said Improvements have 
been satisfied.  Prior to dedicating the Improvements to the Town, the Owner will dedicate to the 
Town by special warranty deed all rights-of-way and easements within the Property that are 
necessary for the operation and maintenance of the Improvements that are not dedicated by the Plat. 
Such rights-of-way and easements will be free and clear of all monetary liens and encumbrances 
which materially interfere with the intended use of the right-of-way or easement. The Owner will 

93



obtain at its sole cost an Owner's title insurance policy for all right-of-way and easement 
dedications, naming the Town as the insured. Dedication of any public streets has occurred at the 
time of recordation of the Plat in the real property records of Weld County, Colorado, and right-
of-way will be dedicated prior to the commencement of the construction of the Improvements. To 
the extent any easements are required for the Improvements that run through the property of others, 
and if any metropolitan district formed to provide public infrastructure in connection with the 
Property (the “District”) is unable to acquire such easements by its own rights of condemnation or 
otherwise, the Town agrees to provide or obtain such easements by condemnation or otherwise, at 
the Owner’s cost.  All parks (including pocket parks), open space and trails created as part of the 
Plat shall be dedicated to a special district or owners association for ongoing ownership and 
maintenance and a public access easement across all such parks, open space and trails shall be 
granted and recorded.  

2.11 Schedule of Fees.  The owner of a Lot shall pay those fees approved by the 
Town Board of Trustees, as may be amended by further legislative action or due to automatic 
increases, prior to obtaining a building permit for each Lot in the Development Area. The 
Owner understands and agrees that no building permits or certificates of occupancy for any 
buildings will be issued until all such dedications and payments of fees have been made. 

2.12 Traffic Signal. The Owner will design and construct the Traffic Signal and related 
appurtenances and equipment at the intersection of Bonanza Boulevard and East 168th Avenue 
(Weld County Road 2) based on the design documents approved by the Town. The Traffic Signal 
shall be completed prior to the issuance of any certificates of occupancy for the QuikTrip Store 
identified in the Site Plan. The requirements for all Improvements described in this Agreement 
apply to the Traffic Signal. Within thirty (30) days following Final Acceptance of the Traffic 
Signal, the Town will convey $500,000 to Owner.  

3. WATER RESOURCES DEDICATION. All water dedication to serve uses on the
Property shall be made to the Town in accordance with the Water Rights Dedication provisions in
Chapter 13, Article IV of the Lochbuie Municipal Code in effect at the time the user submits an
application for site plan approval. The user shall comply with all directives from the Town
Administrator concerning the types of reports and/or studies necessary for the Town to determine
whether such water resources are sufficient to serve the proposed use of the Lot or Tract.

4. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.

In the event that the Owner should fail to timely comply with any terms, conditions, covenants 
and undertakings of this Agreement, and if such noncompliance is not cured and brought into 
compliance within thirty (30) days of written notice of default provided to Owner by the Town 
(unless the Town in writing and in its sole discretion designates a longer period) and if the 
default relates to an obligation secured by the improvements Guarantee: 

(a) The Town may draw upon the Improvements Guarantee to the extent
required and complete the Improvements at the Owner's expense, which shall be limited 
to the actual and reasonable costs incurred by the Town, including all engineering costs 
and reasonable attorneys' fees relating thereto. (Attorneys' fees relating to litigation 

94



between the Owner and the Town shall be governed by Sections 5.9 and 5.10 below, and 
the Town may not access the Improvements Guarantee for such fees). Notice by the Town 
to the Owner will specify the conditions of default. 

(b) The Town may also, after the cure period and until completion of the
Improvements is in compliance with this Agreement, withhold any additional building 
permits, certificates of occupancy, or provision of new utilities fixtures or services.  

(c) Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the Town from pursuing any
other remedy at law or in equity which may be appropriate under Town, state or federal 
law. 

(d) Failure to timely complete construction of Improvements which is solely
due to unforeseeable inclement weather and other force majeure events shall not be 
considered a default by Owner under this Agreement. 

(e) If the Town determines that a bona fide emergency exists as to any part
of the Property, and the Owner has not immediately addressed the emergency, the Town 
may take such steps as it deems appropriate in order to protect public health and safety. 
All reasonable costs incurred by the Town shall be due and payable to the Town by 
the Owner within ten (10) business days following demand. In the event the Owner 
fails to pay such costs, the Owner shall be deemed in default under this Agreement, 
and the Town may draw against the Improvements Guarantee for such costs. 

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

5.1 Applicable Law. This Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Colorado. 

5.2 Indemnification. To the extent allowed by law, the Owner, with regard to the 
Improvements, shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers and employees, from and 
against all liability, claims, demands, and expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorney 
fees, on account of any injury, loss, or damage that arise out of or are in any manner connected with 
the work to be performed by the Owner under this Agreement, if such injury, loss or damage is 
caused in whole or in part by the negligent act, omission, error, mistake, accident or other fault of 
the Owner, or any subcontractor, officer, employee or agent of the same. The obligations under this 
paragraph shall not apply to the extent any such liability, claim, demand or expense arises out of or is 
connected with the negligent act, omission, error, mistake, accident or other fault of the Town. 

5.3 Insurance. 

(a) The Owner, with respect to the Improvements, agrees to procure and
maintain in force during the term of this Agreement, at its own cost, the following 
coverages: 

i. Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by Colorado law;

95



 
ii. Commercial General or Business Liability Insurance with minimum 

combined single limits of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) for each occurrence and in 
the aggregate; 

 
iii. Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum combined single limits for 

bodily injury and property damage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
for any one occurrence, with respect to each of the Owner's owned, hired or non-owned 
vehicles assigned to or used in the performance of services for the Owner. 

 
(b) Evidence of qualified self-insured status may be substituted for one or 

more of the foregoing insurance coverages, if approved by the Town. 
 
(c) The Owner shall at a minimum procure and maintain the insurance 

coverages listed herein. Such coverages shall be procured and maintained with forms and 
insurers licensed to do business in the State of Colorado and shall name the Town as an 
additional insured party. All coverages shall be continuously maintained to cover all 
liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Owner pursuant to 
retroactive dates. Coverage for extended reporting periods shall be procured to maintain 
such continuous coverage. 

 
(d) A certificate of insurance shall be completed by the Owner's insurance 

agent as evidence that policies providing the required coverages, conditions and minimum 
limits are in full force and effect, and shall be provided to the Town prior to 
commencement of any services under this Agreement. The Town shall review the 
certificate of insurance within ten (10) working days of receipt. The certificate of insurance 
shall identify this Agreement and shall provide that the coverages afforded under the 
policies shall not be canceled, terminated or materially changes unless written notice has 
been given to the Town pursuant to the policy terms thereof. 

 
(e) Failure on the part of the Owner to procure or maintain policies providing 

the required coverages, conditions and minimum limits shall constitute a default under this 
Agreement, and if said default is not cured within ten (10) days of written notice by the 
Town to the Owner, the Town may procure or renew any such policy or any extended 
reporting period thereto, and may pay any and all premiums in connection therewith and 
all monies so paid by the Town shall be repaid by the Owner to the Town upon demand, 
or the Town may offset the cost of the premiums against any monies due to the Owner  
from the Town. 

 
(f) The parties hereto understand and acknowledge that the Town and its 

respective officers and employees and agents are relying on, and do not waive or intend to 
waive by any provision of this Agreement, the monetary limitations or any other rights, 
immunities and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. 
§ 24-10-101 et seq., as the same is amended from time to time. 

 
5.4 Non-Liability of Town. The Owner hereby acknowledges that the Town's review 

96



and approval of plans for the development of the Property is done in furtherance of the general 
public health, safety and welfare, and that no specific relationship with or duty of care to the Owner 
or any third parties is assumed by such review and approval, and that the Town asserts, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, its immunity from suit under the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, § 24-10-101 et seq. C.R.S., as well as the limitations upon liability provided herein. 

5.5 No Joint Venture or Partnership. No form of joint venture or partnership exists 
between the Town and the Owner, and nothing contained in this Agreement will be construed as 
making the Town and the Owner joint ventures or partners. 

5.6 Assignability. This Agreement may not be assigned or delegated by the Owner 
without the written consent of the Town. No assignment shall release the Owner from 
performance of any duty, obligation, or responsibility unless such release is clearly expressed in 
such written document of assignment.  Prior to approving any release of the Owner, the Town 
may, at its sole discretion, require the party assuming any duty, obligation, or responsibility of the 
Owner to provide to the Town written evidence of financial or other ability to meet the particular 
duty, obligation or responsibility being assumed by the party. Town consent to assignment shall 
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed so long as assignee is financially capable of complying 
with the requirements for security for construction of Improvements, as set forth in Section 1.6 
hereof. The Town Administrator is authorized to approve assignments. 

5.7 Recording of Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded in the real estate 
records of Weld County, Colorado, and shall be a covenant running with the Property in order to 
put prospective purchasers and other interested parties on notice as to the terms and provisions 
hereof. 

5.8 Merger and Ratification. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties, integrates all of the terms and conditions mentioned therein and 
incidental thereto, and supersedes all negotiation or previous agreements between the parties with 
respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof. All waivers or amendments of this Agreement 
must be made in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of the Town and the Owner. 

5.9 Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each party hereto will 
bear its respective costs and expenses associated with entering into, implementing and enforcing 
the terms of this Agreement. 

5.10 Attorney's Fees. If any action is filed or maintained by any party in relation to this 
Agreement, the prevailing party will be awarded its reasonable costs and attorney's fees, which 
rights will survive the termination of this Agreement. 

5.11 Waiver. No waiver of one or more of the terms of this Agreement will constitute a 
waiver of other terms. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement in any instance will 
constitute a waiver of such provision in other instances. 

5.12 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is 
held by a competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of 

97



this Agreement will, unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the parties, continue in 
full force and effect so long as enforcement of the remaining provisions would not be inequitable 
to the party against whom they are being enforced under the facts and circumstances then  
pertaining. 
 

5.13  Further Assurances. Each party will execute and deliver to the other all such other 
further instruments and documents as may be reasonably necessary to carry out this Agreement in 
order to provide and secure to the other parties the full and complete enjoyment of its rights and 
privileges under this Agreement. 
 

5.14 Notices. Any notice or communication required under this Agreement between the 
parties must be in writing and may be given either personally or by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested. If given by registered or certified mail, the same will be deemed to have 
been given and received on the first to occur of (i) actual receipt by any of the addressees designated 
below as the party to whom notices are to be sent, or (ii) five days after a registered or certified letter 
containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States 
mail. If personally delivered, a notice will be deemed to have been given when delivered to the party 
to whom it is addressed. Any party hereto may at any time, by giving written notice to the other 
party hereto as provided in this Section, designate additional persons to whom notices or 
communications will be given, and designate any other address in substitution of the address to 
which such notice or communication will be given. Such notices or communications will be given to 
the parties at their addresses set forth below: 

 
It to the Town: 
 
 Town Administrator 
 Town of Lochbuie 
 703 WCR 37 
 Lochbuie, Colorado 80603 
 
With a required copy to: 
 
 Maureen Juran, Widner Juran LLP 
 Town Attorney 
 13133 E. Arapahoe Road, Suite 100 
 Centennial, CO 80112 
 
If to the Owner: 
 QuikTrip Corporation 
 12000 Washington Street, Suite 175 
 Thornton, CO 80241 
 Attention: Mike Talcott 

 
5.16 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 

which will be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together will constitute one and the 
same agreement. 

98



5.17 No Third-Party Beneficiary. It is expressly understood and agreed that enforcement 
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, 
will be strictly reserved to the parties hereto, their successors and assigns, and nothing contained in 
this Agreement will give or allow any claim or right of action by any other or third person under this 
Agreement. It is the express intention of the parties that any person other than the parties receiving 
services or benefits under this Agreement will be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only. 

5.18 Exhibits. Unless the context otherwise indicates, any capitalized terms in any Exhibit 
to this Agreement will have the same meanings as defined in this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year written 
above. 

ATTEST: 

By:  ____________________________ 
Town Clerk 

TOWN: 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, 
a municipal corporation 

By:  _____________________________ 
Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:  ____________________________ 
Lochbuie Town Attorney 

OWNER: QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 

By:  __________________________ 
         Jason Acord 

STATE OF _______________ ) 
)ss. 

COUNTY OF ____________  ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ______, 2024, 
by Jason Acord as Regional Director of Real Estate of QuikTrip Corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

________________________________ 
Notary Public 

99



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Lots 1 through 5 and Tracts A and B, Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1, County of 
Weld, State of Colorado 

100



EXHIBIT B 

SITE PLAN 

101



EXHIBIT C 

ENGINEER’S COST ESTIMATE 
IMPROVEMENTS WITH ASSOCIATED COST ESTIMATES AND SCHEDULE 

102



EXHIBIT D 

NOTICE OF CONSTRUCTION ACCEPTANCE/FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
HIGHPLAINS FILING NO. 1, AMENDMENT NO. 1 

[QUIKTRIP STORE #4208] 

The listed Improvement(s) under the Subdivision Improvements Agreement – (“Agreement”) 
between the TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO (“Town”), and QUIKTRIP 
CORPORATION] (“Owner”) have been reviewed and found to qualify for Construction 
Acceptance and/or Final Acceptance, as set forth in chart as follows: 

IMPROVEMENT 
DESCRIPTION 

CONSTRUCTION 
ACCEPTANCE 

DATE 

FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE 

DATE 

DATE 
WARRANTY 
EXPIRATION 

The Date of Construction Acceptance of the Improvements, or portion thereof designated above, is 
the basis for commencement of the DURATION of applicable warranties required by the 
Agreement. The Warranty Period is defined in the Agreement as commencing with Construction 
Acceptance and continuing for twenty-four (24) months from the Date of Construction Acceptance. 
This form shall govern the date of Construction Acceptance, Date of Final Acceptance, and Date 
of Warranty Expiration. 

Notes: 

Issued by: 

For the Town of Lochbuie: 

_______________________________ 

Engineer Printed Name: ________________________________ 

Date Issued: _______________________________ 

103



Date: 7/21/2023

Project:

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd., Ste. 200 Location: Lochbuie, CO
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 By: JR/ACJ/DLR
(303) 770-8884 (Phone)
(303) 770-3636 (Fax)

Notes and Assumptions:
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.
6.

Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost

1 INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS Total Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
2 Earthwork
3 Clear and Grub Site 22.27 Acres $1,100.00 $24,497.00
4 Cut/Fill with on-site material 28291 C.Y. $3.25 $91,945.75
5 Import Select Fill 44502 C.Y. $25.00 $1,112,550.00
6 SWPPP Installation & Maintenance 22.27 Acres $3,850.00 $85,739.50
7 Paving
8 Curb and Gutter 4161 L.F. $22.00 $91,542.00
9 Heavy Duty Asphalt (6" Thick) 8423 S.Y. $46.00 $387,458.00

10 Concrete Handicap Ramp 4 EACH $757.50 $3,030.00
11 Landscaping
12 Native Seeding 694087 S.F. $0.50 $347,043.50
13 Striping and Signage
14 Stripe-Parking Spaces, Hatching, Arrows, Lanes 3741 L.F. $1.65 $6,172.65
15 Site Lighting
16 Base, Poles, Fixtures, Conduit and Wiring 21 EA. $4,950.00 $103,950.00
17 Water
18 Fire Hydrant Assembly 6 EACH $5,500.00 $33,000.00
19 8" PVC Water Line 1800 L.F. $40.00 $72,000.00
20 6" DIP Water Line 179 L.F. $44.00 $7,876.00
21 2" PVC Water Service 104 L.F. $15.00 $1,560.00
22 Bend - horizontal and vertical 14 EACH $517.00 $7,238.00
23 Tee 16 EACH $517.00 $8,272.00
24 8" Valve 9 EACH $1,980.00 $17,820.00
25 6" Valve 6 EACH $1,650.00 $9,900.00
26 2" Valve 5 EACH $1,000.00 $5,000.00
27 Thrust Block 30 EACH $137.50 $4,125.00
28 Connect to Existing Water Line w/tapping saddle 2 EACH $3,300.00 $6,600.00
29 Sanitary Sewer
30 4" PVC Sanitary Line 194 L.F. $55.00 $10,670.00
31 8" PVC Sanitary Sewer Line 1723 L.F. $52.80 $90,974.40
32 4' Dia Manhole 9 EACH $4,500.00 $40,500.00
34 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 1 EACH $3,300.00 $3,300.00
35 Storm Sewer
36 Detention Outlet Structure 1 EACH $25,000.00 $25,000.00

42" RCP Storm Pipe 605 L.F. $142.14 $86,017.87
37 36" RCP Storm Pipe 328 L.F. $150.00 $49,270.50

30" RCP Storm Pipe 268 L.F. $120.00 $32,134.80
24" RCP Storm Pipe 369 L.F. $96.00 $35,424.00
18" RCP Storm Pipe 137 L.F. $79.93 $10,931.23

Dry utility quantities are preliminary estimates and may change once coordinated with the dry utility companies.
This Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost assumes no over-ex underneath building pads.

QuikTrip #4208

This Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost reflects only the site improvements, and not any estimates of structural/architectural features which shall
be provided separately.

Storm Sewer roof drains, storm pipe, manholes, and inlets are assumed to be the median size necessary to accommodate proposed development.
No hydraulic analysis was performed in determining pipe/inlet sizes.
Grading quantities based on existing topography provided by others which may not match field conditions.

This Preliminary Opinion of Costs is based upon the Preliminary Grading Plan and the Preliminary Utility Plan prepared by Galloway & Company, Inc.
dated 07/21/2023.  The estimate only includes purchase and installation of the specifically listed items.  Galloway has no control over costs or the
price of labor, equipment, materials or the contractors method of pricing.  Galloway makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy of
such opinion as compared to bid or actual costs.

7/17/2023  10:32 AM Page 2 of 4 Site Work
104



14" x 23" HE-RCP 18 L.F. $100.00 $1,822.00
42" F.E.S. 1 EACH $1,760.29 $1,760.29

38 36" F.E.S. 2 EACH $1,539.00 $3,078.00
30" F.E.S. 1 EACH $1,032.33 $1,032.33
24" F.E.S. 2 EACH $2,070.00 $4,140.00
CDOT Type R Inlet (10') 5 EACH $11,000.00 $55,000.00
CDOT Type R Inlet (5') 3 EACH $4,920.88 $14,762.64
CDOT Type D Inlet (35" x 68") 2 EACH $8,500.00 $17,000.00

39 CDOT Type 13 Comdo Inlet (Single) 1 EACH $5,830.00 $5,830.00
40 CDOT Type 13 Comdo Inlet (Double) 2 EACH $9,138.00 $18,276.00

8' Dia. Manhole 1 EACH $17,000.00 $17,000.00
6' Dia. Manhole 4 EACH $6,600.00 $26,400.00
5' Dia. Manhole 1 EACH $6,450.00 $6,450.00
Flat Top Manhole (5' x 5') 1 EACH $6,450.00 $6,450.00

41 4' Dia Manhole 5 EACH $6,400.00 $32,000.00
42 Dry Utilities
43 Electric/Gas 1 L.S. $50,000.00 $50,000.00
44 Communications 1 L.S. $50,000.00 $50,000.00
45 Sub-total - Shared Improvements $3,122,543.46
46 CR37 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS Total Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
47 Paving
48 Sawcut Edge of Pavement 628 L.F. $4.00 $2,512.00
49 Curb and Gutter 1230 L.F. $22.00 $27,060.00
50 Heavy Duty Asphalt (6" Thick) 1319 S.Y. $46.00 $60,678.60
51 Concrete Handicap Ramp 5 EACH $800.00 $4,000.00
52 Sidewalk 2717 S.F. $6.00 $16,302.00
53 Landscaping
54 Native Seeding 2135 S.F. $0.50 $1,067.50
55 Striping and Signage
56 Stripe-Parking Spaces, Hatching, Arrows, Lanes 656 L.F. $1.65 $1,082.40
57 Directional Signage 5 EACH $400.00 $2,000.00
58 Dry Utilities
59 Relocate Utility Boxes 1 L.S. $50,000.00 $50,000.00
60 Street Lights 5 EACH $6,000.00 $30,000.00
61 Relocate Street Light 3 EACH $6,000.00 $18,000.00
62 Sub-total - CR37 Improvements $212,702.50
63 BONANZA BLVD IMPROVEMENTS Total Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
64 Paving
65 Sawcut Edge of Pavement 956 L.F. $4.00 $3,824.00
66 Curb and Gutter 931 L.F. $22.00 $20,482.00
67 Heavy Duty Asphalt (6" Thick) 1563 S.Y. $46.00 $71,911.80
68 Concrete Handicap Ramp 7 EACH $800.00 $5,600.00
69 Sidewalk 4450 S.F. $6.00 $26,700.00
70 Landscaping
71 Native Seeding 5048 S.F. $0.50 $2,524.00
72 Striping and Signage
73 Stripe-Parking Spaces, Hatching, Arrows, Lanes 1675 L.F. $1.65 $2,763.75
74 Dry Utilities
75 Street Lights 5 EACH $6,000.00 $30,000.00
76 Sub-total - Bonanza Blvd Improvements $163,805.55
77 Sub-total - All Improvements $3,499,051.51
78 Contingency 15% $524,857.73
79 General Contractors General Conditions 3.0% $104,971.55
80 General Contractors OH & Profit 5% $174,952.58
81 INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS $4,303,833.35

7/17/2023  10:32 AM Page 3 of 4 Site Work
105



Date Prepared:  July 21, 2023

Pay Item Number Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes

1 203-01597 POTHOLING HR 10 $1,000.00 $10,000
2 503-00018 DRILLED SHAFT (18 INCH) LF 20 500.00$     $10,000
3 503-00036 DRILLED SHAFT (36 INCH) LF 76 900.00$     $68,400
4 613-00206 2 IN ELEC COND (BORED) LF 321 30.00$     $9,600
5 613-00306 3 IN ELEC COND (BORED) LF 642 38.00$     $24,400
6 613-01200 2 IN ELEC COND (PLASTIC) LF 158 35.00$     $5,500
7 613-01300 3 IN ELEC COND (PLASTIC) LF 180 45.00$     $8,100
8 613-07001 TYPE ONE PULL BOX EA 1 850.00$     $900
9 613-07004 TYPE FOUR PULL BOX EA 5 2,600.00$     $13,000

10 613-10000 WIRING LS 1 30,000.00$     $30,000
11 613-80130 OBTAIN ELECTRICAL SERVICE LS 1 10,000.00$     $10,000
12 613-80130 METER PEDESTAL EA 1 8,750.00$     $8,800
13 614-00000 STREET NAME SIGN EA 4 400.00$     $1,600
14 614-00011 SIGN PANEL (CLASS I) SF 38 35.00$     $1,300
15 614-10160 SIG HEAD BACKPLATES EA 10 175.00$     $1,800
16 614-70150 PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL FACE (16 INCH) (COUNTDOWN) EA 8 700.00$     $5,600
17 614-70336 TRAFFIC SIGNAL FACE (12-12-12) EA 10 1,200.00$     $12,000
18 614-70560 TRAFFIC SIGNAL FACE (12-12-12-12-12) EA 8 1,100.00$     $8,800
19 614-72855 CONTROLLER (TYPE 2070L) EA 1 45,000.00$     $45,000
20 614-72860 PEDESTRIAN PUSH BUTTON (APS) EA 16 580.00$     $9,300
21 614-72863 PED PUSH BUTTON POST ASSEM EA 3 3,000.00$     $9,000
22 614-72864 FIRE PREEMPTION DETECTOR 711 EA 4 8,100.00$     $32,400
23 614-72884 WAVETRONIX DETECTION EA 4 11,000.00$      $44,000
24 614-81130 TRAFF SIGNAL-LIGHT POLE STEEL (1-30 FOOT MAST ARM) EA 1 22,000.00$      $22,000
25 614-81135 TRAFF SIGNAL-LIGHT POLE STEEL (1-35 FOOT MAST ARM) EA 1 30,000.00$      $30,000
26 614-81145 TRAFF SIGNAL-LIGHT POLE STEEL (1-45 FOOT MAST ARM) EA 1 35,000.00$      $35,000
27 614-81150 TRAFF SIGNAL-LIGHT POLE STEEL (1-50 FOOT MAST ARM) EA 1 37,500.00$      $37,500
28 614-84000 TRAF SIG PED POLE STEEL EA 2 11,500.00$      $23,000
29 614-86800 UNINTERRUPTED POWER SUPPLY EA 1 9,500.00$     $9,500
30 625-00000 CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING LS 1 5,000.00$     $5,000
31 626-00000 MOBILIZATION LS 1 20,000.00$      $20,000
32 630-00017 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 15,000.00$      $15,000

$566,500 Notes

Construction Management/Materials Testing 5.0% $28,325

$28,325

$594,825 Notes

Contingency (15%) 15.0% $89,300

$684,200

Quiktrip 4208 Traffic Signal

E 168th Ave (WCR 2) & Bonanza Blvd

% of sub-total construction costs

* This cost is assumed, no design coordination with Xcel Energy has been completed to date.

The Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or over the Contractor's methods of determining prices or over competitive bidding or market conditions. Opinions of probable costs provided herein are based on an incomplete design and on the 
information known to Engineer at this time. This Opinion of probable cost represent only the Engineer's judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. The Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual construction costs will 
not vary from its opinions of probable costs.

Estimate of Conceptual Project Costs

Traffic Signal Improvements

SUB-TOTAL MAJOR CONSTRUCTION ITEMS

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs

SUB-TOTAL DESIGN AND PROJECT ADMIN

SUB-TOTAL

% of sub-total 

Total Project Cost Estimate

106



Agenda Item Summary (AIS) 

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2024 
SUBJECT:  17731 County Road 2 on Lot 1, Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 

Conditional Use Application 
PRESENTED BY: Sonya Thornton, Planner I 

Chris Kennedy, Community Development Director 
SUMMARY 

This is a request for the Board of Trustees to consider a conditional use for the property at 17731 
County Road 2 on Lot 1, Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment 1 (located at northeast corner of 
CR2/Bonanza). A conditional use must be permitted for the operation of a motor vehicle fueling 
/ gasoline station on this property.  Conditional uses are required to meet certain criteria assuring 
the use is appropriate for the proposed location and compatible with the surrounding land uses.  
Staff has found that the operation of a motor vehicle fueling / gasoline station at this location 
meets the required criteria and, therefore, recommends approval of the request.   

107



BACKGROUND – CONDITIONAL USES 

Article II of the Lochbuie Land Use Regulations classifies principal land uses in each zoning district 
as either permitted or conditional.  Permitted uses are those uses allowed by right and without 
special authorization. Sec. 19-2-210(a) defines conditional uses as “contingent uses which may or 
may not be appropriate in a particular location depending on the nature of the proposed use, its 
relationship to surrounding land uses and its impact on traffic capacities, potential environmental 
effects, compatibility with the neighborhood, and conformance with the Comprehensive Plan.”  

On February 7, 2023, the Board approved a rezone of the subject property from “PUD” to 
“Commercial” to facilitate a multi-store retail center, starting with construction of a QuikTrip 
convenience store. Sec. 19-2-210 designates a motor vehicle fueling / gas station as a conditional 
use in a Commercial zoning district. Sec. 19-2-210 (c) (6) also requires conditional uses to conform 
with all supplemental regulations related to the use. Article VII Sec. 19-7-250 includes 
supplemental standards for motor vehicle-related sales and service operations.  

DISCUSSION 

The applicant (Quik Trip convenience store company) is proposing a convenience store and 
fueling station on Lot 1 of the Highplains Filing No. 1 Amendment 1 property (generally located 
at northeast corner of CR2/Bonanza).  An approved conditional use application is required prior 
to site plan approval for the QuikTrip convenience store to occupy Lot 1 due to its use as a motor 
vehicle fueling / gasoline station.  The Site Plan for QuitTrip Store #4208 identifies the proposed 
layout and includes other details as identified in this AIS. 

REVIEW CRITERIA – CONDITIONAL USES 

The Board of Trustees must consider conditional use applications against the review criteria set 
forth in Section 19-2-210(c) and Section 19-7-250(b) of the Land Use Regulations. After thorough 
review of the proposal, staff believes that this request satisfies all of the criteria required for 
approval. The criteria that follow are shown in bold type and accompanied by an explanation of 
how each one is satisfied:  

Sec. 19-2-210(c) 
1. The use is compatible with all existing uses on land adjacent thereto.

Criterion No. 1 Satisfied: The proposed convenience store and motor vehicle fueling / gas
station is similar to existing uses to the east and south (7-Eleven and Exxon stores / fueling

108



stations), so no compatibility issues are anticipated. All proposed pump islands, the edges of 
the canopy, building, sidewalks, and auto care equipment have been placed internal within 
the site at least 300 feet from the edge of property lines zoned for residential uses, which 
exists to the north of the commercial subdivision but not directly adjacent to the site. The 
proposed use meets the supplemental requirements of Sec. 19-7-250(g)(5). 

The proposed use also meets requirements of code sections 19-4-180 including supplemental 
regulations in Section 19-7-250(a), (g)(8) related to landscaping, buffering and screening. The 
proposed use will provide 22,496 square feet of landscaping, which is approximately 30% of 
the lot size. Sec. 19-4-180(b) requires at least 15% of a commercial development to be 
landscaped areas. The overall site will include landscaping buffers along all property lines and 
parking lot landscaping and islands utilizing trees, shrubs, and ornamental grasses intended 
to break up large expanses of pavement, create shade, and enhance the overall appearance 
of the site. buffering, and screening to prevent visual impacts and provide seamless 
transitions between adjacent properties. The use incorporates buffering techniques by 
orienting the main entrance of the building away from the adjacent residential neighborhood 
to the north and utilizing Lot 1 along WCR 2 to create maximum separation between land 
uses.  Service and loading areas are screened using masonry walls and orienting these areas 
away from the public right-of-way. 

2. The use will not unnecessarily scar the land and soil upon which such use is to be placed,
leaving deleterious effects such as denuded slopes, uncovered soil piles to be blown away,
scars upon areas of natural beauty, unguarded holes or pits.

Criterion No. 2 Satisfied: The property owner is entitled to commercial use of the site, and
the proposed use consists of improving the entire site typical of most commercial uses as
shown in the site and landscape plan. The site is planned to include the 5,312 square-foot
convenience store, paved parking surface with thirty-three (33) parking spaces, four (4)
landscaping islands, and a fueling canopy. The use will not be unnecessarily detrimental to
the natural elements of the land.

3. Uses with unsightly aspects, odors or noise must be set back a sufficient distance from
adjacent property boundaries and proper fencing or screening provided so that the adjacent
property is not adversely affected.

Criterion No. 3 Satisfied: All pump islands, buildings, and equipment have been set back at
least 300 feet from the edge of each property line zoned for residential use as required by
Sec. 19-7-250(g). A four (4) foot screen wall will be placed along the rear service area of the
building to prevent visual impacts.

109



 
4. The use shall not create air or water pollution. 

 

Criterion No. 4 Satisfied: The proposed use will not create air or water pollution.  This 
property is in a Commercial zone district which only allows for clean, non-polluting uses.  No 
heavy industrial uses are allowed on this property.  The intent of this criterion is to provide 
an additional level of review and protection for the community against excessive or undue air 
pollution typically associated with some heavy industrial activities, such as chemical 
manufacturing operations, fossil fuel power plants, and other “smokestack” land uses.  This 
use will attract motor vehicles, which are known to emit pollutants into the air; however, the 
vehicles that will eventually frequent the site will exist independently of the commercial 
center.  The proposed use will not cause motor vehicles to be manufactured, purchased or 
operated in the area, and will therefore, not be directly responsible for creating any of the air 
pollution that may result from their existence.  In addition, best management practices 
related to dust and stormwater management during construction are required by the state 
and provide additional protection related to air quality.  Fuel tanks are installed and operated 
according to state and federal regulations designed to prevent any leakage.  Furthermore, 
the proposed convenience store is not a fuel manufacturing facility, and would not be 
responsible for the creation of gasoline or diesel. 
 

5. The use is consistent with a contiguous and orderly pattern of development within the Town 
and is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Criterion No. 5 Satisfied: The Comprehensive Plan identifies the location as the primary 
commercial center for the Town. The proposed convenience store and motor vehicle fueling 
/ gas station is similar to existing uses to the east and south, and the addition would solidify 
its intent as a commercial focal point.   
 

6. The proposed use conforms with all supplemental regulations related to the use. 
 

Criterion No. 6 Satisfied: Uses classified as motor vehicle-related sales and service operations 
must also conform with supplemental regulations as set forth in Sec. 19-7-250, which requires 
the following findings for approval: 
 
1. The project is designed so that form and scale are harmonious and consistent with the 

character of the specific site, the adjacent uses and structures, and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
 

Finding No. 1 Made:  The proposed use meets requirements of code sections 19-7-250 
including supplemental regulations in Section 19-7-250(g) related to lot size, lot coverage, 

110



setbacks, and building and canopy design. The property is 76,085 square feet which 
exceeds the 15,000 square feet minimum required lot size to accommodate a motor 
vehicle fueling / gas station. The maximum allowed lot coverage, including buildings, 
pavement, etc. is 70%, and the total lot coverage of the proposed use is 69%. The pump 
islands and canopy typical of fueling stations are located more than the required 
minimum of 25-feet from any property line, and the edges of these along with the 
building, surrounding sidewalk, and auto care equipment are all placed to ensure at least 
a 300-foot setback to the edge of any property zoned or entitled for residential use. The 
architecture for the proposed one-story building is attractive and compatible with 
adjacent fueling stations. The building height is 20 feet, adhering to the maximum 
allowable limit of 25 feet. The associated canopy has a clearance of 16 feet, which is the 
maximum allowed. Additional conditions set forth in Sec. 19-7-250(g)(10) – (15) as 
described in Section 3 of Resolution 2024-14 related to ongoing enforcement of noise, 
orderliness and other issues shall be observed as conditions if the Board approves the 
use.  

The proposed use also meets requirements of code sections 19-4-180 including 
supplemental regulations in Section 19-7-250(a), (g)(8) related to landscaping, buffering 
and screening. The proposed use will provide 22,496 square feet of landscaping, which is 
approximately 30% of the lot size. Sec. 19-4-180(b) requires at least 15% of a commercial 
development to be landscaped. The overall site will include landscaping buffers along all 
property lines and parking lot landscaping and islands utilizing trees, shrubs, and 
ornamental grasses intended to break up large expanses of pavement, create shade, and 
enhance the overall appearance of the site. The use employs buffering, and screening to 
prevent visual impacts and provide seamless transitions between adjacent properties. 
The main entrance of the building is oriented away from the adjacent residential 
neighborhood to the north and utilizes Lot 1 along WCR 2 to create maximum separation 
between land uses.  Service and loading areas are screened using masonry walls and 
orienting these areas away from the public right-of-way. 

2. The site design, including the location and number of driveways, will promote safe and
efficient on-site and off-site traffic circulation.

Finding No. 2 Made: In the replat of Highplains Filing No. 1 Amendment 1, the subdivision
was reconfigured to include an internal roadway allowing direct access to individual lots.
This new internal roadway prevents direct access from 168th Avenue, and three access
points are proposed for the site. The fueling pump islands are situated to the south of the
site and allow for at least two vehicles to stack without blocking ingress and egress to the
site. The proposed use meets requirements of code Section 19-7-250(g) (6).

111



3. Service bay openings, if any, are designed to minimize the visual intrusion on
surrounding streets and properties.

Finding No. 3 Made:  Not applicable – no service bays are proposed with the use.

4. Lighting is designed to be low-profile, indirect or diffused and to avoid adverse impacts
on surrounding uses.

Finding No. 4 Made:  The proposed use meets requirements of code Section 19-4-185
related to lighting.  Canopy lighting on the site is fully recessed and full cutoff preventing
visibility from adjacent properties as required by Sec. 19-7-250(g)(9). The Photometric
Site Plan demonstrates that lumens do not extend beyond the site and therefore do not
unnecessarily illuminate any other lot or public roadways as required in Sec. 19-4-185.
The internal roadway system of the subdivision ensures that vehicular lights are directed
internally to the site rather than adjacent properties. All pole lights are mounted at 22
feet, less than the maximum allowed height of 25 feet per Sec. 19-4-185(i).

5. The washing facility, if any, will not have an adverse impact on water supply and quality.

Criterion No. 5 Satisfied:  Not applicable – the proposed use is not a washing facility.

LEGAL ISSUES 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
The following public notice was provided in accordance with Section 19-1-220 of the code: 

a) Mailed notice – The applicant sent notification letters via Certified Mail to relevant property
owners a minimum of 15 days prior to the scheduled public hearing (see attached notice).

b) Published notice – Town staff published required notice in the Brighton Standard Blade a
minimum of 15 days prior to the scheduled public hearing (see attached affidavit).

c) On-site notice – Required signage was posted on the property site a minimum of 15 days
prior to the scheduled public hearing as continued.

FINANCIAL IMPACTS 

If approved, the conditional use application would have no negative financial impacts on the 
Town that staff can foresee.  Upon eventual construction of the proposed convenience store the 
Town would realize increases in sales, use and property tax revenues, and increased permit fee 
revenue. 

112



 
STAFF CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
After evaluation of this proposal staff has arrived at the following conclusions: 
1. The proposal was reviewed in accordance with the requirements of the Town’s Land 

Development Code and was found to comply with the review criteria set forth in Section 
19-2-210 and Section 19-7-250. 

2. The proposal will benefit the Town by providing additional services to the community, 
increasing tax revenues and serving as a catalyst for the development of additional 
commercial property.  

 
Based on the information presented and the conclusions outlined above, staff recommends 
that the Board of Trustees approve the request by adopting Resolution No. 2024-14.  
 
Suggested Motion (if needed): 
“I move that the Board of Trustees adopt Resolution No. 2024-14 approving A Conditional Use 
Application For The Operation Of A Motor Vehicle Fueling / Gasoline Station At 17731 County 
Road 2 On Lot 1, Highplains Filing No. 1 Amendment No. 1 Near The Northeast Corner of 168th 
Avenue And Bonanza Boulevard.”   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Resolution No. 2024-14 
Site Plan for QuikTrip Store #4208 

113



 TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, 
COUNTIES OF ADAMS AND WELD  

STATE OF COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATION FOR THE 

OPERATION OF A MOTOR VEHICLE FUELING/GASOLINE STATION AT 17731 
COUNTY ROAD 2 ON LOT 1, HIGHPLAINS FILING NO. 1, AMENDMENT NO. 1 

NEAR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 168TH AVENUE AND BONANZA 
BOULEVARD 

 
WHEREAS, QuikTrip Corporation (the “Owner”) submitted a conditional use 

application (the “Conditional Use Application”) relating to the operation of a motor vehicle 
fueling/gasoline station at 17731 County Road 2 near the northeast corner of 168th Avenue and 
Bonanza Boulevard in the Town of Lochbuie (the “Subject Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Subject Property consists of 1.746 acres, more or less, and is legally 

described as: 
 
LOT 1, HIGHPLAINS FILING NO. 1, AMENDMENT NO. 1 
TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, 
COUNTY OF WELD, 
STATE OF COLORADO; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Application seeks Board of Trustees approval of a 

conditional use to allow for motor vehicle fueling/gasoline station use on the Subject Property as 
that term is defined in Chapter 19 of the Lochbuie Municipal Code (“the Land Use Regulations” 
or “Regulations”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the site plan for the QuikTrip Store #4208 (“Site Plan”) shows the proposed 

layout for the operation of a motor vehicle fueling/gasoline station (“Conditional Use”) and has 
been approved by the Community Development Department; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Owner has submitted its Conditional Use Application for approval in 

accordance with the requirements set forth in the Regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Application does not propose any modifications to the 

Site Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 19-1-215 of the Regulations, conditional use 

applications are decided by the Board of Trustees; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees considered the Conditional Use Application at a duly 

114



noticed public hearing, after a continuance, at which time evidence and testimony were presented 
to the Board of Trustees concerning the Conditional Use Application; and 

WHEREAS, the administrative record for this case includes, but is not limited to, the 
Regulations, the Town of Lochbuie Comprehensive Plan, the Site Plan, all other applicable 
ordinances, resolutions and regulations, the staff files and reports of the Community 
Development Department for this case, the Conditional Use Application and accompanying 
maps, reports, studies and all other submittals of the Applicant, any and all submittals by 
members of the public, and the tape recordings and minutes of the Board of Trustees meeting at 
which this application was considered; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has agreed to the conditions of approval as stated in this 
Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined that the Conditional Use Application 
meets all applicable requirements of the Regulations and advances the public health, safety, 
convenience and general welfare of the residents of the Town, subject to the conditions of 
approval as hereinafter delineated. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of 
Lochbuie, Colorado: 

Section 1. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as findings and 
determinations of the Board of Trustees.  

Section 2. That the Conditional Use as set forth in the Application is permitted on the 
grounds that the Conditional Use as shown in the Site Plan meets the approval standards 
specified in Sections 19-2-210(c), 19-7-250(b) and 19-7-250(g) of the Regulations as more fully 
set forth in the Staff Report prepared by the Community Development Department, is suitable 
for the Subject Property, compatible with surrounding land uses, and otherwise furthers the 
public health, safety, convenience and general welfare of the residents of the Town. 
Modifications to the Conditional Use as shown on the Site Plan will require a new application.  

Section 3. As contemplated by Section 19-2-210(d) and 19-7-250, approval of the 
Conditional Use on the Subject Property shall be and is subject to the following conditions of 
approval:   

1. The Conditional Use permitted hereby requires the Subject Property layout to
conform at all times to the Site Plan.

2. Lights on the Subject Property shall be dimmed between 11:00 p.m. and 7:00
a.m. each day;

3. Landscaping and buffering as described in Section 19-7-250(a) and (g)(8) of
the Regulations be properly maintained;

115



4. All outdoor speakers and video/audio pump stations and sound signals 
associated with such service and air compressors from tire inflators shall be 
limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. daily; 

5. The Subject Property shall be kept in an orderly condition at all times;  
6. Tractor trucks or similar heavy commercial vehicles shall not be permitted to 

idle for more than one (1) hour in any twenty-four (24) hour period; and 
7. The Applicant shall pay all fees and costs incurred by the Town and its 

consultants in review and processing of the Conditional Use Application. 
 

Section 4.   That the Conditional Use permitted hereby shall run with the Subject 
Property as contemplated by Section 19-2-210(f) and be revocable as set forth in 19-2-210(e) of 
the Regulations.  

Section 5.   The Community Development Department shall otherwise properly 
maintain a record of this approved Conditional Use Application. 

Section 6.   This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon approval by the 
Board of Trustees. 

 
ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

 
 
      TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 
 
 
 

      
       Michael Mahoney, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:       
 Heather Bowen, Town Clerk 
 

 

116



Vicinity MapVicinity Map

1

COVER SHEET

SE 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH RANGE 66 WEST
OF THE 6TH P.M., TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, STATE OF COLORADO

QUIKTRIP STORE #4208
SITE PLAN WITH CONDITIONAL USE FOR

PROJECT  CONTACT LIST:

BENCHMARKS:

N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

I-7
6

GENERAL NOTES:
PURPOSE STATEMENT:

RECORDERS CERTIFICATE:

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP:

Sheet List Table
SHEET NUMBER SHEET TITLE

1 COVER SHEET

2 SITE DATA TABLES

3 SITE PLAN

4 SITE ACCESS PLAN (WB-50)

5 SITE PLAN (SETBACKS)

6 GRADING PLAN

7 UTILITY PLAN

8 POST DEVELOPMENT MAP

9 PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

10 PHOTOMETRIC DETAILS

11 PHOTOMETRIC DETAILS

12 LANDSCAPE PLAN

13 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

14 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

15 CANOPY ELEVATIONS

AMENDMENT HISTORY:

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE APPROVAL:

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT:

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

REPLATTED LOT 1, HIGHPLAINS SUBDIVISION, FILING NO. 1, AMENDMENT NO. 1

117



2

SITE DATA TABLES

CONDITIONAL USE

A CONVENIENCE STORE WITH FUEL REQUIRES A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

118



N89°57'27"E

172.01'

N89°57'27"E

279.83'

N89°57'27"E

110.53'

N
0
°0

2
'3

3
"W

2
7
1
.8

2
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
7
1
.8

3
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

5
1
9
.2

7
'

N89°57'27"E

572.37'

L=39.27', R=25.00'

CB = N44°57'27"E

CD = 35.36'

L=54.98', R=35.00'

CB = S45°02'33"E

CD = 49.50'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
3
6
.8

3
'

E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W.

VARIES)

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

3
5
.0

0
'

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

1
6
0
.6

8
'

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5

' R
.O

.W
.)

W

VAN

G3SE (P-112)

STORE NO.: 0000

5,312 S.F.

BLDG. HT.= 20'-0"

ICE KIOSK

G3SE (P-113)

STORE NO.: 0000

5,312 S.F.

BLDG. HT.= 20'-0"

ICE KIOSK

1
5

K
 U

N
L

E
A

D
E

D
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

SUBMERGED

PUMP

1
5

K
 U

N
L

E
A

D
E

D
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

1
5

K
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 X
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

1
5

K
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

1
6

K
 D

IE
S

E
L

 (
1

0
.5

'Ø
)

IP

VAN

IP

SSA

PT

VTC

CWA

SP WP

30 15 0 30 60

N

SITE KEY MAP

N

3

SITE PLAN

SITE LEGEND

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

119



N89°57'27"E

172.01'

N89°57'27"E

279.83'

N89°57'27"E

110.53'

N
0
°0

2
'3

3
"W

2
7
1
.8

2
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
7
1
.8

3
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

5
1
9
.2

7
'

N89°57'27"E

572.37'

L=39.27', R=25.00'

CB = N44°57'27"E

CD = 35.36'

L=54.98', R=35.00'

CB = S45°02'33"E

CD = 49.50'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
3
6
.8

3
'

E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W.

VARIES)

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

3
5
.0

0
'

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

1
6
0
.6

8
'

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5

' R
.O

.W
.)

W

VAN

1
5

K
 U

N
L

E
A

D
E

D
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

SUBMERGED

PUMP

1
5

K
 U

N
L

E
A

D
E

D
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

1
5

K
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 X
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

1
5

K
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 (

1
0

.5
'Ø

)

1
6

K
 D

IE
S

E
L

 (
1

0
.5

'Ø
)

IP

VAN

IP

SSA

PT

VTC

CWA

SP WP

30 15 0 30 60

N

SITE KEY MAP

4

SITE ACCESS PLAN

SITE LEGEND

N

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

120



E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W. VARIES)

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5

' 
R

.O
.W

.)

40 20 0 40 80

N

5

SITE PLAN (SETBACKS)

SITE LEGEND

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

121



GRADING LEGEND

≤
≥ 

≥

E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W.

VARIES)

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5
' R

.O
.W

.)

W

VAN

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

VAN

6

GRADING PLAN

30 15 0 30 60

N

VERTICAL CURVE  AT GRADE BREAK NOTES

“
” “ ”

MISCELLANEOUS GRADING NOTES

BENCHMARKS

SITE KEY MAP

N

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

122



E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W.

VARIES)

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5

' R
.O

.W
.)

W

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

VAN

7

UTILITY PLAN

30 15 0 30 60

N

UTILITY LEGEND (NEW)

≤
≥

SITE KEY MAP

N

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

123



E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W.

VARIES)

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5

' R
.O

.W
.)

W

VAN

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

8

POST DEVELOPMENT MAP

30 15 0 30 60

N

DRAINAGE PLAN LEGEND

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

124



15
K 

D
IE

SE
L 

(1
0'

Ø
)

15
K 

PR
EM

IU
M

 (1
0'

Ø
)

15
K 

PR
O

D
U

C
T 

X 
(1

0'
Ø

)

15
K 

U
N

LE
AD

ED
 (1

0'
Ø

)

15
K 

U
N

LE
AD

ED
 (1

0'
Ø

)

SUBMERGED
PUMP

ANNULAR

PROBE

FILL

VENT/
VAPOR

SUBMERGED
PUMP

ANNULAR

PROBE

FILL

VENT/
VAPOR

SUBMERGED
PUMP

ANNULAR

PROBE

FILL

VENT/
VAPOR

SUBMERGED
PUMP

ANNULAR

PROBE

FILL

VENT/
VAPOR

SUBMERGED
PUMP

ANNULAR

PROBE

FILL

VENT/
VAPOR

LOT 1
± 76,066 SQFT
± 1.746 ACREBO

N
AN

ZA
BL

VD
.

(5
5'

 R
.O

.W
.)

WW

LOT 2
± 46,560 SQFT
± 1.069 ACRE

LOT 5
± 205,611 SQFT
± 4.720 ACRE

LOT 3
± 39,472 SQFT
± 0.906 ACRE

LOT 4
± 344,035 SQFT
± 7.898 ACRE

E. 168TH AVE.
(R.O.W.
VARIES)

A TYPE LP

E

F

G G G

F
F

D TYPE LPD TYPE LPA TYPE LP

C TYPE LP C TYPE LP

A TYPE LP A TYPE LP

A TYPE LP

A TYPE LP

C TYPE LP C TYPE LP

A TYPE LP

A TYPE LP

G3S (P-106)
STORE NO.: 4208

4,993 S.F.
BLDG. HT.= 20'-0"

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.9 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.4 1.9 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.7 2.3 2.6 2.3 2.7 2.2 1.6 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.3 2.9 3.2 3.3 4.0 3.6 2.8 1.9 1.2 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.7 4.3 4.7 4.8 5.4 5.1 4.2 3.1 2.3 1.6 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 1.0 1.7 3.0 4.4 5.4 5.8 6.1 6.4 6.7 7.3 7.9 8.2 7.8 8.5 7.9 6.9 6.1 5.0 3.4 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.8 1.5 3.3 7.0 11.7 14.1 14.2 15.0 15.8 15.5 16.1 17.3 17.0 16.5 17.0 16.1 14.8 14.5 12.7 8.1 4.0 1.8 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 1.0 2.2 5.5 13.8 26.1 31.2 29.7 31.6 33.9 31.7 32.1 35.2 33.6 32.1 34.7 33.1 29.6 31.4 28.1 16.7 6.8 2.7 1.2 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.3 2.9 7.3 18.9 36.2 43.3 41.0 43.6 46.8 43.5 43.7 47.7 45.2 43.1 47.0 45.2 40.7 43.3 39.0 23.0 9.1 3.5 1.5 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.5 3.3 8.2 21.2 40.4 48.3 45.8 48.7 52.2 48.5 48.5 52.7 49.8 47.4 51.9 50.1 45.5 48.4 43.6 25.7 10.2 3.9 1.7 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.8 3.5 8.3 21.2 40.1 48.0 45.6 48.5 51.9 48.1 48.1 52.2 49.3 46.9 51.5 49.8 45.3 48.3 43.5 25.9 10.4 4.1 1.9 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.4 1.4 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.3 3.6 7.6 18.9 35.7 42.7 40.4 43.1 46.1 42.7 42.6 46.4 43.7 41.5 45.7 44.2 40.2 43.2 39.2 23.5 9.8 4.2 2.2 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.7 1.3 2.1 2.1 1.4 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.0 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.9 6.5 14.0 25.2 30.0 28.8 30.5 32.4 30.1 30.1 32.7 31.0 29.5 32.3 31.4 29.0 31.0 28.2 17.5 8.1 4.0 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.2 2.0 2.9 3.0 2.1 1.2 0.9 0.5 0.2 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.3 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.4 3.3 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.9 3.2 3.6 4.0 5.1 8.2 12.2 14.3 14.6 15.1 15.5 14.8 15.0 15.8 15.6 15.2 15.8 15.6 15.3 15.8 14.1 10.1 6.1 3.9 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.5 1.5 2.0 2.7 2.7 2.1 1.4 1.3 0.8 0.2 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.9 1.1 1.8 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.3 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 3.4 3.8 3.8 4.3 5.6 6.8 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.4 7.2 7.4 7.9 8.0 8.2 8.4 8.4 8.5 8.5 7.6 5.8 4.2 3.1 2.3 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.0 0.4 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.7 1.4 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.4 3.3 4.7 4.8 4.0 3.5 3.4 3.6 4.5 4.9 4.4 3.3 3.3 3.8 3.8 4.6 6.7 7.3 6.2 5.2 5.1 4.7 4.6 4.7 5.2 5.5 6.7 8.0 7.9 6.4 6.0 5.3 4.5 4.2 3.6 2.7 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.0 0.4 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.5 0.7 1.1 2.1 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.0 4.4 5.9 6.0 4.8 3.9 3.9 4.2 5.7 6.3 5.4 3.7 3.7 4.2 4.2 5.9 8.2 8.9 7.0 4.9 5.1 4.8 4.8 4.8 5.1 5.1 7.2 9.2 8.7 6.7 5.1 4.6 4.1 4.2 3.8 2.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.1 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1

0.3 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.7 3.1 3.9 3.7 3.7 5.0 6.1 6.0 5.1 4.4 4.5 4.8 6.0 6.1 5.6 4.1 4.2 5.0 4.8 6.3 8.5 8.8 7.3 6.0 9.3 12.3 13.4 12.4 9.4 6.1 7.4 8.9 8.6 6.5 4.8 4.4 3.8 3.6 3.1 2.1 1.2 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1

0.5 1.2 1.6 1.7 2.0 2.7 3.3 3.9 4.5 5.0 5.5 5.2 4.7 5.3 5.7 5.6 5.5 5.3 4.8 4.4 5.1 5.9 5.3 5.0 6.1 6.3 6.3 6.1 4.8 4.6 4.7 4.1 3.6 3.0 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.7 1.4 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.6 3.5 4.6 5.2 5.7 5.5 5.2 5.6 6.2 6.6 6.5 5.9 5.3 5.1 5.3 5.8 6.3 5.6 4.8 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.3 4.3 4.5 4.7 4.2 3.4 2.6 1.9 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.8 1.4 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.7 3.4 4.5 5.3 5.3 5.1 5.0 5.2 5.7 6.2 6.2 5.4 4.8 4.8 4.9 5.3 5.7 5.4 4.6 4.9 6.5 6.5 4.8 4.0 4.2 4.4 4.2 3.5 2.8 2.2 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.5 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.6 3.1 3.9 4.6 4.6 5.0 5.9 6.1 5.4 5.2 4.9 4.8 5.3 5.8 5.3 4.5 4.2 4.0 3.4 6.4 24.8 24.9 6.3 3.0 3.2 3.7 4.1 3.7 3.6 3.6 2.2 1.3 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.8 3.5 4.0 4.1 5.0 6.4 6.5 5.3 4.3 4.2 4.3 5.7 6.5 5.7 3.7 3.0 2.6 2.2 5.7 28.3 28.4 5.8 2.0 2.3 3.1 3.9 3.9 4.3 4.3 3.0 1.7 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 1.4 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.8 3.5 3.7 4.4 5.6 5.6 4.7 3.7 3.6 3.8 5.2 5.7 5.1 3.1 2.3 1.9 1.4 2.2 5.4 5.5 2.4 1.6 2.1 3.0 4.0 3.8 3.9 4.2 2.9 1.6 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.4 1.1 1.5 1.6 2.1 2.6 2.6 2.6 3.1 3.3 3.2 4.0 4.1 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.6 4.1 3.4 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.0 1.6 2.7 3.9 6.2 5.8 6.7 7.1 5.6 6.4 5.0 2.8 2.7 1.5 1.6 2.2 3.3 3.7 3.5 3.3 1.8 1.2 1.0 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.8 1.1 1.5 2.7 3.2 3.3 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.3 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.1 1.6 2.6 6.1 6.6 9.0 9.8 9.5 9.9 7.0 7.0 3.6 2.4 1.7 1.8 2.6 3.1 3.6 4.3 3.8 1.2 0.7 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.8 2.6 2.5 2.1 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6 3.0 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.3 1.1 1.5 2.3 3.8 5.1 6.2 8.0 8.4 7.6 5.7 4.5 3.1 2.2 1.8 1.9 2.3 2.5 3.8 4.4 2.4 0.0 1.1 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.9 1.1 1.6 2.6 3.1 2.6 1.6 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.4 1.8 1.9 2.1 3.0 3.1 2.7 1.3 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.3 1.6 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.3 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.3 0.7 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

C160

PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN

30 15 0 30 60

N

GallowayUS.com

6162 S. Willow Drive, Suite 320
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
303.770.8884

A 05 SINGLE 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1

B 00 2 @ 90° 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1

C 02 2 @ 180° 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1

D 02 3 @ 90° 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1

QTYLABEL LLF

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE - LOT 1

ARRANGEMENT LUMENS
PER LAMP DESCRIPTION TOTAL

WATTS
MOUNTING

HEIGHTSYMBOL FINISH

BLACK

BLACK

BLACK

BLACK

Notes:
1. Canopy lights are fully recessed. See attached canopy light detail sheet

for mounting details.
2. All lights are full cutoff.
3. All pole lights, including the mounting foundation, have a mounting

height of 22 feet.
4. All light are 4000K in color.

QTYLABEL LLF

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE - LOT 2

ARRANGEMENT LUMENS
PER LAMP DESCRIPTION TOTAL

WATTS
MOUNTING

HEIGHTSYMBOL

E 40 SINGLE 15' TO 19' 13,449 0.90 CRUS-SC-SS-40 93.0

F 09 SINGLE 10' TO 12' 6,041 0.90 XSPS-S-LED-VHO-NW-DFL 48.7

G 03 SINGLE 12' 6,275 0.90 XWM-3-LED-06-40 54.0

FINISH

WHITE

WHITE

BLACK

A 02 SINGLE 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1 BLACK

C 02 2 @ 180° 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1 BLACK

QTYLABEL LLF

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE - LOT 3

ARRANGEMENT LUMENS
PER LAMP DESCRIPTION TOTAL

WATTS
MOUNTING

HEIGHTSYMBOL FINISH

A 01 SINGLE 22' 12,591 0.90 SLM-LED-12L-SIL-FT-40-70-CRI 93.1 BLACK

LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS
REQUIREMENTS PROVIDED

42
08

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 D
OC

UM
EN

TS
NW

C 
16

8t
h 

& 
I-

76
 F

RO
NT

AG
E 

LO
CH

BU
IE

, C
O

 QKT004208

P-106 (5/19/21)
83
001

ACJ
ACJ

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

6162 S. Willow Drive, Suite 320
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

1

2
8/

17
/2

1
2N

D 
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
PL

AT
 S

UB
M

IT
TA

L

CRUZ CANOPY LIGHT DETAILS

9

125



10

PHOTOMETRIC DETAILS

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
W

IT
H 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NA
L 

US
E

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E 
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-106 (5/19/21)
83
001

ACJ
ACJ

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

8/
17

/2
02

1

2
7/

23
/2

1
2N

D 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
3

1/
19

/2
2

3R
D 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

4
6/

10
/2

2
4T

H 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
5

11
/0

4/
22

5T
H 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

126



11

PHOTOMETRIC DETAILS

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
W

IT
H 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NA
L 

US
E

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E 
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-106 (5/19/21)
83
001

ACJ
ACJ

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

8/
17

/2
02

1

2
7/

23
/2

1
2N

D 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
3

1/
19

/2
2

3R
D 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

4
6/

10
/2

2
4T

H 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
5

11
/0

4/
22

5T
H 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

127



N89°57'27"E

172.01'

N89°57'27"E

279.83'

N89°57'27"E

110.53'

N
0
°0

2
'3

3
"W

2
7
1
.8

2
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
7
1
.8

3
'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

5
1
9
.2

7
'

N89°57'27"E

572.37'

L=39.27', R=25.00'

CB = N44°57'27"E

CD = 35.36'

L=54.98', R=35.00'

CB = S45°02'33"E

CD = 49.50'

S
0
°0

2
'3

3
"E

2
3
6
.8

3
'

E. 168TH AVE.

(R.O.W. VARIES)

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

3
5
.0

0
'

S
0
°0

2
'4

6
"E

1
6
0
.6

8
'

B
O

N
A

N
Z

A
 B

L
V

D
.

(5
5

' R
.O

.W
.)

W

VAN

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

SUBMERGED

PUMP

FILL

VAPOR

PROBE

ANNULAR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-113 (2/20/23)
83
001

DLR
DLR

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

2/
24

/2
02

3

30 15 0 30 60

N

12

LANDSCAPE PLAN

128



Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
W

IT
H 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NA
L 

US
E

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E 
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-106 (5/19/21)
83
001

ACJ
ACJ

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

8/
17

/2
02

1

2
7/

23
/2

1
2N

D 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
3

1/
19

/2
2

3R
D 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

4
6/

10
/2

2
4T

H 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
5

11
/0

4/
22

5T
H 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

13

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

1

5 6

1
Landscape Schedule

129



14

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
W

IT
H 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NA
L 

US
E

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E 
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-106 (5/19/21)
83
001

ACJ
ACJ

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

8/
17

/2
02

1

2
7/

23
/2

1
2N

D 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
3

1/
19

/2
2

3R
D 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

4
6/

10
/2

2
4T

H 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
5

11
/0

4/
22

5T
H 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

130



15

CANOPY ELEVATIONS

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

42
08

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
W

IT
H 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NA
L 

US
E

NW
C 

16
8t

h 
& 

I-
76

 F
RO

NT
AG

E 
LO

CH
BU

IE
, C

O

 QKT004208

P-106 (5/19/21)
83
001

ACJ
ACJ

JRR

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

GallowayUS.com

5500 Greenwood Plaza Blvd, Suite 200

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

303.770.8884

8/
17

/2
02

1

2
7/

23
/2

1
2N

D 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
3

1/
19

/2
2

3R
D 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

4
6/

10
/2

2
4T

H 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N 

SU
BM

IT
TA

L
5

11
/0

4/
22

5T
H 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
SU

BM
IT

TA
L

131



132



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2024 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2024-15 selecting a contractor from amongst bidders 
for the construction of an elevated two-million gallon water tank 
and authorizing the town administrator to execute an agreement 
for such construction contingent on final funding approval.  

PRESENTED BY: Chris Larmon, Public Works Director 

SUMMARY / BACKGROUND 

The 2017 Water Master Plan identified the need for additional water storage capacity 
in the Town’s water delivery system. Additionally, it called for the need to provide 
system pressure if the high-service booster station at the water plant or the Silver Peaks 
booster station failed. It also noted that the current 1.25 million gallons of storage 
located at the water treatment facility was not adequate to meet the town’s operational, 
fire, and emergency demands. 

The construction of an Elevated Water Storage Tank (EWST) will not only create the 
necessary water storage to meet the current water storage needs but also provide an 
adequate supply to meet fire and emergency situations.  

In 2017, the Town entered into an agreement with JVA, Inc. to begin preliminary 
engineering and design for an EWST. Unfortunately, this project stalled because the 
Town did not possess the land where the tank would be constructed.  

In September 2022, the Board of Trustees authorized an agreement with JVA to 
complete the efforts that began in 2017. The scope of this agreement was for JVA to 
complete preliminary engineering and design, site planning, Colorado Department of 
Health and Environment (CDPHE) permitting, assistance with securing funding, and 
bidding services. 

JVA issued an Advertisement for Bids and related Bid documents from qualified firms 
on December 5, 2023. Bids were received until 3 pm on December 21, 2023. JVA 
received three bid bids. After completing due diligence and a thorough review of each 
received bid, staff recommend the Board award this project to Landmark Structures I, 
LP contingent on the State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan being fully approved, and the 
funding being made available to the Town. JVA has provided an engineering 
recommendation that supports staff’s recommendation. 

133



Although Landmark Structures was not the lowest bidder, they are recommended as 
the bidder that best  meets all requirements and experience qualifications for this 
project.  

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

Company Name Base Bid Amount 
Landmark Structures I, LP $9,435,000 (+0.68% over lowest 

$63,407) 
Phoenix Fabricators and Erectors $9,371,563 (lowest) 
Phoenix Industries $10,219,730.43(+9.05% over lowest 

$848,167.43) 
The table above shows the bid amount and differences between each. 

The Town has already identified the $1.8 million received from the State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF), authorized by the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, 
to partially fund this project. The remainder of the cost will be funded through an $8 
million-dollar SRF loan. 

Staff also recommends the Board authorize a 10% contingency in the amount of 
$943,500 for a total project cost of $10,378,500. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 

Staff recommends the following motion: 

1) “I move to approve Resolution No. 2024-15, selecting a contractor from amongst
bidders for the construction of an elevated two-million gallon water tank and
authorizing the town administrator to execute an agreement for such
construction contingent on final funding approval”

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 2024-15 – A resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Town of
Lochbuie, Colorado, selecting a contractor from amongst bidders for the construction
of an elevated two-million-gallon water tank and authorizing the town administrator to
execute an agreement for such construction contingent on final funding approval.

2. JVA Engineering Recommendation

3. Landmark Bid Proposal

134



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS 

STATE OF COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 
LOCHBUIE, COLORADO, SELECTING A CONTRACTOR FROM AMONGST 
BIDDERS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AN ELEVATED TWO MILLION 
GALLON WATER TANK AND AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR SUCH 
CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENT ON FINAL FUNDING APPROVAL  

WHEREAS, the Town of Lochbuie, by and through its water utility enterprise, owns and 
operates a water utility and is constructing an elevated water storage tank within the Town as 
contemplated by the 2017 Water System Master Plan (“Tank”); and 

WHEREAS, the cost of construction of the Tank is to be partially funded by loan 
proceeds from a loan through the State Revolving Fund (SRF)  program, final approval of which 
the Town has not yet received; and    

WHEREAS, in 2023, the Town, through JVA, Inc., the contract engineering project 
manager for the Tank project, issued Bidding Documents (“Solicitation”) for the defined Work 
(as such term is defined in the Solicitation) for the construction of the Tank; and 

WHEREAS, from the bids received timely received in response to the Solicitation, JVA 
performed a technical review and made a recommendation to the Town of a Successful Bidder to 
enter into the Contract Documents with for construction of the Tank; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees desires to approve selection of the  Successful 
Bidder (as such term is defined in the Solicitation) and authorize the issuance of an Award of 
Contract to such Successful Bidder and authorize the Town Administrator to execute on behalf 
of the Town the Agreement and Contract Documents with such Successful Bidder contingent on 
the SRF loan being finally approved and the funding being made available to the Town. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town 
of Lochbuie, Colorado, the following: 

Section 1. The Town Board of Trustees (a) incorporates the above recitations as 
findings of the Board, (b) approves the selection of Landmark Structures I, LP  as 
Successful Bidder, and (c) authorizes the Town Administrator to execute on behalf of the 
Town the Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated 
Price) in the form included in the Solicitation and all related documents in an amount not to 
exceed $10,378,500 contingent on the SRF loan being finally approved and the funding 
being made available to the Town and such other related documents as needed to award a 
construction contract for the Tank. 

135



Section 2. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its approval by the 
Board of Trustees. 

ADOPTED THIS 6TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

ATTEST: Michael Mahoney, Mayor 

By: 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk  

136



137



138



           

  

 

   

 

    

   

           
              

             
            

           
              

                 
  

          
             

               
              

         
               

         
             

            

            
                   

              
   

            
                
                

                     
               

           
         

139



             
          

              
            

    

             
                

                 
              

         

140



           
                 

 

  

 

 
   

    

          

141



              
                     

                   
                

                   
                

              

         

                
                

              

        

                   
                 

      

                    
                  

               
 

                     
                    

                 
  

                     
                    

    

                    
        

                  
                   
              

            

                   
                 

          

                
                    

                   
                   

 

               

       
            

         
 

142



143



144



  

  

     

       

       
            

         
  145



146



147



               
    

              
               

             
            

 

            
               

            
 

            
             

             
             

              
           

             
       

              
           

               
             

                  
             

             
            

            
      

             
           

             
               

        

   

      

                  
              

        

                 
   

               

       
            

         
  148



             
           

              
             

            
               

              
  

             
                

    

            
             

      

       
            

         
    149



150



           

  

 

   

 

    

   

           
              

             
            

           
              

                 
  

          
             

               
              

         
               

          
               

            

            
                   

              
   

            
                
                

                     
               

           
         

151



             
          

              
            

    

             
                

                 
              

         

152



           
                 

 

  

 

 
   

    

          

153



✔

✔

154



✔

✔

✔

155



✔

2022 2021 2020

* 0 492,298 1.22 1.70 474,989 1.02 1.07 596,946 
 

*Under review, please see attached EMR Explanation Letter

✔

✔

156



✔

✔

✔

✔

157



158



          

          

             

               
  

     

    
            

         
   159



160



           

  

 

   

 

    

   

           
              
             
            

           
              

                 
  

          
             

               
              

         
               

         
             

            

            
                   

              
   

            
                
                

                     
               

           
         

161



             
          

              
            

    

             
                

                 
              

         

162



           
                 

 

  

 

 
   

    

          

163



164



Page 1 of 2

      

       

             

           

       

            

         

               

     

         

              

   

                

           

       

          

        

               

    

             

            

   

           

           

       

         

       

               

 

 

  

    

          

           

 

         
            

         

    

   

 

  

 

   

  

 

 

 

165



Page 2 of 2

      

       

           

           

       
            

         

               

     

           

            

   

              

           

       
              

           

               

     

            

           

   

            

           

       

         

       

               

 

 

  

    

          

       

 

         
            

         

   

  

 

 

 

166



167



168



169



170



171



172



     

 
                          
                        

 
                      

        

     
173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



 

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

186



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



Dallas | Houston | San Antonio | (800) 880-6689 | www.ib-tx.com 

EMR Explanation 
Landmark Structures I, L.P. 

Landmark Structures I, L.P. remains focused and deeply committed to worker and workplace safety in the 
performance of our work. In addition to our in-house, credentialed safety team, Landmark also engages 
the services of independent safety professionals to ensure adherence to all State and Federal statutes.    

Landmark is dedicated to continuous improvement in all areas of our operations, including our 
Environmental, Health, and Safety (EHS) performance.  

To demonstrate this commitment and effectively monitor progress, Landmark has recently implemented 
a structured EHS Improvement Plan that includes the following refinements:   

Enhanced Field Audit Process 

Peer reviewed audit scoring
Calculated responses to low and/or failed audit scores to include input from EHS and Operations
Prioritized auditing based on historical performance
Additional utilization of team audits and multiple day audits

Landmark Specific Video Training 

Landmark has begun creating video training sessions to address requirements specific to
Landmark work.  Participants are tested following the training to verify understanding of the
content.

Improved Accident Reporting Process 

Landmark has streamlined the accident reporting process to encourage employees to report
quickly and accurately. The program relies heavily on the learning that comes from non-
injury/near-miss type accidents. Streamlining the process has increased the rate at which
supervisors are willing to report near-miss type accidents.

Additional Safety Professional 

Landmark has recently added another safety professional to the Landmark EHS Team.  All
members of the Landmark EHS Team are credentialed safety professionals or are in the process
of obtaining professional credentials.

196



Dallas | Houston | San Antonio | (800) 880-6689 | www.ib-tx.com 

EMR Improvement 

While Landmark does not believe the EMR is an appropriate or valid measure of safety performance we 
have made some changes to improve our EMR number. 

Worker’s compensation claims management has been returned to a long-tenured employee
with proven success in minimizing claims cost.
We have also employed two independent worker's compensation specialists to help reduce or
remove the impact of fraudulent claims that are impacting our EMR number.

Expected EMR Changes Forthcoming 

The following factors are expected to positively impact (lower) Landmark’s EMR in the coming years: 

Previous claims from 2018 affecting current EMR will drop off.
Continued managed claim service is expected to reduce EMR dramatically.
Caps on large losses will positively impact EMR.
The Expected Loss Rate (ELR) for the 2017-2018 term dropped by 0.25 points from the 2020
Modifier generation as compared to the 2021 Modifier Generation.

197



198



Dallas | Houston | San Antonio | (800) 880-6689 | www.ib-tx.com 

2020 $18,000 

The adverse result of these changes is that many contractors are in jeopardy of being ineligible for 
work on projects that use EMRs as a primary prequalification criterion. 

EMR and Contractor Safety – A Flawed Correlation  

National Council on Compensation Insurance 

The National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) is an insurer-owned workers’ comp rate-making 
entity covering most states.   

In 2019, NCCI added a boilerplate disclaimer against using EMRs, or E-Mods, to prequalify employers. 

“This new language is designed to raise awareness on this important topic and to reinforce the 
intended purpose of an experience rating worksheet” for using the rate only to adjust the 
premium, according to Kathy Antonello, NCCI’s Chief Actuary. “This is consistent with the 
information we have provided to the public in the industry that it's not appropriate to use E-
mods to compare the relative safety of employers.  The E-Mod should be used for its intended 
purpose.”   

Source:  Engineering News Record / Scott Van Voorhis and Richard Korman.   “The Mismeasure of 
Safety:  Why Ending Misuse of Workers’ Compensation Ratings Won’t Be Easy” www.enr.com 
April 24, 2019 

State of Virginia 

Since 2015, Virginia has prohibited the use of a particular EMR as a condition for eligibility to participate in 
solicitations for construction services, including private construction projects not covered by the state’s 
public procurement rules.  The state’s Department of Transportation does gather EMRs from prospective 
contractors, but they are a small part of the overall safety evaluation.  

Source:  Engineering News Record / Jim Parsons.  “When Virginia Insurance Brokers Sought to End 
EMR Misuse.” www.enr.com April 17, 2019  

199



Dallas | Houston | San Antonio | (800) 880-6689 | www.ib-tx.com 

Indiana Compensation Rating Bureau 

The Indiana Compensation Rating Bureau (ICRB) is a private, non-profit, unincorporated association of all 
insurance companies licensed to write workers comp insurance in Indiana.   

The following is a quote from a white paper published by the Indiana Compensation Rating Bureau on 
July 14, 2011: “…the EMR was designed solely as a premium calculation factor, not as an indicator of 
overall contractor safety. Using the EMR for other than its intended purpose (to modify premium) has 
significant flaws and can produce inequitable conclusions about safety…” 

Engineering News Record 

“In an environment now obsessed with information, simplifications and misuses of statistics 
shouldn’t be surprising. EMRs were born out of a need for better actuarial precision in workers’ 
compensation insurance—a no-fault form of coverage—but they now have become an informal 
proxy for the success and quality of an employer’s overall safety practices. And EMR misuse has 
often penalized smaller companies and those that have good safety records.” 

Source:  Engineering News Record / Scott Van Voorhis and Richard Korman.   “The Mismeasure of 
Safety:  Why Ending Misuse of Workers’ Compensation Ratings Won’t Be Easy” www.enr.com 
April 24, 2019 

Several of the flaws are as follows: 

1. EMR includes reserves on open claims which can change from year to year, month to month
2. Successfully subrogated claims can be excluded from an EMR, but final subrogation may occur

years after the policy year experience is no longer part of the EMR 3-year calculation period.
3. EMR calculation formulas can change as noted above, which can adversely affect the EMR.
4. Using the EMR as a qualifying metric discourages timely and accurate reporting of injuries, non-

injury incidents, and near-miss situations.

200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



LANDMARK STRUCTURES 
Fort Worth, Texas, USA 

LANDMARK PROJECT REFERENCES 

Jericho WD – Syosset – Convent Road 
Composite 1.5 MG 
Completed 11/15/2023 

Owner Contact:  Engineer Contact: 
Jericho Water District D&B Engineers and Architects 
Kathleen Cannon Timothy McConnell 
516-921-8280 516-364-9890
jwdinfo@jerichowater.org tmcconnell@db-eng.com

Lino Lakes II – Birch Street 
Composite 1.5 MG 
Completed 9/1/2021 

Owner Contact:  Engineer Contact: 
City of Lino Lakes WSB & Associates, Inc. – Saint Paul, MN 
Rick DeGardner  Greg Johnson 
651-982-2400 651-286-8450
RDgardner@linolakes.us gjohnson@wsbeng.com

Syracuse - Clearfield 
Composite 3.0 MG 
Completed 4/28/2021 

Owner Contact:  Engineer Contact: 
City of Syracuse  J-U-B Engineers Inc.
Robert Whiteley Bryce Wilcox
801-825-1477 801-547-0393
rwhiteley@syracuseut.com bwk@jub.com

217



218



219



Agenda Item Summary 
MEETING DATE: February 6, 2024 

SUBJECT: Resource Central Agreements 2024 

PRESENTED BY: Heather Bowen 

SUMMARY 

In 2023, the Town partnered with Resource Central to offer waterwise education and water conservation 
garden kits to residents. The partnership allows the Town to purchase the services, which are then offered 
to the community at no charge, or at a discounted rate. In 2023, the Town offered ten Garden In A Box 
Kit discounts, 15 Slow The Flow Irrigation Audits, and one Waterwise Seminar. Lochbuie residents 
utilized four Garden In A Box discounts and 2 Irrigation Audits. In the webinar hosted by the Town, 
there were seven Lochbuie residents who attended, and 188 total attendees. Resource Central offers 
several webinars on different topics over the course of the year, and the community can attend any of 
them, not just the one Lochbuie hosts.  

For 2024, staff recommends offering less discounts and audits, and focusing more on marketing and 
promotional materials to ensure that everyone in the community learns about Resource Central. Staff is 
proposing entering into agreements with Resource Central to offer eight Garden In A Box Kits, ten Slow 
the Flow Irrigation Audits, and the Town will host one Waterwise seminar. The marketing plan includes 
mailing flyers with utility bills, updating the website and including photos, increasing posts on Facebook, 
including reminders each month in the newsletter, and having flyers to handout at events. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

For 2024, there is $6,000.00 budgeted for Resource Central. If the three agreements are approved as 
presented, the Town would spend a total of $4496.00 on the program. The remaining budgeted amount 
would be used on direct mailings included in utility bills and printing flyers.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 

Staff offers the following motion for your consideration: 

“I move to approve Resolution 2024 - 16 – Approving Three Agreements With Resource Central For 
2024 For (A) Garden In A Box Program, (B) Slow The Flow Irrigation Audit Program, And (C) 
Waterwise Yard Seminars Program.” 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 2024-16
Garden In A Box Program Agreement 
Slow The Flow Irrigation Audit Program Agreement 
Waterwise Yard Seminars Program Agreement 

220



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS 

STATE OF COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 
LOCHBUIE, COLORADO, APPROVING THREE AGREEMENTS WITH 
RESOURCE CENTRAL FOR 2024 FOR (A) GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM, (B) 
SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM, AND (C) WATERWISE 
YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM  

WHEREAS, Resource Central offers water conservation programs and the Town wishes 
to partner with Resource Central to offer these programs for Lochbuie residents; and.  

WHEREAS, Town Staff has negotiated the terms of these agreements with Resource 
Central. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town 
of Lochbuie, Colorado, the following: 

Section 1. The Town Board of Trustees (a) incorporates the above recitations as 
findings of the Board, and (b) authorizes the Mayor to execute on behalf of the Town the three 
agreements for services with Resource Central in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

Section 2. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its approval by the 
Board of Trustees. 

ADOPTED THIS 6TH  DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

ATTEST: Michael Mahoney, Mayor 

By: 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk  

221



EXHIBIT A 
GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM AGREEMENT, 

SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM AGREEMENT AND 
WATERWISE YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

222



GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS Garden In A Box Program Agreement (“Agreement”) is made on _____________ (“Effective 
Date”), by and between Resource Central and the Town of Lochbuie (“Utility Partner”) (each 
individually a “Party,” or collectively as “Parties”). 

Recitals 

1. WHEREAS many people are interested in the concept of a low-water landscape;

2. WHEREAS those interested in the concept of a low-water landscape are often overwhelmed by
the plant selection and design of such a landscape;

3. WHEREAS those interested in the concept of a low-water landscape have limited time and
money to invest in the process of planning and designing such a landscape; and

4. WHEREAS to provide its residents with an easy and affordable way to learn about and install
low-water landscapes, Utility Partner wishes to engage Resource Central to organize and conduct
the Garden In A Box Program (“Program”) for the term specified in Section III in partnership
with Utility Partner.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Program Obligations

A. Resource Central Obligations

1. Resource Central shall provide the services described in the Garden In A Box
Program Scope and Conditions of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A
(“Services”).

B. Utility Partner Obligations

1. Marketing and Publicity. Utility Partner shall be responsible for publicizing the
availability of the Program to its Customers in at least one round of marketing.
Efforts to publicize the Program to its Customers may include, but are not limited
to, advertising media such as Utility Partner’s bill inserts, website, social media,
newsletter, and direct mailing. If only one round will take place, the marketing
must be in the form of a water bill insert.

Resource Central will develop a marketing toolkit containing marketing and
publicity media and individual advertisement components for Utility Partner to use.
Resource Central will supply a recommended marketing calendar and template,
which will list the recommended dates and media type(s) for the Utility Partner
to disseminate marketing materials using the marketing toolkit. Advertising
content may be created by either Resource Central or Utility Partner; however,
Utility Partner must use the toolkit components (i.e., verbiage, logos, photographs)

223



for Program advertisements and all efforts must be approved by Resource Central 
prior to publishing. All marketing toolkit contents are property of Resource 
Central and are to be used exclusively to advertise and promote its 
programming.  

If Resource Central determines a sufficient number of requests exist, despite all 
rounds of intended advertising having not been completed, Resource Central may 
waive the requirement that Utility Partner conduct an additional advertising round. 
Resource Central shall provide Utility Partner with notice of any such waiver. 

For the purposes of communication regarding program marketing and outreach, 
Resource Central requests the contact information of a designated marketing point 
of contact. The person(s) named below is designated Utility Partner’s 
representative(s) for marketing efforts. 

For Utility Partner: 
Heather Bowen 
Town Clerk 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
303-990-5783
hbowen@lochbuie.org

2. Complete and Submit Signed Agreement and Attachments. Utility Partner shall
submit to Resource Central a signed copy of the Agreement and the Attachments no
later than Friday, February 9, 2024.

II. Price, Payment Amount, and Billing Procedure

A. Payment of Program Price. Utility Partner shall pay Resource Central the Base Program
Price, pursuant to the Garden In A Box Program Payment Schedule and Terms,
attached hereto as Attachment B.

III. Term

A. Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date
and terminates on December 31, 2024, or on the date the Agreement is earlier
terminated, as provided herein.

IV. General Provisions

A. Record-Keeping Requirements. Both Resource Central and Utility Partner shall maintain
all records, documents, communications, and other material that pertain to this
Agreement (“Records”) for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment
under this Agreement, unless Resource Central or Utility Partner requests that the records
be retained for a longer period. Resource Central and Utility Partner each shall provide
access to such Records to the other during normal business hours for review and
copying.

B. No Delegation. Except as otherwise provided, the Parties’ duties and obligations shall
not be assigned, delegated, or subcontracted except with the express prior written

224



consent of the Utility Partner. All subcontractors shall be subject to the requirements of 
this Agreement. 
 

C. Indemnification. To the extent allowed by law, Utility Partner, on behalf of itself and its 
successors and assigns, agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Resource 
Central, its officers, directors, and employees, contractors, and volunteers from and 
against losses, liabilities, expenses, and costs, including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of (i) the negligent performance under this 
Agreement by Utility Partner or any person employed by or acting on behalf of Utility 
Partner; or (ii) any injury to persons or property to the proportional extent caused by the 
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Utility Partner, or any person employed by 
or acting on behalf of Utility Partner, during the performance of Services under this 
Agreement. 

 
To the extent allowed by law, Resource Central, on behalf of itself and its successors and 
assigns, agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Utility Partner, its officers, directors, and 
employees, and contractors from and against losses, liabilities, expenses, and costs, 
including, without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of (i) the 
negligent performance of Services under this Agreement by Resource Central or any 
person employed by or acting on behalf of Resource Central; or (ii) any injury to persons 
or property to the proportional extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of Resource Central, or any person employed by or acting on behalf of 
Resource Central, during the performance of Services under this Agreement. 

 
D. No Third-Party Rights. Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of, and be binding only upon, the Parties. No third-party beneficiary rights or 
benefits of any kind are expressly or impliedly provided herein. 

 
E. Designated Representatives. For the purpose of this Agreement, the persons named 

below are designated the representatives of the Parties. Unless otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, all notice required to be given by the Parties shall be given either by 
hand delivery or email, with confirmed receipt, or by registered or certified mail to the 
representative named below. The Parties may designate in writing a new or substitute 
representative: 
 
For Resource Central: 
 
Neal Lurie 
President 
Resource Central 
6400 Arapahoe Road, Suite B  
Boulder, CO  80303 
303-999-3820 x202 
nlurie@resourcecentral.org 

For Utility Partner: 
 
Heather Bowen 
Town Clerk 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
303-990-5783 
hbowen@lochbuie.org 
 
 

F.  Default and Remedies. If either Party fails to comply with this Agreement, the other 
Party shall provide written notice specifying the breach, and the breaching Party shall be 
allowed thirty (30) days to cure, or such longer period as agreed to by the Parties in 
writing if the cure will require additional time. If the breaching Party fails to cure the 
breach, timely under this agreement, the non-breaching Party shall have all remedies 

225



available in law or in equity. The waiver of any breach of a term hereof shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other term or the same term upon subsequent breach. 

G. Modifications. This Agreement is intended as the complete integration of understanding
between the Parties. Both Parties may make modifications to this Agreement as needed,
provided that no modification may be made to the number of Garden In A Box kits
requested by Utility Partner, as specified in the Payment Schedule and Terms, and
guaranteed to be provided by Resource Central. Such modification shall not be effective
until it is accepted in writing by a legally authorized representative of each Party.

H. Severability. The terms of this Agreement are severable, and should any term or provision
hereof be declared invalid or become inoperative for any reason, such invalidity or failure
shall not affect the validity of any other term or provision hereof.

I. Exhibits. All exhibits and attachments to this Agreement shall be deemed incorporated
herein by reference.

J. Independent Contractor. Resource Central shall perform the Services under this
Agreement as an independent contractor. The Parties do not intend, nor shall it be
construed that Resource Central or any Resource Central subcontractor, employee, or
volunteer is an employee of Utility Partner for any purposes whatsoever.

K. Employee Financial Interest. The Parties aver that to their knowledge, no employee of
Utility Partner has any personal or beneficial interest whatsoever in the service or
property described herein.

L. Legal Authority – Signatory. Each Party represents and warrants that it possesses the legal
authority to enter into this Agreement and that it has taken all actions required by its
procedures, by-laws, and applicable laws to exercise that authority, and to lawfully
authorize its undersigned signatory to execute this Agreement, or any part thereof, and to
bind itself to its terms. If requested by the other Party, each Party shall provide the other
with proof of its authority to enter into this Agreement within twenty (20) days of
receiving such request.

M. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall be applied in the interpretation, execution, and
enforcement of this Agreement. Any provision included or incorporated herein by
reference that conflicts with Colorado law shall be null and void. Any provision
incorporated herein by reference that purports to negate this provision in whole or in
part shall not be valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of
complaint, defense, or otherwise. Venue for a legal action relating to the interpretation,
execution, or enforcement of this Agreement shall be in the District Court, Boulder
County, Colorado.

N. Force Majeure.  Resource Central shall not be held liable or responsible to the Utility
Partner nor be deemed to have defaulted under or breached this Agreement for failure or
delay in fulfilling or performing any term of this Agreement due to circumstances beyond
its control (generally, a “Force Majeure Event”) including, but not limited to, national
emergencies, unusually severe weather (including fire and flood), catastrophe, acts of
God, insurrection, war, riot, epidemic, quarantine restrictions, labor disturbances, or
embargoes. The occurrence of any Force Majeure Event shall excuse Resource Central
from performing its obligations under this Agreement. However, the occurrence of a

226



Force Majeure Event shall not excuse the Utility Partner’s obligation under this 
Agreement to pay the Base Program Price.   

 
O. Intellectual Property Rights. All work product(s) created under this Agreement, including 

software, drawings, videos, manuals, survey data and related reports, charts, photographs, 
designs, papers, documents and copies, abstracts and summaries thereof, whether printed 
material, original works of authorship, electronic documents and intellectual property 
produced, invented, reduced to practice, or created as a result of the work performed 
under this Agreement (“Creations”) shall be the sole property of Resource Central and 
may not be used, sold, licensed or disposed of in any manner without prior written 
approval of Resource Central.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, all 
Creations shall be deemed works made for hire under the United States copyright laws, 
and all right, title, and interest in and to such work product shall vest automatically in 
Resource Central. 

 
P. Termination. Resource Central may terminate this Agreement for any reason by providing 

thirty (30) days written notice to Utility Partner (the “Termination Notice”). Utility 
Partner must compensate Resource Central for any work completed prior to and 
including the date of termination, as specified in the Termination Notice.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Utility Partner has executed this Memorandum of Agreement or caused it to be 
executed on its behalf by its duly authorized representatives. 

 
Resource Central 

 
 

By: __________________________________________ 

Name: ________________________________________ 

Title: _________________________________________ 

Date: _________________________ 

 
Utility Partner 

          

By: ________________________________ 

Name: ______________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

Date: ________________________       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

227



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM 

SCOPE OF WORK  

228



GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
I. Scope of Work 

 
A.  Design and Ordering of Gardens 

 
1. Garden Design. Resource Central shall work with landscape designers to create at least six (6) 

waterwise/low-water garden designs, which shall be made available to Utility Partner residents. 
Once those designs have been completed, Resource Central shall work with local nurseries to 
secure plants. If necessary, Resource Central shall select appropriate substitute plants.   
 
The gardens shall be assembled into kits, which shall include a design layout (including 
Resource Central’s plant-by-number design), a variety of low-water plants, and helpful tips 
about waterwise gardening, including planting and maintenance instructions for all of the plants 
(“Garden In A Box”). 

 
2. Ordering. Utility Partner shall order, and Resource Central shall provide, a minimum of eight 

(8) Garden In A Box discounts for the garden sale season. Eight (8) Garden In A Box kits will 
be reserved for the March-June 2024 season. Any unused discounts during the spring sale will 
be carried forward into the July-September 2024 season. Subject to availability, Resource 
Central shall order additional garden discounts as specified by Utility Partner.   

 
Resource Central shall have the number of Garden In A Box kits ordered by Utility Partner 
available for Utility Partner residents to order at the rate specified in section I.A.1 of the 
Payment Schedule and Terms. 

 
B. Marketing, Advertising, Customer Service, and Sales 

 
1. Marketing and Publicity. Utility Partner shall be responsible for marketing and publicizing the 

availability of the Program to its Customers in at least one round of marketing. Utility Partner 
may use any combination of the following media: bill inserts, website, social media, newsletter, 
and direct mailing. If only one round will take place, the marketing must be in the form of 
a water bill insert.  
 
A marketing toolkit, developed by Resource Central, will contain promotional templates and 
individual advertisement components for the Utility Partner to use. Resource Central will supply 
a recommended marketing calendar and template, which will list the recommended dates and 
media type(s) for the Utility Partner to disseminate marketing materials using the marketing 
toolkit. Advertising content may be created by either Resource Central or Utility Partner; 
however, Utility Partner must use the aforementioned marketing toolkit components (i.e., 
verbiage, logos, photographs) for Program advertisements and all efforts must be approved by 
Resource Central prior to publishing. All marketing toolkit contents are property of 
Resource Central and are to be used exclusively to advertise and promote its 
programming.     
 
If Resource Central determines a sufficient number of requests exist, despite all rounds of 
intended advertising having not been completed, Resource Central may waive the requirement 
that Utility Partner conduct an additional advertising round. Resource Central shall provide 
Utility Partner with notice of any such waiver in writing. 
 

229



2. Garden Availability. Since Garden In A Box kits are also available to the public and demand can 
exceed inventory, Resource Central will hold back some inventory to allow for Utility Partner to 
market the program to its residents during the first three (3) weeks of the sale. Once all Garden 
In A Box inventory is released on the website, they are sold first come, first served. 
 

3. Advertising of Program. Resource Central may design and pay for the placement of 
advertisements in a local newspaper or online (social media), and write and disseminate press 
releases and public service announcements publicizing the Program.  
 

4. Customer Service. Resource Central shall handle all incoming phone calls and emails regarding 
the Program and respond to all questions.  

 
5. Sales. Resource Central shall create and manage an online retail platform. Resource Central shall 

also process orders and take payment via check and credit card.  
 

C. Distribution of Garden In A Box Kits 
 

1. Garden In A Box Assembly. Resource Central shall organize and handle delivery of all plants, 
which shall be pre-packaged according to the designs developed by Resource Central.  
 

2. Training of Utility Partner Staff. Resource Central shall train Utility Partner staff, if Utility 
Partner elects to provide staff to aid in the distribution. 

 
3. Distribution. Resource Central shall conduct at least one (1) distribution within twenty (20) miles 

of the Utility Partner service area at a mutually agreed upon location(s). Before the 
distribution(s), Resource Central staff and volunteers shall prepare and organize all plants 
required for the distribution(s). Resource Central shall organize volunteers to help distribute 
Gardens In A Box at each requested distribution location. Resource Central shall provide at least 
one of its staff members and one volunteer to conduct the distribution(s). Resource Central staff 
and/or volunteer(s) shall confirm that participants have pre-ordered and pre-paid for their 
Garden In A Box. Resource Central staff and/or volunteer(s) shall then assist participants in 
retrieving their requested Garden In A Box kit(s). At that time, Resource Central staff and/or 
volunteer(s) shall give the participant the plant and care guides for their requested Garden In A 
Box kit(s).   

 
4. Undistributed Garden Kits. If, after a distribution is completed, there remain undelivered 

Garden In A Box kits, Resource Central shall make the undelivered Garden In A Box kits 
available for pickup by the participant at 6400 Arapahoe, Boulder, CO, 80303. Resource Central 
shall make all reasonable efforts to sell any remaining plants individually. Regardless of Resource 
Central’s ability to sell undistributed Garden In A Box kits or individual plants, Utility Partner is 
still obligated to pay the Base Program Price and any additional charges associated with Utility 
Partner’s requested number of Garden In A Box kits, as specified in the Payment Schedule and 
Terms, attached hereto as Attachment B.  
 

5. Time of Distributions. All distributions shall be conducted during the period from May 1, 2024, 
to September 30, 2024, with the primary months being May, June, August, and September. 

 
D.  Program Updates 

 
1. Demand Updates. During peak garden sales season, Resource Central shall provide to Utility 

Partner updates about the Program at least every other week.  
 

230



2. Updates Upon Request. Updates shall also be provided to Utility Partner within five (5) 
business days of any written request.  

 
3. Contents of Updates. Both regularly scheduled and requested updates shall include a summary 

of Resource Central’s progress in meeting its obligations under the Agreement. This includes 
the number of discounts used at the time of the update, and the percentage of the discounts 
requested by Utility Partner that this represents.    

 
E.  Post-Distribution Activities 

 
1. Participant Satisfaction Surveys. After the Program Term has ended, Resource Central shall 

conduct a satisfaction survey of all participants purchasing Garden In A Box kits.   
 

2. Annual Report. Resource Central shall also compile information about the Program. The survey 
results and the Program information shall be included in a final report detailing the Program 
results. Resource Central shall provide Utility Partner with this report by December 31, 2024.

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

231



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM  

PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND TERMS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

232



GARDEN IN A BOX PROGRAM 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND TERMS 

I. Payment Terms

A. Base Program Price

1. Price Charged to Utility Partner’s Residents. Six (6) garden designs shall be made available for Utility
Partner’s residents to choose from. The six (6) options shall cost circa $99-$320 for water customers of
Utility Partner as long as discounts remain available. Resource Central shall make all good faith efforts
to keep the price charged to Utility Partner’s residents below retail cost.

2. Price Charged to Utility Partner. To make the Garden In A Box Program available to Utility Partner in
2024, Utility Partner shall pay a base program price of $616.00 (“Base Program Price”).

3. Services Included in Base Program Price. The Base Program Price covers a portion of Resource
Central’s costs associated with managing and organizing the program as outlined in the Garden In A
Box Scope of Work. In addition, the Base Program Price includes eight (8) discounts of $25 for each
Garden In A Box kit that participants purchase during the sales season. Participants must be receiving
their water service through Utility Partner to be eligible for discounts. The Base Program Price also
includes one (1) distribution within twenty (20) miles of the Utility Partner service area at a mutually
agreed-upon location.

B. A la Carte Prices

1. Additional Gardens and Distributions. Subject to availability in the spring season, Utility Partner may
order more garden discounts than the eight (8) discounts included in the Base Program Price and will
only pay $25 for each additional discount (no additional Base Program Price). A maximum of ten (10)
additional Garden In A Box discounts can be purchased by the Utility Partner. Any unused discounts
in the spring will carry over to the late summer garden season; however, unused discounts in
the late summer cannot be carried over, refunded, or transferred into the next calendar year.

C. Liability for Cost of Unsold Gardens and Unclaimed Discounts

1. Costs Associated with Garden Order. Utility Partner shall not be liable for the costs associated with
unsold Garden In A Box kits that are part of the order of eight (8) discounts.

2. No Refund. Resource Central shall not provide a refund to Utility Partner for any unsold gardens or
unclaimed discounts.

II. Payment Schedule and Invoicing

A. Invoicing. Resource Central shall bill Utility Partner for all work completed pursuant to the Agreement.
Payment shall be due within thirty (30) days of the date the invoice is issued by Resource Central. Said
invoice shall be issued upon Utility Partner’s submission to Resource Central of a signed version of the
Agreement. Such payment must be made by check or electronic payment (EFT) payable to Resource
Central.

B. Payment Deadlines. For purposes of these payment deadlines, a payment shall be deemed to have been
made upon the date of its actual receipt by Resource Central.

233



SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS Slow the Flow Irrigation Audit Program Agreement (“Agreement”) is made on 
_____________ (“Effective Date”), by and between Resource Central and the Town of Lochbuie 
(“Utility Partner”) (each individually a “Party,” or collectively “Parties”).   

Recitals 

1. WHEREAS in most communities across the western United States, over half of all residential
water is consumed outdoors, primarily for watering turf landscapes. Outdoor water use typically
occurs during a short 3-4 month season, resulting in very high peak seasonal usage, and
correspondingly high demands on most water providers. Although outdoor water use is water-
intensive, there is significant potential for water savings because generally there is a great deal of
inefficiency in most irrigation systems. Many irrigation systems can benefit from simple changes
such as fixing or adjusting sprinkler heads, ensuring appropriate operating pressure, and
implementing appropriate watering schedules;

2. WHEREAS increasing irrigation system efficiency and teaching property owners and responsible
parties (“Customers”) about best management practices has many positive benefits for the Utility
Partner provider, the homeowner, the community, and the environment. Not only can this reduce
the demand for water during peak service hours and help avoid unnecessary costs to the Utility
Partner and community, it can also result in greater cost effectiveness for the Customer, and
provide them with the knowledge to have a healthier landscape. Additionally, the amount of
runoff associated with inefficient irrigation systems and improper watering practices can be
significantly reduced. This not only helps avoid damage to sidewalks and streets, but it also results
in improved water quality because irrigation runoff is not being washed down the storm drains;
and

3. WHEREAS to provide these benefits for Utility Partner’s water customers, Utility Partner wishes
to engage Resource Central to organize and conduct the Slow the Flow Irrigation inspection
program (“Program”) for the term specified in Section III in partnership with Utility Partner.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Program Obligations

A. Resource Central Obligations

Resource Central shall provide the services described in the Slow the Flow Irrigation 
Audit Program Scope and Conditions of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A 
(“Services”).   

B. Utility Partner Obligations

1. Work Order and Obligations. Utility Partner shall complete the Work Order and
Obligations, attached hereto as Attachment B, no later than the time the Agreement
is completed and returned to Resource Central or Friday, February 9, 2024,
whichever comes first. In the Work Order and Obligations, Utility Partner shall

234



identify the precise nature of services requested, including but not limited to: the 
number and type of Customers who may participate in the Program, and whether 
Utility Partner wishes to implement a prioritization system for Customer 
participation. Utility Partner shall also comply with all obligations specified in the 
Work Order Obligations.   

 
2. Marketing and Publicity. Utility Partner shall be responsible for publicizing the 

availability of the Program to its Customers in at least one round of marketing. 
Efforts to publicize the Program to its Customers may include, but are not limited 
to, advertising media such as the Utility Partner’s bill inserts, website, social media, 
newsletter, and direct mailing. If only one round will take place, the marketing 
must be in the form of a water bill insert.  
 
Resource Central will develop a marketing toolkit containing these promotional 
templates and individual advertisement components for the Utility Partner to use. 
Resource Central will supply a recommended marketing calendar and template, 
which will list the recommended dates and media type(s) for the Utility Partner to 
disseminate marketing materials using the marketing toolkit. Advertising content 
may be created by either Resource Central or Utility Partner; however, Utility 
Partner must use the toolkit components (i.e., verbiage, logos, photographs) for 
Program advertisements and all efforts must be approved by Resource Central prior 
to publishing. All marketing toolkit contents are property of Resource Central 
and are to be used exclusively to advertise and promote its programming.     

  
If Resource Central determines sufficient demand exists, despite all rounds of 
advertising having not been completed, Resource Central may waive the 
requirement that Utility Partner conduct an additional advertising round. Resource 
Central shall provide Utility Partner with notice of any such waiver in writing. 
 
For the purposes of communication regarding program marketing and outreach, 
Resource Central requests the contact information of a designated marketing point 
of contact. The person(s) named below is designated Utility Partner’s 
representative(s) for marketing efforts. 
 
For Utility Partner: 
Heather Bowen 
Town Clerk 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
303-990-5783 
hbowen@lochbuie.org 

 
3. Complete and Submit Signed Agreement and Attachments. Utility 

Partner shall submit to Resource Central a signed copy of the Agreement 
no later than Friday, February 9, 2024.  

 
II.   Price, Payment Amount, and Billing Procedure 
 

A. Payment of Program Price. Utility Partner shall pay Resource Central the program price, 
pursuant to the Slow the Flow Irrigation Audit Program Payment Schedule and Terms, 
attached hereto as Attachment C.   

 

235



III. Term

A. Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date
and terminates on December 31, 2024, or on the date the Agreement is earlier
terminated, as provided herein.

IV. General Provisions

A. Record-Keeping Requirements. Both Resource Central and Utility Partner shall maintain
all records, documents, communications, and other material that pertain to this
Agreement (“Records”) for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment
under this Agreement, unless Resource Central or Utility Partner requests that the
records be retained for a longer period. Resource Central and Utility Partner each shall
provide access to such Records to the other during normal business hours for review
and copying.

B. No Delegation. Except as otherwise provided, the Parties’ duties and obligations shall
not be assigned, delegated, or subcontracted except with the express prior written
consent of the other Party. All subcontractors shall be subject to the requirements of
this Agreement.

C. Indemnification.  To the extent allowed by law, Utility Partner, on behalf of itself and its
successors and assigns, agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Resource
Central, its officers, directors, and employees, contractors, and volunteers from and
against losses, liabilities, expenses, and costs, including, without limitation, reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of (i) the negligent performance under this
Agreement by Utility Partner or any person employed by or acting on behalf of Utility
Partner; or (ii) any injury to persons or property to the proportional extent caused by the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Utility Partner, or any person employed by
or acting on behalf of Utility Partner, during the performance of Services under this
Agreement.

To the extent allowed by law, Resource Central, on behalf of itself and its successors and
assigns, agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Utility Partner, its officers, directors, and
employees, and contractors from and against losses, liabilities, expenses, and costs,
including, without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of (i) the
negligent performance of Services under this Agreement by Resource Central or any
person employed by or acting on behalf of Resource Central; or (ii) any injury to persons
or property to the proportional extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts or
omissions of Resource Central, or any person employed by or acting on behalf of
Resource Central, during the performance of Services under this Agreement.

D. No Third-Party Rights. Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of, and be binding only upon, the Parties. No third-party beneficiary rights or
benefits of any kind are expressly or impliedly provided herein.

E. Designated Representatives. For the purpose of this Agreement, the persons named
below are designated the representatives of the Parties. Unless otherwise provided in
this Agreement, all notice required to be given by the Parties shall be given either by
hand delivery or email, with confirmed receipt, or by registered or certified mail to the
representative named below. The Parties may designate in writing a new or substitute
representative:

236



 
For Resource Central: 
 
Neal Lurie 
President 
Resource Central 
6400 Arapahoe Road, Suite B 
Boulder, CO 80303 
303-999-3820 x202 
nlurie@ResourceCentral.org 

For Utility Partner: 
 
Heather Bowen 
Town Clerk 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
303-990-5783 
hbowen@lochbuie.org 
 

F. Default and Remedies.  If either Party fails to comply with this Agreement, the other 
Party shall provide written notice specifying the breach, and the breaching Party shall be 
allowed thirty (30) days to cure, or such longer period as agreed to by the Parties in 
writing if the cure will require additional time. If the breaching Party fails to cure the 
breach timely under this agreement, the non-breaching Party shall have all remedies 
available in law or in equity. The waiver of any breach of a term hereof shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other term or the same term upon subsequent breach.   

 
G. Modifications. This Agreement is intended as the complete integration of understanding 

between the Parties. This Agreement may only be modified or amended upon written 
mutual agreement by the Parties.  

 
H. Severability. The terms of this Agreement are severable, and should any term or provision 

hereof be declared invalid or become inoperative for any reason, such invalidity or failure 
shall not affect the validity of any other term or provision hereof.  

 
I. Exhibits. All exhibits and attachments to this Agreement shall be deemed incorporated 

herein by reference. 
 
J. Independent Contractor. Resource Central shall perform the Services under this 

Agreement as an independent contractor. The parties do not intend, nor shall it be 
construed that Resource Central or any Resource Central subcontractor or employee is an 
employee of the Utility Partner for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
K. Employee Financial Interest. The Parties aver that to their knowledge, no employee of 

Utility Partner has any personal or beneficial interest whatsoever in the service or 
property described herein. 

 
L. Legal Authority – Signatory. Each Party represents and warrants that it possesses the legal 

authority to enter into this Agreement and that it has taken all actions required by its 
procedures, by-laws, and applicable laws to exercise that authority, and to lawfully 
authorize its undersigned signatory to execute this Agreement, or any part thereof, and to 
bind itself to its terms. If requested by the other Party, each Party shall provide the other 
with proof of its authority to enter into this Agreement within 15 days of receiving such 
request. 
 

M. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall be applied in the interpretation, execution, and 
enforcement of this Agreement. Any provision included or incorporated herein by 
reference that conflicts with Colorado law shall be null and void. Any provision 
incorporated herein by reference that purports to negate this provision in whole or in 

237



part shall not be valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of 
complaint, defense, or otherwise. Venue for a legal action relating to the interpretation, 
execution, or enforcement of this Agreement shall be in the District Court, Boulder 
County, Colorado. 

 
N. Force Majeure. Resource Central shall not be held liable or responsible to the Utility 

Partner nor be deemed to have defaulted under or breached this Agreement for failure or 
delay in fulfilling or performing any term of this Agreement due to circumstances beyond 
its control (generally, a “Force Majeure Event”) including, but not limited to, national 
emergencies, unusually severe weather (including fire and flood), catastrophe, acts of 
God, insurrection, war, riot, epidemic, quarantine restrictions, labor disturbances, or 
embargoes. The occurrence of any Force Majeure Event shall excuse Resource Central 
from performing its obligations under this Agreement. However, the occurrence of a 
Force Majeure Event shall not excuse the Utility Partner’s obligation under this 
Agreement to pay the Non-Refundable Deposit.  

 
O. Intellectual Property Rights. All work product(s) created under this Agreement, including 

software, drawings, videos, manuals, survey data and related reports, charts, photographs, 
designs, papers, documents and copies, abstracts and summaries thereof, whether printed 
material, original works of authorship, electronic documents and intellectual property 
produced, invented, reduced to practice, or created as a result of the work performed 
under this Agreement (“Creations”) shall be the sole property of Resource Central and 
may not be used, sold, licensed or disposed of in any manner without prior written 
approval of Resource Central.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, all 
Creations shall be deemed works made for hire under the United States copyright laws, 
and all right, title, and interest in and to such work product shall vest automatically in 
Resource Central. 

 
P. Non-Disclosure of Confidential Material. Resource Central acknowledges that Utility 

Partner has made, or may make, available to Resource Central customer records, which 
contain personally identifiable information (“Confidential Material”). Except as essential 
to Resource Central’s performance under this Agreement, Resource Central shall not: (a) 
make any disclosure of the Confidential Material to any third party; (b) duplicate or copy 
the Confidential Material; or (c) use the Confidential Material for any purposes outside 
the scope of Resource Central’s performance under this Agreement. In the event 
Resource Central discloses Confidential Material to a third party, all personally 
identifiable information shall be redacted. Resource Central shall notify each person to 
whom any disclosure is confidential, that the Confidential Material shall be kept 
confidential.  

 
Q. Termination. Resource Central may terminate this Agreement for any reason by 

providing thirty (30) days written notice to Utility Partner the “Termination Notice”). 
Utility Partner must compensate Resource Central for any work completed prior to and 
including the date of termination, as specified in the Termination Notice. 

 
   

238



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has executed this Memorandum of Agreement or caused it to 
be executed on its behalf by its duly authorized representatives. 

 
Resource Central 

 
 
 

 
By: _____________________________________________ 

Name: ___________________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________________ 

 
Date: _________________________ 

 
Utility Partner 

 
 
          

By: _________________________________ 

Name: _______________________________ 

Title: ________________________________ 

 
Date: _________________________        

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

239



ATTACHMENT A 
SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM 

SCOPE AND CONDITIONS OF WORK

240



SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM 
SCOPE AND CONDITIONS OF WORK 

 
I. Scope of Work 

 
A.  Performance of Audits 

 
1.  Audit Procedures. Resource Central employees (“Technicians”) shall conduct site visits and 

evaluate the efficiency of residential and non-residential irrigation systems, as specified by Utility 
Partner in the Work Order and Obligations, attached hereto as Attachment C. The evaluations 
(“Audits”) shall begin with a visual inspection of the irrigation system, which shall identify 
design issues, broken parts, capital improvements, and maintenance problems. The Technicians 
shall visually check for leaks during this time and measure the irrigable area of the property 
during the Audits.   

 
The Technicians shall then conduct two tests on representative zones for the irrigation systems. 
The tests performed measure the distribution uniformity, precipitation rate, pressure, and soil 
type of the zones. These tests provide the Technicians with the information necessary to make 
recommendations to the Customer for improving the efficiency of the irrigation systems. Due 
to the different characteristics of rotor heads and spray heads, the Technicians are unable to test 
any irrigation zones that utilize both sprays and rotors on the same circuit, otherwise known as 
a mixed zone. If both rotors and spray heads are utilized on the property, but in separate zones, 
at least one test shall be performed for each type of head.     
 
After conducting these tests, the Technicians shall develop a site-specific watering schedule for 
the tested zones. The watering schedule can serve as a representative schedule for zones with 
similar characteristics. All results and recommendations are included in a synopsis for the 
Customer (“Audit Report”). The Technician reviews the Audit Report with the Customer, 
explains additional landscape best management practices, provides horticultural resources, and 
makes all attempts to answer any questions the Customer may have. The Technicians shall 
follow up with Customers if any further clarification is needed.   
 

2. Non-Residential Audit Procedures. In conducting non-residential property Audits, in addition 
to the standard Audit Procedures, the Technicians shall conduct an appropriate number of tests 
(25-50% of all turf zones) on each sub-property comprising the non-residential property being 
audited. A written report detailing problems found zone by zone as well as the results from tests 
conducted shall be generated and sent to the Customer within two weeks of completing the 
Audit.   
 

3. Number of Technicians. Audits of residential properties shall be conducted by one Technician; 
Audits of non-residential properties may require the participation of two Technicians.    

 
4. Provision of Technicians. Resource Central shall provide the Technicians necessary to perform 

the number of Audits requested by Utility Partner in the Work Order and Obligations. 
 

B. Customer Service and Scheduling of Audits  
 

1. Customer Service. Resource Central shall handle all customer service issues related to the 
Program, including answering Customer questions and addressing any concerns.   
 

2. Scheduling. Resource Central employees (“Schedulers”) shall schedule Audits of residential and 
non-residential properties.   

241



3. Provision of Schedulers. Resource Central shall provide the Schedulers necessary to schedule
the number of Audits requested by Utility Partner in the Work Order and Obligations.

4. Scheduling Priority. Schedulers shall schedule Audits of residential and non-residential
properties on a first-come, first-served basis, unless directed otherwise by Utility Partner in the
Work Order and Obligations.

5. Reminders. If the appointment is scheduled more than two days in advance, Resource Central
shall exercise due diligence in placing reminder phone calls or emails.

6. Coordinating Appointments for Non-Residential Audits. Once a non-residential Customer has
completed the application and necessary liability form, Schedulers will work with the Customer
to coordinate an appointment time for the non-residential audit. To avoid gaps in the schedule
or having to unnecessarily waitlist interested properties, deadlines to coordinate appointment
times for non-residential properties may be imposed by the Scheduler on any non-residential
properties. If the deadline is not met, the Scheduler shall move the property to the bottom of
the request list and shall begin working with another property. This provides an incentive for
efficient and timely communication between all parties involved.

C. Number and Type of Audits to be Completed

1. Allocation of Audits. Pursuant to Section I.B.2 of the Slow the Flow Irrigation Audit Program
Agreement, Utility Partner may allocate a set number of Audits toward residential and non-
residential properties in the Work Order and Obligations.

2. Re-Allocation of Audits by Resource Central. If the demand to complete the number of Audits
for a specific property type is not sufficient, but there is sufficient demand to complete the
number of Audits for another property type that has been deemed eligible by Utility Partner,
Resource Central has the right to transfer the allocated number of Audits to the other property
type after August 5, 2024. Resource Central shall notify Utility Partner when it appears as
though this situation may occur.

3. Reasonable Efforts. Resource Central shall make all reasonable efforts to complete the
maximum number of Audits agreed to. If (1) demand is higher than the contracted amount, (2)
Resource Central staff is available, and (3) Utility Partner approves additional funds, more
Audits may be conducted.

D. Program Updates

1. Demand Updates. During the course of the Program Term, Resource Central shall provide to
Utility Partner updates about the Program at least every other week.

2. Updates Upon Request. Updates shall also be provided to Utility Partner within five (5)
business days of any request.

3. Contents of Updates. Both regularly scheduled and requested updates shall include a summary
of Resource Central’s progress in meeting its obligations under the Agreement. This includes
the number of Audits completed, the number of Audits scheduled but not yet completed, and
the number of Audits requested but not yet scheduled.

242



4. Delivery of Updates. Resource Central shall email such updates to the following address(es):
hbowen@lochbuie.org

E. Post-Audit Activities

1. Customer Satisfaction Surveys. After the Program Term has ended, Resource Central shall
conduct a customer satisfaction survey of all property owners requesting and receiving irrigation
Audits. Resource Central shall also compile and analyze the data collected from the irrigation
Audits. The survey results and the data analysis shall be included in a final report detailing the
Program results. Resource Central shall provide Utility Partner with this report by December
31, 2024.

2. Impact Analysis Report. Resource Central shall prepare an Impact Analysis Report. To prepare
that report, one year after the Audit period has ended, Resource Central shall compare the pre- 
and post-Audit water usage of all residential Customers requesting and receiving Program
Audits. Resource Central will assess their water usage over time and in comparison to climate
conditions. Resource Central shall use this information to produce the Impact Analysis Report,
using multiple methods of analysis along with charts and graphs to determine and analyze the
water savings benefits of the Program.  This analysis shall be based on methodology developed
by Resource Central, which has been approved by peers in the water community, and presented
at a variety of conferences. The report includes summary data, numerous types of analyses,
charts, graphs, and explanatory narrative sections. To provide transparency, Resource Central
shall also include anonymous residential Customer data.

II. Conditions of Work

1. Responsible Adult Must be Present. Resource Central shall not perform a residential Audit
unless at least one person affiliated with the property (i.e., an owner or resident), who is at least
18 years of age, is present on the premises for the duration of the Audit. Resource Central shall
not perform a non-residential Audit unless the Technician(s) are able to meet with the property
owner or the property owner’s designee responsible for the management of the non-residential
property during the visual inspection of the property.

2. Liability Waiver Must be Signed. Resource Central shall have no obligation to conduct an Audit
until the property owner to be audited has signed a Program Liability Waiver, attached hereto as
Attachment D.

3. Non-Enforcement of Watering Restrictions. If watering restrictions are instituted, the Audit
may take place outside of the property owner’s permitted watering schedule. Utility Partner
agrees not to enforce any watering restrictions against the Customer or Resource Central if this
occurs.

243



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM  

WORK ORDER AND OBLIGATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

244



SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM 
WORK ORDER AND OBLIGATIONS 

 
 
Number of Audits 
 
Subject to Resource Central’s approval and consent, Utility Partner requests that Resource Central conduct 
Audits for a Total Program Price of $1,480.00. 
 
Term of Program 
 
Subject to Resource Central’s approval and consent, Resource Central shall conduct the Program from June 
5, 2024, through October 4, 2024, weather, staff, and demand permitting. Resource Central may in its sole 
discretion choose to extend the term of the Program. Resource Central shall provide notice of any such 
extension to Utility Partner in writing.   
 
Marketing and Publicity  
 
Utility Partner shall be responsible for marketing and publicizing the availability of the Program to its 
Customers in at least one round of marketing. Utility Partner may use any combination of the following 
media: bill inserts, website, social media, newsletter, and direct mailing. If only one round will take place, 
the marketing must be in the form of a water bill insert.  
 
A marketing toolkit, developed by Resource Central, will contain promotional templates and individual 
advertisement components for the Utility Partner to use. Resource Central will supply a recommended 
marketing calendar and template, which will list the recommended dates and media type(s) for the Utility 
Partner to disseminate marketing materials using the marketing toolkit. Advertising content may be created by 
either Resource Central or Utility Partner; however, Utility Partner must use the aforementioned marketing 
toolkit components (i.e., verbiage, logos, photographs) for Program advertisements and all efforts must be 
approved by Resource Central prior to publishing. All marketing toolkit contents are property of 
Resource Central and are to be used exclusively to advertise and promote its programming.      
 
If Resource Central determines a sufficient number of requests exist despite all rounds of advertising having 
not been completed, Resource Central may waive the requirement that Utility Partner conduct an additional 
advertising round. Resource Central shall provide Utility Partner with notice of any such waiver in writing. 
 
Eligibility Requirements and Standard Operating Procedure 
 
Resource Central Slow the Flow Program’s standard operating procedure is to allow repeats on residential 
appointments, i.e., previous residential participants can have another audit from a previous year. We also 
conduct outdoor irrigation audits on non-residential properties, such as HOAs, commercial/business, and 
municipal or civic properties.  
 
It is the Utility Partner’s responsibility to inform Resource Central if properties or repeats are ineligible or 
restricted in quantity. If the Utility Partner has any special requests outside the aforementioned standard 
operating procedure, please contact Elisabeth Bowman, Conservation Engagement Manager, at 
ebowman@resourcecentral.org or 303-999-3820 ext. 210.   
 

 
  

245

mailto:ebowman@resourcecentral.org


Additional Obligations 

1. Attach a sample water bill to the Work Order and Obligations. Resource Central attempts to obtain
water account numbers from properties we audit. Please circle on Utility Partner’s water bill which
number Resource Central should retrieve.

2. If applicable, provide Resource Central with a description of watering restrictions and rebates and
provide rebate forms if available.

3. Please notify Resource Central if any of the Slow the Flow Colorado paperwork is needed for a
resident to receive a rebate.

4. Please notify Resource Central of any changes to watering restrictions or rebate forms as soon as
they occur.

5. Please provide Resource Central with a description of any local government code provisions that
may be relevant to conducting irrigation audits (such as check valve requirements, irrigation
efficiency standards, etc.).

6. Resource Central requires participants to complete a Liability Waiver and Water Records Release,
attached hereto as Attachment D, before receiving an audit. This waiver declares that Resource
Central may access the participant’s water records. Waiver is attached for Utility Partner reference.
Please review the attached waiver to make sure it meets your local government’s requirements for
customer access of water records.

If the waiver does not meet your requirements, please contact Elisabeth Bowman, Conservation
Engagement Manager, at ebowman@resourcecentral.org or 303-999-3820 ext. 210.

7. Utility Partner shall provide Customer water records to Resource Central in the format requested by
Resource Central within four (4) weeks of receiving such a request from Resource Central.

246

mailto:ebowman@resourcecentral.org


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM  

PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND TERMS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

247



SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND TERMS 

 
I.  Payment Terms 

 
A. Program Price 

 
1. Residential Audits. Residential Audits shall be billed at a standard cost of $111.00. 

 
2. Non-Residential Audits. Large properties (including but not limited to HOA common areas, 

commercial properties, etc.) are billed at $61.50 per hour per Technician conducting an Audit 
and includes but is not limited to travel time, conducting the visual inspection, performing tests, 
answering questions, and preparing the Audit Report.  

 
3. Total Audit Price. The Total Audit Price shall be equal to the total dollar amount of Audits 

requested by Utility Partner in the Work Order and Obligations. Based on Utility Partner’s 
contract of $1,480.00, the Total Audit Price is $1,110.00. 

 
4. Non-Refundable Deposit. The Non-Refundable Deposit offsets Resource Central’s fixed costs 

of managing the Program and paying staff, who are hired based on the funds specified in this 
Agreement. Based on Utility Partner’s contract of $1,480.00, the Non-Refundable Deposit is 
$370.00.  

 
5. Total Program Price. Utility Partner shall pay the Total Program Price, which is equal to the 

sum of the Non-Refundable Deposit and the fees for all completed Audits ($1,480.00).      
 

B. Cancellations 
 
1. If an Audit is cancelled prior to the Technician arriving on site due to adverse weather 

conditions (i.e., lightning, heavy rain, or significant wind conditions), Utility Partner shall not be 
charged for the Audit and all attempts shall be made to reschedule. If weather interrupts a 
residential Audit that is already underway and it cannot be completed at that time, Utility 
Partner shall be charged the agreed-upon amount as well as $63.00 per Audit Hour for the time 
needed to complete the Audit at a later date.  

 
a. Residential. Audit cancellations made with at least one (1) full business day’s notice 

shall not be charged to Utility Partner. No-shows or cancellations of residential 
Audits made with less than one (1) full business day’s notice of the scheduled 
appointment shall be charged to Utility Partner at the standard rate and shall not be 
rescheduled unless the reason for cancellation falls within the category of an 
emergency situation as described below. The following events shall be considered 
emergencies: life- or limb-threatening medical situations, death of a friend or family 
member, or a major sprinkler system malfunction that would prohibit the Audit 
from taking place (i.e., broken mainline/backflow preventer, etc.). The sprinkler 
system malfunction must have occurred within 24 hours of the scheduled 
appointment.  
 

b. Non-Residential Properties. Audit cancellations made with at least five (5) full 
business days’ notice shall not be charged to Utility Partner. No-shows or 
cancellations of non-residential Audits made with less than five (5) full business 
days’ notice of the scheduled appointment shall be charged to Utility Partner at 25% 
of the anticipated full billable amount based on property size and shall not be 

248



rescheduled unless the reason for cancellation falls within the category of an 
emergency situation as described below. The following events shall be considered 
emergencies: life- or limb-threatening medical situations, death of a friend or family 
member, or a major sprinkler system malfunction that would prohibit the Audit 
from taking place (i.e., broken mainline/backflow preventer, etc.). The sprinkler 
system malfunction must have occurred within 24 hours of the scheduled 
appointment. 

II. Payment Schedule and Invoicing

A. Payment Schedule. Utility Partner shall pay the Non-Refundable Deposit within thirty (30) days of
signing the Agreement. Such payment must be made by check or electronic payment (EFT) payable
to Resource Central.

Utility Partner shall pay for completed Audits on a monthly basis, pursuant to the Invoicing terms
specified below.

B. Invoicing. Resource Central shall bill Utility Partner monthly for all work completed pursuant to the
Agreement. The Customers’ Utility Partner-issued account numbers, when available, as well as the
name of the homeowner, address of audited property, and date of Audit for that property shall be
provided with the monthly invoice. Payment shall be due within thirty (30) days of the date the
invoice is issued by Resource Central.

Resource Central shall include on its monthly invoice for non-residential Audits the name and
address of each Customer coordinating the Audit with Resource Central. Resource Central shall
make all reasonable attempts to obtain non-residential Audit account numbers and shall include the
name and type of property audited. For non-residential properties Resource Central shall provide an
accounting of the number of hours spent on site and the number of hours spent creating the Audit
report.

C. Payment Deadlines. For purposes of these payment deadlines, a payment shall be deemed to have
been made upon the date of its actual receipt by Resource Central.

249



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
SLOW THE FLOW IRRIGATION AUDIT PROGRAM  

LIABILITY WAIVER AND WATER RECORDS RELEASE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

250



LIABILITY WAIVER 
 

By signing this waiver, you acknowledge that Resource Central will test the efficiency of your landscape irrigation 
system at your request. The testing will involve operating the landscape irrigation system through the manual valves 
and/or through the irrigation control clock. Resource Central may need to turn the system off during the inspection. 
Resource Central is not responsible for any system malfunction during or after the landscape irrigation 
inspection. It is the responsibility of the property owner/manager to check the irrigation control clock after the 
inspection to make sure it is both turned on and programmed properly. Resource Central will leave the property 
owner/manager with a recommended watering schedule that will likely necessitate the property owner/manager 
change the scheduled irrigation program on the irrigation control clock. In the case that the property owner/manager 
requests to have the irrigation technician change the program schedule on the irrigation control clock, it will be the 
property owner’s/manager’s responsibility to confirm that the program is scheduled for the preferred times. The 
property owner/manager will be responsible for monitoring the health of the landscape. Resource Central will not 
be held responsible for any damage to the landscape as a result of the change in the watering schedule.  
 
Printed Name:_________________________ Address:_____________________________ 
Signature:____________________________  Date:________________________________ 
 

WATER RECORDS RELEASE  
The impacts of the Slow the Flow program are being monitored for the next 2-5 years. This requires a comparison of 
customer water usage histories gathered from his/her water provider. The information is used to show trends and 
impacts that result from the program and do not single out any individual customer’s water usage history to third 
parties. Any information obtained relating to the individual customer will be kept anonymous and confidential by 
Resource Central.  
 
I am or was the utility user at:______________________________________________________. I understand that 
Section 24-¬72¬-204(3) (a) (IX) of the Colorado Revised Statutes prohibits the release of my name, address, 
telephone number and personal financial information as a past or present user of a public utility.  
 
I hereby consent and give permission to my water provider, (please list in space provided) 
_________________________________ to release my water usage and billing information to Resource Central.  
 
I further release and hold harmless my water provider as listed above from any claim, demand, action or right of 
action arising out of or related to the release of my name, address, and my water usage to Resource Central or which 
results from actions by my water provider or Resource Central relating to this program. 
 
Printed Name:_________________________  
Signature:____________________________ Date:________________________________ 
 

251



WATERWISE YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS Waterwise Yard Seminars Program Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this 
___________________ (“Effective Date”), by and between Resource Central and the Town of 
Lochbuie (“Utility Partner”), (each individually a “Party,” or collectively “Parties”).   

Recitals 

1. WHEREAS many people are interested in the concept of a low-water landscape;

2. WHEREAS those interested in the concept of a low-water landscape are often overwhelmed by
the plant selection and design of such a landscape;

3. WHEREAS, the Waterwise Yard Seminars Program will provide Utility Partner’s residents and
other community members access to important information, an opportunity to have their
questions answered, and access to additional resources within the community;

4. WHEREAS to help its residents increase water use efficiency, adhere to best management
practices, and reach conservation goals, Utility Partner wishes to partner with Resource Central
to organize and conduct the Waterwise Yard Seminars Program (“Program”) for the term
specified in Section III in partnership with Utility Partner.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Program Obligations

A. Resource Central Obligations

1. Resource Central shall provide the services described in the Waterwise Yard
Seminars Scope and Conditions of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A
(“Services”).

B. Utility Partner Obligations

1. Marketing and Publicity. Utility Partner shall be responsible for publicizing the
availability of the Program to its customers in at least one round of marketing.
Efforts to publicize the Program to its customers may include, but are not
limited to, advertising media such as the Utility Partner’s bill inserts, website,
social media, newsletter, and direct mailing. If only one round will take place,
the marketing must be in the form of a water bill insert.

Resource Central will develop a marketing toolkit containing promotional
templates and individual advertisement components for Utility Partner to use.
Resource Central will supply a recommended marketing calendar and template,
which will list the recommended dates and media type(s) for the Utility Partner
to disseminate marketing materials using the marketing toolkit. Either Resource

252



Central or Utility Partner may create advertising content; however, Utility Partner 
must use the toolkit components (i.e., verbiage, logos, photographs) for Program 
advertisements and all efforts must be approved by Resource Central prior to 
publishing. All marketing toolkit contents are property of Resource Central 
and are to be used exclusively to advertise and promote its programming.   

  
If Resource Central determines sufficient demand exists, despite all rounds of 
intended advertising having not been completed, Resource Central may waive the 
requirement that Utility Partner conduct an additional advertising round. 
Resource Central shall provide Utility Partner with notice of any such waiver in 
writing. 
 
For the purposes of communication regarding program marketing and outreach, 
Resource Central requests the contact information of a designated marketing 
point of contact. The person(s) named below is designated Utility Partner’s 
representative(s) for marketing efforts. 

 
For Utility Partner: 
Heather Bowen 
Town Clerk 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
303-990-5783 
hbowen@lochbuie.org 

 
2. Complete and Submit Signed Agreement and Attachments. Utility Partner shall 

submit to Resource Central a signed copy of the Agreement no later than Friday, 
February 9, 2024.  

 
 
II.  Price, Payment Amount, and Billing Procedure 
 

A. Payment of Program Price. Utility Partner shall pay Resource Central the Program Price, 
pursuant to the Waterwise Yard Seminars Program Payment Schedule and Terms, 
attached hereto as Attachment B.   

 
III.   Term 
 

A. Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and 
terminates on December 31, 2024, or on the date the Agreement is earlier terminated, as 
provided herein.  
 

IV.   General Provisions 
 

A.  Record-Keeping Requirements. Both Resource Central and Utility Partner shall maintain 
all records, documents, communications, and other material that pertain to this 
Agreement (“Records”) for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment 
under this Agreement, unless Resource Central or Utility Partner requests that the records 
be retained for a longer period. Resource Central and Utility Partner each shall provide 
access to such Records to the other during normal business hours for review and 
copying. 

 

253



B. No Delegation. Except as otherwise provided, the Parties’ duties and obligations shall not 
be assigned, delegated, or subcontracted except with the express prior written consent of 
the other Party. All subcontractors shall be subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement. 
 

C. Indemnification. To the extent allowed by law, Utility Partner, on behalf of itself and its 
successors and assigns, agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Resource 
Central, its officers, directors, and employees, contractors, and volunteers from and 
against losses, liabilities, expenses, and costs, including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of (i) the negligent performance under this 
Agreement by Utility Partner or any person employed by or acting on behalf of Utility 
Partner; or (ii) any injury to persons or property to the proportional extent caused by the 
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Utility Partner, or any person employed by 
or acting on behalf of Utility Partner, during the performance of Services under this 
Agreement. 

 
To the extent allowed by law, Resource Central, on behalf of itself and its successors and 
assigns, agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Utility Partner, its officers, directors, and 
employees, and contractors from and against losses, liabilities, expenses, and costs, 
including, without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of (i) the 
negligent performance of Services under this Agreement by Resource Central or any 
person employed by or acting on behalf of Resource Central; or (ii) any injury to persons 
or property to the proportional extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of Resource Central, or any person employed by or acting on behalf of 
Resource Central, during the performance of Services under this Agreement. 

 
D. No Third-Party Rights. Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of, and be binding only upon, the Parties. No third-party beneficiary rights or 
benefits of any kind are expressly or impliedly provided herein. 

 
E. Designated Representatives. For the purpose of this Agreement, the persons named 

below are designated the representatives of the Parties. Unless otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, all notice required to be given by the Parties shall be given either by 
hand delivery or email, with confirmed receipt, or by registered or certified mail to the 
representative named below. The Parties may designate in writing a new or substitute 
representative: 
 
For Resource Central: 
 
Neal Lurie 
President 
Resource Central 
6400 Arapahoe Road, Suite B 
Boulder, CO 80303 
303-999-3820 ext. 202 
nlurie@resourcecentral.org 

For Utility Partner: 
 
Heather Bowen 
Town Clerk 
703 WCR 37 
Lochbuie, CO 80603 
303-990-5783 
hbowen@lochbuie.org 
 
 

F. Default and Remedies. If either Party fails to comply with this Agreement, the other Party 
shall provide written notice specifying the breach, and the breaching Party shall be 
allowed thirty (30) days to cure, or such longer period as agreed to by the Parties in 
writing if the cure will require additional time. If the breaching Party fails to cure the 

254



breach, timely under this Agreement, the non-breaching Party shall have all remedies 
available in law or in equity.  The waiver of any breach of a term hereof shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other term or the same term upon subsequent breach 

 
G. Modifications. This Agreement is intended as the complete integration of understanding 

between the Parties. This Agreement may only be modified or amended upon written 
mutual agreement by the Parties.  

 
H. Severability. The terms of this Agreement are severable, and should any term or provision 

hereof be declared invalid or become inoperative for any reason, such invalidity or failure 
shall not affect the validity of any other term or provision hereof.  

 
I. Exhibits. All exhibits and attachments to this Agreement shall be deemed incorporated 

herein by reference. 
 
J. Independent Contractor. Resource Central shall perform the Services under this 

Agreement as an independent contractor.  The Parties do not intend, nor shall it be 
construed that Resource Central or any Resource Central subcontractor or employee is an 
employee of Utility Partner for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
K. Employee Financial Interest. The Parties aver that to their knowledge, no employee of 

Utility Partner has any personal or beneficial interest whatsoever in the service or 
property described herein. 
 

L. Legal Authority – Signatory. Each Party represents and warrants that it possesses the legal 
authority to enter into this Agreement and that it has taken all actions required by its 
procedures, by-laws, and applicable laws to exercise that authority, and to lawfully 
authorize its undersigned signatory to execute this Agreement, or any part thereof, and to 
bind itself to its terms. If requested by the other Party, each Party shall provide the other 
with proof of its authority to enter into this Agreement within 15 days of receiving such 
request. 

 
M. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall be applied in the interpretation, execution, and 

enforcement of this Agreement. Any provision included or incorporated herein by 
reference that conflicts with Colorado law shall be null and void. Any provision 
incorporated herein by reference that purports to negate this provision in whole or in 
part shall not be valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of 
complaint, defense, or otherwise. Venue for a legal action relating to the interpretation, 
execution, or enforcement of this Agreement shall be in the District Court, Boulder 
County, Colorado. 

 
N. Force Majeure. Resource Central shall not be held liable or responsible to the Utility 

Partner nor be deemed to have defaulted under or breached this Agreement for failure or 
delay in fulfilling or performing any term of this Agreement due to circumstances beyond 
its control (generally, a “Force Majeure Event”) including, but not limited to, national 
emergencies, unusually severe weather (including fire and flood), catastrophe, acts of 
God, insurrection, war, riot, epidemic, quarantine restrictions, labor disturbances, or 
embargoes. The occurrence of any Force Majeure Event shall excuse Resource Central 
from performing its obligations under this Agreement. However, the occurrence of a 
Force Majeure Event shall not excuse the Utility Partner’s obligation under this 
Agreement to pay the Non-Refundable Program Fee.  

 

255



O. Intellectual Property Rights.  All work product(s) created under this Agreement, including
software, drawings, videos, manuals, survey data and related reports, charts, photographs,
designs, papers, documents and copies, abstracts and summaries thereof, whether printed
material, original works of authorship, electronic documents and intellectual property
produced, invented, reduced to practice, or created as a result of the work performed
under this Agreement (“Creations”) shall be the sole property of Resource Central and
may not be used, sold, licensed or disposed of in any manner without prior written
approval of Resource Central.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, all
Creations shall be deemed works made for hire under the United States copyright laws,
and all right, title, and interest in and to such work product shall vest automatically in
Resource Central.

P. Termination. Resource Central may terminate this Agreement for any reason by
providing thirty (30) days written notice to Utility Partner (the “Termination Notice”).
Utility Partner must compensate Resource Central for any work completed prior to and
including the date of termination, as specified in the Termination Notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has executed this Memorandum of Agreement or caused it to be executed on its behalf 
by its duly authorized representatives. 

Resource Central 

By: ________________________________________ 

Name: ______________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________ 

Date:  ___________________________ 

Utility Partner 

By: _____________________________________ 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Date: _________________________ 

256



ATTACHMENT A 
WATERWISE YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM 

SCOPE OF WORK

257



WATERWISE YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
I. Scope of Work 

 
A.  Seminars 

 
1. Seminar Development. Resource Central shall research and choose seminar topics, which shall 

be related to outdoor water conservation education. 
 

2. Seminar Speakers. Resource Central shall coordinate with and secure a qualified speaker to 
teach each seminar. Seminar speakers shall be a landscape or water conservation professional, as 
determined by Resource Central. Resource Central shall be responsible for paying all speaker 
fees. 
 

3. Seminar Format. All seminars hosted in 2024 will be a live broadcast virtual event or webinar 
lasting approximately ninety (90) minutes. This format ensures public safety while enabling 
open dialogue, expanded reach, and live question-and-answer breaks. Resource Central shall be 
responsible for scheduling and hosting the webinar and will provide a staff member or 
volunteer to co-host the webinar with the Seminar Speaker. Seminars will be hosted from 
February through September 2024. Resource Central reserves the right to host the seminar(s) at 
different times as predetermined with Utility Partner and included in a written agreement. Any 
seminars that need to be rescheduled will be hosted in September 2024. Due to Speakers’ 
copyright materials, Waterwise Yard Seminars will be available in live format only (no 
recordings).  
 

4. Educational Materials. Resource Central and/or the Seminar Speaker, at their discretion, may 
prepare and organize educational materials to be made available online before, during, and after 
the seminar(s). Resource Central shall also be responsible for researching and updating those 
educational materials.  

 
5. Registration and Attendance. The seminar(s) shall be free and open to the public. Resource 

Central shall coordinate Program registration and shall also send reminder emails to registered 
attendees within one week of the Seminar date(s). Resource Central shall make all 
reasonable efforts to ensure high levels of attendance at the seminar(s) but cannot 
guarantee a certain attendance level.  
 

6. Demand Updates. During the course of the Program Term, Resource Central shall provide to 
Utility Partner demand updates about the Program at least every other week. Updates shall also 
be provided to Utility Partner within five (5) business days of any written request. Both regularly 
scheduled and requested updates shall include a summary of Resource Central’s progress in 
meeting its obligations under the Agreement including the number of people registered for the 
seminar. 
 

B. Marketing and Customer Service 
 
1. Marketing of Program. Resource Central may design and pay for the placement of 

advertisements in a local newspaper, write and disseminate press releases and public service 
announcements publicizing the Program, submit information relating to scheduled seminar(s) to 
local calendar listings, advertise the seminar(s) in its monthly electronic newsletter, and advertise 
the seminar(s) in conjunction with other Resource Central programs.  
 

258



2. Customer Service. Resource Central shall handle all incoming phone calls and emails regarding 
the Program and respond to all questions.  
 

C. Post-Program Duties 
 

1. Evaluation. Resource Central shall create and process satisfaction surveys.  
 

2. Annual Report. Resource Central shall compile the information contained in the completed 
surveys into a final report about the Program, which details the Program results. Resource 
Central shall provide Utility Partner with this report by December 31, 2024.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

259



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
WATERWISE YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND TERMS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

260



WATERWISE YARD SEMINARS PROGRAM 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND TERMS 

I. Payment Terms

A. Program Price

1. Price Charged to Utility Partner. Utility Partner shall pay a fee of $2,400.00 to conduct one (1)
Waterwise Yard Seminar. 

II. Payment Schedule and Invoicing

A. Invoicing. Resource Central shall bill Utility Partner for all work completed pursuant to the Agreement.
Payment shall be due within thirty (30) days of the date the invoice is issued by Resource Central. Such
payment must be made by check or electronic payment (EFT) payable to Resource Central.

B. Payment Deadlines. For purposes of these payment deadlines, a payment shall be deemed to have been
made upon the date of its actual receipt by Resource Central. Said invoice shall be issued upon Utility
Partner’s submission to Resource Central of a signed version of the Agreement.

261



703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

WORK SESSION 
February 6, 2024 

Immediately following the Board of Trustees Meeting 

This meeting will be held in the Town Hall Board Room, 703 WCR 37. Residents are welcome to join us in the Board 
Room to view the meeting. 

AGENDA 

1. Discussion of 2024 projects.

262


	20240206 Agenda
	7a 020624 Payment Approval Report
	7b January 12, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes
	7c January 16, 2024 Minutes
	7d1 AIS - PW Fleet Lease  Purchase John Deere 410P 02062024
	7d2 Resolution 2024-10 Approving Lease Purchase Backhoe
	7d3 Lease Number 5000308-007 for backhoe
	7e Res 2024-11 BHFS Engagement Agreement
	AIS - 2024-11 BHFS Engagement Letter
	Resolution 2024-11 BHFS Engagement Agreement
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE
	COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS
	STATE OF COLORADO
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11
	ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO
	ATTEST:     Michael Mahoney, Mayor

	Engagement Agreement - Town of Lochbuie_27133760_dot_1

	7f Res 2024-12 Galloway Professional Services Agreement
	AIS - 2024-12 Galloway ROW Mapping Proposal
	Resolution 2024-12 Galloway ROW Survey
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE
	COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS
	STATE OF COLORADO
	RESOLUTION NO. 2023-12
	ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO
	ATTEST:     Michael Mahoney, Mayor

	PSA Short Form Lochbuie ROW Maps_Feb 1

	7g1 AIS - High Plains Final Plat 2-6-24 FINAL
	7g2 Resolution Quik Trip FINAL Plat
	7g3 QT4208_FinalPlat-2nd
	1.pdf
	2.pdf
	3.pdf
	19198-QT 4208_168TH AVE & HWY 76 FRONT.pdf

	7g4 Site Plan
	7g5 QT SIA FINAL 2024
	7g6 QT4208_EngineersCostEstimate(Public Only)-7th
	7g7 QT4208_TrafficSignalOPC
	8a1 AIS - High Plains CUP 2-6-24 - FINAL
	8a2 Resolution 2024 QuikTrip Conditional Use 2.6.24
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-14
	ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO
	Michael Mahoney, Mayor
	ATTEST:

	8a3 QT4208_SitePlanConditionalUseSet-7th
	8a4 Affidavit of Publication of Public Hearing for QuikTrip
	8b1 AIS- Award Elevated Water Storage Tank 02062024
	8b2 Resolution 2024-15 selecting contractor for water tank and authorizing Town Administrator to execute agreement contingent on funding (002)
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE
	COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS
	STATE OF COLORADO
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO
	ATTEST:     Michael Mahoney, Mayor

	8b3 Landmark - CO 0139 Lochbuie - Final Bid Package-PDF
	8c1 AIS Resource Central
	8c2 Resolution 2024-16 - Resource Central
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE
	COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS
	STATE OF COLORADO
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-16
	ADOPTED THIS 6TH  DAY OF fEBRUARY, 2024.
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO
	ATTEST:     Michael Mahoney, Mayor

	8c3 Lochbuie Garden In A Box 2024 MOA
	8c4 Lochbuie Slow the Flow 2024 MOA
	8c5 Lochbuie Waterwise Yard Seminars 2024 MOA
	1. Resource Central shall provide the services described in the Waterwise Yard Seminars Scope and Conditions of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A (“Services”).
	1. Marketing and Publicity. Utility Partner shall be responsible for publicizing the availability of the Program to its customers in at least one round of marketing. Efforts to publicize the Program to its customers may include, but are not limited to...




